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REPORT OF THE TREASURER
Gl

It is my pleasure to submit the financial report of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University for the year ended 30 June 2018.
OVERVIEW

To celebrate its 80th Anniversary, PolyU started the 2017/18 year with a series of celebratory events, public lectures and international
forums under the theme “Opening Minds « Shaping the Future”. The year-long festivities culminated in the 80th Anniversary Celebration
Dinner, attended by over 1,000 guests, including senior government officials, community influentials, industry and business leaders,
representatives from local and overseas universities, our colleagues, alumni, students and friends.

The year 2017/18 also marked the end of the Strategic Plan 2012/13 — 2017/18. Many of the strategic goals laid down in this Plan six years
ago were achieved, thus providing a solid foundation for the University to forge ahead and to scale new heights. To prepare ourselves for
the future, we have refined our vision and mission statements and unveiled the new Strategic Plan for 2019/20 — 2024/25 under the theme
“Shaping the Future”, with 2018/19 as the gap year.

With regard to its financial management, the University continued to enhance the budget planning process to enable the timely and
effective deployment of financial resources for the advancement of education and research. The University and the Consolidated Entity
achieved a healthy surplus of $247.5 million (2016/17: $398.6 million) and $309.5 million (2016/17: $376.9 million), respectively. Net
assets of the University and the Consolidated Entity grew 4% and 5% to $5,976.7 million (2016/17: $5,720.1 million) and $6,828.0
million (2016/17: $6,505.1 million), respectively.

AANEZ2REBIBT AEET2018F68308 1F 2RI FFIRES o
i

REMIBAZK\+EE » KER2017/18FE L "BUBBHE - MFLARK . HEBRPF—RIBNESE) » ARBEMNEIRRE - RE—FORE
BEEN\TRAFERNRERERGR  BRATEEES ' BNEE  T8BE » THREM » FuRGINTRAE » BF » RE » BES
FRISVIBHNE - 5B o

2017/18FEINEAER2012/1322017/18FERIBBRSIEINTER —F - SRR FRIFIENRIEERBFIESEN  RABHT TRENE
% > ILUBS R 0 BRIBIE o & IEEARK » FIFHEET S KEHFRRAE » WA2018/19FRZEEFE » HELDL "AFLRK L /HERE - fft
2019/20-2024/25F EHKIBEIRIZSHRSTE

HBEIEHE 0 ABRHENSHRETEEERE - MBI R BRMERYHER @+ MMBERERNRIANEE - ABEIRSEDRIIRS2.475%
BI6(2016/17: 3.986287T) % 3.0958875(2016/17: 3.769280)IRRER - MAZLRRERENFEESBIER 54%Kk5% ' DBlR59.76718
BT (2016/17: 57. 20128 7T) K 68.280f2871(2016/17: 65.501{E87T) °



2 PolyU Financial Report 2017/18

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL POSITION

Income for the University in 2017/18 amounted to $6,265.9 million (2016/17: $6,155.5 million), an increase of $110.4 million over the
past year. The gain was due to the increased Government Subventions, consisting of an additional supplementary grant related to the civil
service pay adjustment that took effect in April 2017 and increased donation income. This, however, was offset by a decrease in Interest
and Investment Gain as a result of the volatile financial market in the second half of the year.

The expenditure of the University in the year increased by $261.3 million to $6,018.3 million (2016/17: $5,757.0 million). About 62%
of the total expenditure was on staff costs and benefits, which represented an increase of $124.6 million or 3.5% over 2016/17. The
increase was mainly caused by the salary adjustments that took into account the civil service pay adjustment, prevailing market pay trends
and staff performance reviews. The current mechanism is effective for recruiting and retaining high calibre academic and administrative
staff. Spending on campus infrastructure and related items also rose by $147.8 million, with the majority going to a long list of campus
enhancement works both to modernise the campus and support the evolving needs of teaching, learning and research.
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OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL POSITION (CONT'D)

The total income of subsidiaries amounted to $1,595.6 million (2016/17: $1,431.3 million), and total expenditure was $1,530.9 million
(2016/17: $1,453.7 million), resulting in a surplus of $64.7 million for the year (2016/17: deficit of $22.4 million).

As compared with last year, the 11% surge in operating income was mainly due to an increase in the Tuition and Other Fees of the College
of Professional and Continuing Education (“CPCE”), an independent self-financed arm of the University that offers programmes through
two subsidiaries of the University, namely the College of Professional and Continuing Education Limited and Hong Kong Community
College. The fee income increase was the composite result of higher tuition fee levels as well as the larger number of students enrolled
in the sub-degree programmes of CPCE. There was also a slight increase in turnover at Hotel ICON, due to its good performance in both
room and catering sales.

Total operating expenditure, excluding the contributions of $110 million (2016/17: 100 million) from subsidiaries to the University, rose
5%. This was mainly attributable to the additional resources allocated by CPCE in tandem with the increase in student numbers, although
to a smaller extent, so as to maintain the provision of quality academic programmes. On the other hand, Hotel ICON was able to maintain

expenditure at an appropriate level through the adjustment of its business strategies and implementation of various cost control measures.

Analyses of the University and Consolidated Income and Expenditure are provided in Figures 1-4.

EEGRM BN (E)
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Income Analysis WA 247 Consolidated $74& University AZ2
2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'m % HK$'m %  HK$'m %  HK$'m %

Government Subventions IFTRER 3,644 495 3,446 485 3,629 579 3,434 558
Tuition and Other Fees BEREMINE 2,361 321 2,281 321 1566 250 1,610 26
Interest and Investment Gain  FI SF01RE Uz 263 3.6 399 5.6 248 4.0 386 6.3
Donations and Benefactions BRI 211 29 140 2.0 319 5.1 238 3.9
Other Income BB 875 119 841 11.8 504 8.0 487 7.9
Total Income I AN 7354 100 7107 100 6,266 100 6,155 100

Figure 1 [E— Figure 2 E—

2017/18 Consolidated Income Analysis 2017/18 University Income Analysis

2017/18 EEHFBIWA D 2017/18 EEARBIIA D
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Expenditure Analysis BXX 9 Consolidated #2& University A2
2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'m % HK$'m % HK$'m %o HK$'m %
Teaching, Learning and Research HE  EBRAWT
Teaching and Research HER R 3,901 3,797 3,599 3,516
Library B 181 176 157 155
Central Computing Facilities PREFLNE 226 231 186 188
Other Academic Services EHEBR 388 351 338 300
4696 667 4555 677 4280 711 4159 723
Management and General [SEDS SIS 398 5.6 397 59 327 5.4 328 57
Premises and Related Expenses RS RERMR 1,243 176 1,088 162 1,118 186 970 16.8
Student and General Educational BER—MBHE
Services AR5 342 49 333 49 277 46 279 48
Other Activities Hi)58) 354 5.0 344 5.1 7 01 10 02
Finance Costs HHER 6 01 7 01 6 0.1 7 0.1
Income Tax FSHR 3 0.1 4 01 3 0.1 4 0.1
Total Expenditure B 7042 100 6,728 100 _ 6,018 100 5,757 100

Figure 3 E=
2017/18 Consolidated Expenditure Analysis
2017/18 EEHAERX DT

Figure 4 &Y
2017/18 University Expenditure Analysis
2017/18 EFEARBREZ DI
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RESEARCH

In 2017/18, the total number of ongoing research projects was 3,047 (2016/17: 2,982), of which 903 (2016/17: 860) were new projects.
The total number of registered research postgraduate students was 1,867 (2016/17: 1,819).

In addition to the basic research elements built into the academic departments’ one-line budget, the University incurred a total
expenditure of $904.8 million (2016/17: $836.8 million) on specific Research Activities, including research projects and studentship,
of which $540.4 million (2016/17: $453.0 million) was supported by UGC funds and $364.6 million (2016/17: $383.8 million) was
supported by non-UGC funds.

The University has been taking proactive measures to boost the University’s research capabilities over the years and established the sixth
University Research Facility (“URF”) in May 2018 - URF in Big Data Analytics. This is the first university-wide research facility in big data
analytics in Hong Kong and is expected to foster cross-disciplinary research collaborations and strengthen partnerships with industries
on big data analytics applications. The University also extended its collaboration with The Boeing Company for another five years and
opened its Aviation Services Research Centre, which includes more space in the newly constructed Block X on campus. This dedicated
1,500-square-metre facility with over $35 million in equipment will further support Hong Kong’s position as the leading world-class
provider of Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul services in the region.

(L)

2017/1 84 EEPOE(T P AORIFTIB B $£513,04718(2016/17: 2,98218) » HPIO3IE(2016/17: 8601E) RFTED o SEMFFLMABIR,8673
(2016/17: 1,819:2) o

bR 3 2MBPIEIRFAE P ENEARITIRE M M - REEXFEFERITEE)(BISTFEIRE M7t A NS %) iR E9. 04828 7T
(2016/17: 8.368{F87z) * HP5.404(5/81(2016/17:4.530(870) BB SIHNRERD © HINU3.646f7875(2016/17: 3.838(F8w) RILIIFEE
EEa= I
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RESEARCH (CONT'D)

Thanks to the Central Government’s new initiatives allowing Hong Kong institutions to have access to national research funding that was
previously only available to mainland-based laboratories and research centres, the University received RMB4 million in research funding
from the China Science and Technology Exchange Center for its two Partner State Key Laboratories and two Hong Kong Branches of the
Chinese National Engineering Research Centers in November 2017 and April 2018, respectively. In view of the potential opportunities for
research and entrepreneurship development across the border, the University has decided to reposition Shenzhen Base, the collective term
for PolyU Shenzhen Research Institute (“SZRI”) and PolyU Base (Shenzhen) Limited (“PolyU Base”), as an extended campus for research,
entrepreneurship development and education in the Chinese mainland. Designated research laboratories are being set up to strengthen the

capabilities to generate high-impact projects and bid for sizable research funds in the Chinese mainland.

The University’s efforts and commitment to pursue research excellence and knowledge transfer were rewarded at the 46th International
Exhibition of Inventions of Geneva with nine awards, including the Grand Prize for the Defocus Incorporated Multiple Segments (DIMS)
Spectacle Lens for Myopia Control. The School of Optometry and its research collaborator, Hoya Vision Care, developed the DIMS

Spectacle Lens for slowing myopic progression in children. The lens was commercialised in July 2018.

P (48)

PARPTHELIIENE - BAMABEREDFBERQDALEREANTEBRENOBXNTIEE - Bit - KBDEIE2017F118K%2018F481%¢
PERBRNRPVESHUSRTARENRINEE  BREMBERBHERERE @ URMEBR TREEMTFRPLEEDPD © HRAME
R EEER LIIEFESEN - AS2REBRYIESMELEISBIETASRY IR RRAEAESTE (R BRA S OVHREE) EHEN » N
RBEPEIAMHEETT « EEZERNASHN—BLBRE - ABRMIESHENEERE @ URLEPENBLERSENRTIEENFNESR
BITHEERED -

ASERTRAEERTHEENETS  AEBA - BntBARETH "S-+ EERENRE EHESNERIR  Hp "SRIEREHE RiEN
FEFEIGRTE - RARCEREENASEBHSEHCBHBTRILRER - SFANTEREZSARIVE + WER2018F7 BHELMIES
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INVESTMENTS

After a year of strong growth in the financial market, the global economy became more and more uncertain and volatile in 2017/18.
The risks of rising US interest rates and the threat of faster inflation contributed to a more challenging environment for equities.
Counterproductive policies, especially protectionist measures, and the geopolitical risks associated with different countries, such as deeper
political tension between the US and China resulting from the accelerating trade war, are the key risks that need to be attended to in the
coming year. Given the uneven growth in developed and emerging markets, a broader set of possible outcomes may result.

Guided by good governance and risk management procedures, the University has adopted the investment strategies developed by the
Investment Committee, based on the Statement of Investment Policies and Guidelines (“SIPG”) approved by the University Council. The
asset allocation of the University’s investments has been appropriately managed, taking into consideration different cash flow requirements
as well as the strategic development of the University.

Basically, the current investment strategies, policies and management approach are appropriate and well established. A broader range of
asset classes could be considered, as diversification might help to reduce overall portfolio volatility.

Funds of the University and major subsidiaries are pooled for effective investment management. Approximately 40% of the investible funds
are managed by external investment managers. As of 30 June 2018, 76% of the University’s investments were in fixed income securities
(2016/17: 79%), and 24% were in equities (2016/17: 21%). The University and the Consolidated Entity recorded an Interest and Investment
Gain of $247.8 million (2016/17: $385.8 million) and $263.5 million (2016/17: $399.3 million), respectively, for the year. The decrease
was primarily attributable to equity market corrections.

Iy

1RE

Lk

THMHBIEEBE —FHBRIMLER » EIICBRISIE2017/18FEEHSBNIRNBEEARLE) - EEFIR EHOER - DMRERINENESE - K<
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ABE—HIBTREELRARBKREIEER  INHNRELZESSRRRESEHOVRELERRISSIMAISTHIRESE - ABRSERSIRIRER
SHFTK  LERAXBHNRBERMESHEIESERN -

2EA L BITHRERE  BERNEIEL IR EENTS - AENMEFEEEERSE  TRERENDE - DENRIEEEBREESHE
ik -

REREFBHEBAINETES —RETRE ' MIRSKRESIENNE - Bl ESKIEESEIENREEANMLIREEEH40% « EZE20185F
683081 » KREFENDEIU T 76%IZHRETEUATEZE(2016/17: 79%)  24%BRIBZE(2016/17: 21%) - KEBRIZSIEAEEFBHNFIR
AISEIWEEDBIA2.4782%875(2016/17: 3.858R87T) %2.635E875(2016/17: 3.993(87T) » INEEAD EBRIRIERHIZVHE °



HR# RS 2017/18 9

CAPITAL PROGRAMMES

For the year 2017/18, the University’s total expenditure on capital programmes was $164.8 million (2016/17: $374.1 million), comprising capital
development programmes of $87.6 million (2016/17: $300.2 million) and various alterations, additions and improvement projects of $77.2
million (2016/17: $73.9 million).

To provide sufficient hostel places in order to facilitate the provision of a holistic education to students, two hostel projects are planned at Ho
Man Tin Slope and Kowloon Tong, with over 1,200 and 1,600 places, respectively. The projects will be supported by the newly approved Hostel
Development Fund, with its governance details to be determined and announced by the Government of the HKSAR in due course. Preparatory
works and detailed design for the project at Ho Man Tin Slope have already commenced and are targeted for completion in 2024. Planning for the
hostel project at Kowloon Tong is underway, and a consultant team will be engaged in the coming year.

During the year, a capital expenditure of $40.9 million (2016/17: $30.4 million) was incurred for building an iconic footbridge linking the main
campus and the podium level of Block Z. This project is scheduled for completion by early 2019. The completed footbridge will not only improve
pedestrian connectivity between the main campus and Block Z, but will also form part of the cycle route envisioned in the long-term campus
master plan.

In addition, the University carried out numerous improvement works in lecture theatres, classrooms and the library during the year at a total cost

of $28.8 million (2016/17: $59.7 million). To cater for the further development of the University, the Main Data Centre at Anita Chan Lai Ling
Building is being expanded and upgraded. This project is scheduled for completion in early 2019.

An analysis of the University’s capital programmes is provided in Figure 5.

HiZ1HE

2017/18 B E RIS B B2/ 1.648287T(2016/17: 3.741{2587T) * HPAY8,7608E7t(2016/17: 3.002EE ) BRERERIEE » HEFN
7,720&5855(2016/17: 7,390 B0 BRZIERNSHNEZ TR o

REHERHNBLULIBERENEANE » ABHEEOTXBERERNEREEMMABES @ DREBE—T _8R—T/"SBBEM  ZmiE
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et TIFSERER @ FAiTIR2024F 526 © NEERBSIRENEEINSHS @ WatBIRPFIBEREER -
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CAPITAL PROGRAMMES (CONT'D)
BEEIREE)

Capital Programmes Analysis EZIEB 9

Figure 5 EF
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SELF-FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The University engages in various self-financing activities, mainly comprising self-financed programmes, student hostels and teaching
clinics. During the year, income from the self-financing activities amounted to $1,265.8 million (2016/17: $1,293.6 million), and the
expenditure incurred was $986.7 million (2016/17: $1,010.9 million). The surplus of $279.1 million (2016/17: $282.7 million) will be
used to support the University’s development.

To support the Government’s advocacy of multiple-path development and lifelong learning, the University has been offering
diversified self-financed programmes for about two decades. To avoid cross-subsidisation of UGC resources to non-UGC-funded
activities, there is a long-established financial model in place for self-financed programmes based on cost allocations according to
the UGC requirements. With a view to maintaining quality professional education, the University has been restructuring the programme
profile. Whilst self-financed taught postgraduate programmes are offered in the University proper, the self-financed undergraduate
programmes have been franchised or transferred to CPCE, resulting in a decrease in tuition fee income from the self-financed
undergraduate programmes. Together with the postgraduate programmes and other short courses, the overall tuition fee income of
self-financed programmes in 2017/18 decreased by $19.5 million to $708.4 million (2016/17: $727.9 million).

In the increasingly competitive self-financing higher education sector, maintaining high quality self-financed programmes is of
paramount importance. The University continues to underpin the quality of the self-financed programmes by managing its portfolio
with a forward-looking perspective and due reference to changing market demands and needs, with the aim of attracting excellent
students, enhancing the quality of teaching and maintaining a strong financial base.

BEEEEE

BERETHTICBFEALREENDERE BLEEES RN F2FEXRZBERETHNARRZDEIR12.658RE T
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AENBEZRE—BURKAOMRADHIFER » SREFXESNERMAITEN - RIMEFEERNENGR  ASUREZHEIMELE
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DONATIONS

The University received cash donations totalling $281.3 million (2016/17: $219.6 million) during the year, including $110 million in
contributions from subsidiaries (2016/17: $100 million). The donations were from alumni, friends and organisations supporting the
University’s development, and the funds were used for research activities, scholarships and various education initiatives. For financial
reporting in compliance with HKFRS, $319.1 million in donations and benefactions (2016/17: $238.0 million), an increase of 34% as
compared with last year, were recognised as income in the Income and Expenditure Statement for the year.

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Foundation (“PolyU Foundation”) successfully solicited support from our alumni and partners,
as seen by the encouraging responses to fundraising campaigns such as the Fundraising Dinner 2017/18 and Golf Tournament 2018
to celebrate the University’s 80th Anniversary. As at 30 June 2018, the balances of General Donation Funds and Endowment Funds
were $520.6 million (2016/17: $481.6 million) and $375.2 million (2016/17: $308.7 million), respectively. These funds will be used by the
University to support its future development.

The ongoing success of the fundraising campaigns continues to positively impact the University’s financial position. The University is
extremely grateful to our donors, whose generosity affirms the public’s recognition of the University’s academic and research achievements
as well as its administrative capabilities. The University will continue its fundraising efforts with a view to diversifying income sources for its

long-term development.

An analysis of the University’s donations is provided in Figure 6.

R

AREERB—HEB2813BBIREIBN2016/17: 2.196(28x) » EPBIERBMBLAINT.1EBET(2016/17: 1{EBIT) - BREE
KEZFABHEORE TZEZRLEBREE  MBRTARRIGEE  BEERSEHBIEE - BENSBUERESED TR
BRE » AEERDONVBERBIRKNAE3.191EBIT » WMEFIBN34%(2016/17: 2.380EBT) °

ESBETABEENNBERENESIERHNSZR » HEREE » fINIBAEREE2017/18RESWEARIKE2018FEBMmER/\+EENS
R R - EIE2018F683081F » —RIBBESRBABBESNIBERDBIAS5.206/2875(2016/17: 4.816f8855)%3.7528%8 7T
(2016/17: 3.087{887T) * BARZIHFAREBRKER °
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DONATIONS (CONT'D)
1R (4E)

Donations Analysis 18857
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FINANCIAL OUTLOOK

The University always responds promptly to community calls and constantly updates its programme profile and research focus to meet the
challenges of our fast-developing society. After successfully launching the undergraduate programme on aviation engineering in 2016/17,
the University will start developing two new bachelor’s degree programmes that are in high demand in Hong Kong. They are the BSc (Hons)
in Financial Technology and Artificial Intelligence and BEng (Hons) in Sustainable Structural and Fire Engineering, both to be offered in the
coming triennium. The PolyU Summer School organised since 2016 has been welcomed by international and PolyU students, as shown in
the increasing student enrolment over the past three years, with exchange students from 39 countries in 2018. It is projected that in several
years’ time, the additional hostel places in the two hostel projects supported by the Hostel Development Fund will help to attract more
international students to PolyU. This will be conducive to creating a global environment for the increasingly diverse student and faculty
communities. Through the six established URFs and the repositioning of Shenzhen Base as an extended campus for research, the University
is in a good position to grasp the opportunity arising from the Central Government’s new initiatives on cross-border research funding. The
University has also collaborated with other renowned institutions in the Greater Bay Area on innovative technology, biotechnology and
translational medicine to leverage the resources and opportunities in the region.

From the 2018/19 financial year onwards, the University is required to implement the UGC Cost Allocation Guidelines for UGC-funded
and non-UGC-funded activities and comply with the relevant control and review procedures. It is expected that the implementation of
these guidelines will not affect the overall financial position of the University. The University is in good financial health and will continue
to strive for financial health and institutional sustainability through rigorous financial planning, prudent management, proper control of the
University’s budget based on value analysis, diversification of income and efficient use of resources to support the strategic development
of the University. Financial health and institutional sustainability remains key to the success of University development and is one of the
five domains of the newly formulated Strategic Plan 2019/20 — 2024/25, which sets out the strategic goals to be achieved through the
University’s core functions of learning, teaching and research.

MHREE

AB—EREFOELEME @ WAETEHMERZBBARNNER - LB ETORFERPAFIROVE - KBMR2016/172FRMINHED
METRBBIRER  CHREZERT —EA=FERARELREZHONBLIBMURE  SMRRRATERE(ES)EBTEBIRE
DR @B RIED TRB(RE) TETBMRE  MOESBHRINFTENK - B2016FiE - BABRMEBPABRE  BREIKRRIEX
BEET0  BE=F2HENBENBAZRENLN > 2018FEFERB=TNEBRNOZRESERIE - RSIERKHEAR » ERSHE
BEELHTEZNOMERSREMREHENBINGL 0 RERARE @ WENRSIESERBENNIERX - EREMNRBBEZTILEIEM
A RIS —BEBRMCBIRIE - BEMINEARPLOERE  URFSRIESTEBEFEMAR/BLERE » RBFIMBEPRIGEZS
SIBRTIE B MEREMS - ABIMEEMABRAZBENEE  SAZENE RS » DIESBIFTRI « EMRIRAEES -

#2018/1 9 EERRIE - RBWAE (NESENEIFFANESIETOMADEIES]) @ WETHRENERENESERER - RHRA
ZIESIHABNBEHMBRRASEMRE - AEPFINWRRE - TREBEREEZENMFHTE  SENESIE REBEEIGHAES
REFSENER  SHRRRDTL  XEERER ' USZEASORBHERE @ WHSRENM BRI REBAFEML - HTUHR
(REAMIBOIIFIEE R AR BEOMINER » IMEFHIEN2019/20-2024/25EERBERBSTEIP A KB — o SRRIGEESBIFEM
FBBERHRFITOROINEE - EBARBHOVRIEE R -

Dr Lawrence Li Kwok-chang, JP SEFEELE, JP
Treasurer gE
26 September 2018 201898268
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE COUNCIL OF THE HONG KONG POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (“the University”) and its subsidiaries
(together “Consolidated Entity”) set out on pages 21 to 124, which comprise the Consolidated and University Statements of Financial
Position as at 30 June 2018, the Consolidated and University Income and Expenditure Statements, the Consolidated and University
Statements of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and University Statements of Changes in Fund Balances and the Consolidated
and University Statements of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Consolidated Entity and the
University as at 30 June 2018 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Consolidated Entity in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The Council of the University is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information included in
the financial report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT’D)
TO THE COUNCIL OF THE HONG KONG POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY (CONT’D)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COUNCIL FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Council of the University is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for such internal control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Council is responsible for assessing the Consolidated Entity’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Council intends to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Council is assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging its responsibilities for overseeing the Consolidated Entity’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 15 of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Consolidated Entity’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT’D)
TO THE COUNCIL OF THE HONG KONG POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY (CONT’D)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Council.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Consolidated
Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Consolidated Entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the

Consolidated Entity to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the Consolidated Entity. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 September 2018
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INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

W32 BRIE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
HZE2018FE6H30H ILFE
Note Consolidated #& University K&
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BAFEITst) BosE 2018 2017 2018 2017
Income A
Government Subventions BURER 3 3,644,316 3,446,298 3,628,707 3,434,518
Tuition and Other Fees BEREMIE 4 2,360,509 2,281,275 1,565,814 1,609,769
Interest and Investment Gain KSR B S 5 263,473 399,266 247796 385,812
Donations and Benefactions BRRIER 6 210,591 139,566 319,073 237,975
Other Income HbUIA 7 875,397 840,666 504,492 487,464
7,354,286 7,107,071 6,265,882 6,155,538
Expenditure 53 8
Teaching, Learning and Research W BBRAG
Teaching and Research BRI 3,900,641 3,797,222 3,599,414 3,516,229
Library BEEE 181,216 175,822 156,920 155,251
Central Computing Facilities PR ERSERE 226,212 231,170 186,529 187,831
Other Academic Services HAHERFS 388,118 351,220 337,955 299,839
Institutional Support HETE
Management and General EER—WIEE 397,420 396,754 327,024 328,039
Premises and Related Expenses RE KRB/ 1,243,371 1,087,604 1,117,566 969,732
Student and General BER—WHE
Educational Services BR#5 342,196 332,614 276,668 279,134
Other Activities HihigE) 353,584 344,148 6,855 9,512
7,032,758 6,716,554 6,008,931 5,745,567
Finance Costs MHER 6,441 7,149 6,441 7,149
7,039,199 6,723,703 6,015,372 5,752,716
Surplus from Operations SERR 315,087 383,368 250,510 402,822
Share of Loss of an Associate [EISEE A SESE 19 (47) (772) - =
Share of Losses of Joint Ventures S o=y — NS5t =] 20 (2,411 (1,455) - _
Surplus before Taxation FR75 Al R ER 312,629 381,141 250,510 402,822
Income Tax TSR 9 3,136) (4,250) (2,964) (4,250)
Surplus for the Year REERER 309,493 376,891 247,546 398,572

The notes on pages 28 to 124 form part of the financial statements.

DIFIRE28EF124R MR AR FREZ— 810 -
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EZHER@R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
HZE2018F6 30 ILEFE
Note Consolidated #& University A£2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFBITat) By 5E 2018 2017 2018 2017
Surplus for the Year FEERE 309,493 376,891 247546 398,572
17 Other Comprehensive Income FEA
for the Year Hitne ElLzs
Items that will not be reclassified AEZEHHED
to Income and Expenditure Statement: I BRIBAVIEB:
Remeasurement Gain of Defined RETBAEINGTE]
Benefit Retirement Schemes SHTETEIES 9,121 899 9,121 899
Items that may be reclassified subsequently H#%oJgEEHERIEE
to Income and Expenditure Statement: I BRIBAVIEB:
Exchange Differences on Translation REBIRMEAT
of Financial Statements of TR
Chinese Mainland Subsidiaries ERER 4,267 (2,185) - -
13,388 (1,286) 9,121 899
or Total Comprehensive Income FER
for the Year BBl 322,881 375,605 256,667 399,471
Attributable to: ERER:
Consolidated Entity/University: IRERB/IRE:
Transfer from Restricted Funds BEEE 10 (150,592)  (183,385)  (150,592) (183,385)
Transfer (from)/to UGC Funds HESES 11 (134,621) 83,613 (134,621) 83,613
Transfer to Other Funds HittBE® 12 608,094 475,377 541,880 499,243
Total Comprehensive Income FER
for the Year BEEEs 322,881 375,605 256,667 399,471

There is no tax effect relating to the above components of the other comprehensive income.

M EEMEIREEKESIIAZRIARE -

of operations of the Chinese mainland subsidiaries.

NIAEBFNERELR -

to UGC Funds and Other Funds.
AFEERZBUREPHAERERZNINEEEREES HthBEEYESESREMES -

17 Other Comprehensive Income for the Year includes items which represent changes in net assets/fund balances not arising from transactions controlled by the
University in its capacity as the fund holder. Examples are remeasurement gain or loss of defined benefit retirement schemes and exchange differences on translation

FEAEMEZENEREFIRIFAEESRAAFMERNNRSAEENFEE/ESHBENEBHEE - fINREBFRIASTEIEHS 2OV SEFNRE DR

27 For the Total Comprehensive Income for the Year, the portion of income with restricted use would be transferred to Restricted Funds, while others would be transferred

The notes on pages 28 to 124 form part of the financial statements.

DIERE28EF 1245 2 MR AU FFIRE 28015 ©
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
MR R

AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

201856 H30H
Note Consolidated 75 University K&
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BAF8BoTat) BEE 2018 2017 2018 2017
Non-current Assets EREEE
Fixed Assets BEEE 17 5,391,242 5,600,510 5,225,887 5,430,180
Investments in Subsidiaries MBATZIRE 18 - - 138,907 135,510
Interests in Associates NS 19 - 1,368 - -
Interests in Joint Ventures SENTER 20 35,400 36,658 - -
Non-current Financial Assets ERBTHMEE 21 718,326 900,457 718,326 900,457
Employee Benefits Assets STefEE 28 599 312 599 312
6,145,567 6,539,305 6,083,719 6,466,459
Current Assets RENEE
Current Financial Assets MeEEREE 22 3,337,019 3,331,312 3,337,019 3,331,312
Staff Loans HHEER 23 19,830 24,710 19,830 24,710
Inventories B8 4,298 5,133 - -
37 Accounts and Other Receivables FELKBRIE 24 546,061 583,749 575,848 560,461
Cash and Deposits with Banks RERIITHER 25 3,636,419 3,329,486 3,439,095 3,185,906
7,543,627 7,274,390 7,371,792 7,102,389
Current Liabilities REBE
Bank Loan for On-lending BE IS
to Staff ZIRITER 23 19,830 24,710 19,830 24,710
Loans and Borrowings ERRBEE 26 44,141 100,841 44,141 100,841
37 Accounts and Other Payables FEATBRAR 27 969,438 930,759 1,762,900 1,638,652
Provision for Employee Benefits ST 28 396,063 363,253 307,340 281,279
47 Deferred Income SESELAN 29 570,389 621,306 557,585 611,447
Receipts in Advance FRUGRIR 298,248 280,601 226,624 207,351
Tax Payable FEAIFRIE 4,544 4,860 4,372 4,860
2,302,653 2,326,330 2,922,792 2,869,140
Net Current Assets e ERE 5,240,974 4,948,060 4,449,000 4,233,249
Total Assets less Current Liabilities REEIRREBE 11,386,541 11,487,365 10,532,719 10,699,708
Non-current Liabilities EREIEE
Loans and Borrowings ERRBE 26 464,312 743,153 464,312 743,153
Provision for Employee Benefits STie 28 362,588 385,920 360,060 383,343
Deferred Income SESEUIN 29 116,264 117,837 116,264 117,837
943,164 1,246,910 940,636 1,244,333
57 Deferred Capital Funds EIEEARE 30 3,615,354 3,735,313 3,615,354 3,735,313
Net Assets FEE 6,828,023 6,505,142 5,976,729 5,720,062
Representing GEENN
Restricted Funds BEEE 10 3,126,850 2,736,655 2,961,495 2,566,325
UGC Funds HEGEE 1 1,885,314 2,051,638 1,885,314 2,051,638
Other Funds HihEE 12 1,815,859 1,716,849 1,129,920 1,102,099
Total bt 6,828,023 6,505,142 5,976,729 5,720,062
APPROVED AND AUTHORISED FOR ISSUE BY THE COUNCIL ON 26 SEPTEMBER 2018
REGR20185 9826 B I T
Mr CHAN Tze-ching, BBS, JP fE- M54, BBS, JP Professor Timothy TONG Wai-cheung, JP  EEE#4%, IP
Chairman of Council RESEF President RE
Dr Lawrence LI Kwok-chang, JP ZEREEL, P Miss April WONG Soo-kam BRZE/)HE
Treasurer Sl Director of Finance B F5iaes

The notes on pages 28 to 124 form part of the financial statements.

DIERE28 B F124R T RARFFRT 2 —EB1D °
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57

Accounts and Other Receivables include Investment Proceeds Receivable of $132.1 million (2017: $195.4 million), while Accounts and Other Payables include
Investment Proceeds Payable of $286.6 million (2017: $323.3 million), as disclosed in notes 24 and 27 respectively. These Investment Proceeds Receivable/Payable
arise from the unsettled securities transactions by external investment managers of the University as at year end.

FEISERIE B ISR E EINGRIR001.32 1258 75(2017:1.954385T) » MBI R BIGIRE R IR02.866/875(2017:3.2338385T) © BEARIBE D RISISIRMIEE24 R
27 o S EREEN/ENRIRB RS ENBIIREFIERFREORBENESLBMELE -

According to Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 20 - Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance, government grants are
recognised as income during the year in which they are spent. Since the major source of income of the University is government subvention, the University has to adopt
HKAS 20 for the accounting treatment of government grants in its financial statements. Balance of Deferred Income as at year end represents unspent portion of grants.

RIBSBESTERI( "SR] )F205% - BFEMMNEF EHNKE  BIFRREREREFEBR/IIN - BEROEZWARBRREFER » FRRIZBSSHHER
F203REHPIEMAFFLBRANBSTRIE - EFIROVELEWARKRIEBHOER -

Following HKAS 20, government grants spent on the purchase of fixed assets/capital expenditure are initially recorded as Deferred Capital Funds and subsequently
recognised as income in alignment with the depreciation charge of the related assets. The balance in Deferred Capital Funds represents the net asset value of the grant
supported assets.

S|P BEHEERIFE20% 0 AREEAEEENELMAINBFHERDBSLHR/BRLEEFES  WHRANAHEESEFNENSREDBRIN - EFE  BEEFES
BER RN ENEENFEEE -
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

EEHREEHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
BHZE2018F6H30HLLFE

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Balance at 1 July 2016

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Inter-fund transfers

Balance at 30 June 2017

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Inter-fund transfers

Balance at 30 June 2018

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
Balance at 1 July 2016

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Inter-fund transfers

Balance at 30 June 2017

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
Inter-fund transfers

Balance at 30 June 2018

(BAFBoTat)
201657 818458k
FEAREEUES
BRER
2017568308158
FEAREEU
EEE

2018F 68308 #56%

(AFETat)
2016578184585
FEAREBUE
R
2017568308458
FEAREEUES
B

2018F68308#5E5

The notes on pages 28 to 124 form part of the financial statements.

DUBINE28EE 1248 2 MSERAFRFRE 2 — 8617 -

Consolidated #2&

Restricted Funds ~ UGC Funds  Other Funds
(note 10) (note 11) (note 12) Total
BEEE HEZES HinH®E .
(F$5E£10) (BftsE11) (Fft5E12) it
2,374,423 1,963,456 1,791,658 6,129,537
(183,385) 83,613 475,377 375,605
545,617 4,569 (550,186) -
2,736,655 2,051,638 1,716,849 6,505,142
(150,592) (134,621) 608,094 322,881
540,787 (31,703) (509,084) -
3,126,850 1,885,314 1,815,859 6,828,023

University K&

Restricted Funds ~ UGC Funds ~ Other Funds
(note 10) (note 11) (note 12) Total
BEES HEEES Hih &S
(Fg5£10) (Big5E11) (Fig5E12) 5t
2,190,916 1,963,456 1,166,219 5,320,591
(183,385) 83,613 499,243 399,471
558,794 4,569 (563,363) -
2,566,325 2,051,638 1,102,099 5,720,062
(150,592) (134,621) 541,880 256,667
545,762 (31,703) (514,059) -
2,961,495 1,885,314 1,129,920 5,976,729
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
HZE2018F6H30HLLFE

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Operating Activities
Surplus before Taxation
Adjustments for:

Depreciation
Finance Costs

Interest Income

Net Realised and Unrealised Gain
on Investment Portfolio

(Reversal of)/Impairment Loss on
Investments in Subsidiaries

Share of Loss of an Associate
Share of Losses of Joint Ventures
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets

Grants transfer from
Deferred Capital Funds

Foreign Exchange Loss

Net Surplus before
Changes in Working Capital

Increase in Accounts Receivable
and Prepayments

Decrease in Inventories
Increase in Receipts in Advance

Increase/(Decrease) in
Accounts and Other Payables

Increase in Provision for
Employee Benefits

Increase in Employee Benefits Assets

(Decrease)/Increase in
Deferred Income

Cash Generated from/(Used in)
Operations

Tax Paid

China Corporate Income Tax Paid

Net Cash Generated from/(Used in)
Operating Activities

(MAFETat)

EEEE
FRIRBIARER
FEUTNIES:
ne
ER
FIRBA
BIERAREIRN
REEEFINS
MiEB N B (RERE
BO)/rEEE

IR N TREE
BIEEERTRE
HEBTEEEZEE

B8
BIEEAERE ZHEE

INIBIERIESIR

EEESEER]
PERER

FESBRIE R TR FRIRZ
120

BFEZEY
FAUGRIR ZIE70

FEISBRTRZ
1BI0/ (R

STt EZ
1870

ST iefEREZIZN

SBIEIIAZ
O

EFEEZ
IRERNORL)

SRR
S PEIEEMSR

2 EEZ
FIRERN (ML)

Note
Bt

8.1

30

Consolidated #2&

University A2

2018 2017 2018 2017
312,629 381,141 250,510 402,822
488,494 468,759 449,908 425,670

6,441 7,149 6,441 7,149

(89,541) (81,041) (75,389) (68,558)
(173,932) (318,225) (172,407) (317,254)
- - (2,697) 755

47 772 - -

2,411 1,455 - -
976 454 690 287
(366,027) (325,736) (366,027) (325,736)

3,117 1,641 3,117 1,641

184,615 136,369 94,146 126,776

(22,456) (37,888) (77,006) (37,481)
835 249 - -

17,647 22,108 19,273 16,752

131,865 (203,004) 217,434 (208,975)
18,599 12,179 11,899 7,987
(287) (312) (287) (312)
(26,889) 269 (12,014) 11,517
303,929 (70,030) 253,445 (83,736)

(3,452) (1,797) (3,452) (1,797)
300,477 (71,827) 249,993 (85,533)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONT’D)

IRERERE)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018
BHZE2018F6H30HLLEE

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Investing Activities
Payment for Purchase of Fixed Assets
Investments in Subsidiaries
New Loans to Staff
Loans Repaid by Staff

Proceeds from Disposal of an
Associate

Net Cash (Paid)/Received
on Purchase/Sale of Equity
and Trading Securities

Proceeds from Sale/Redemption
of Financial Assets

Interest Received

Purchase of Held-to-maturity
Debt Securities

Net Decrease/(Increase) in Short-term
Deposits with over Three Months
to Maturity when Placed

Net Cash Generated from/(Used in)
Investing Activities

Financing Activities
Subventions Received

Bank Loans Drawn Down for
On-lending to Staff

Repayment of Bank Loans for
On-lending to Staff

Repayment of Bank Loans
Repayment of Government Loans

Finance Costs Paid for
Loans and Borrowings

Net Cash (Used in)/Generated from
Financing Activities

Net Increase/(Decrease) in
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate
Changes

Cash and Cash Equivalents
at 1 July

Cash and Cash Equivalents
at 30 June

(AF87Tst)

REEED

BEETEE

HWBEAIZRE

S IBER

HHSER

af— %ﬁé"/}__\z
RS

EEH“ZEEZ 5.2
/?({—_“:H)
IFTSFRIR

EBBOSHEEL

PR{SFRIR
BIFE
BEIFE R

{BF5E5
=BR&ERIFZ

FHRTS R

PN (SBI0)

REEENLZ

FRERN (L)

EEED

BIEER
BETFIHEZ
RITER
EEEETHHME 2
RITER
ERRITER
ESBTER

SN
UEER

MEEENZ

FPIREORL)RA

BERIREHEY2

BN (FD)

HEZREAT) 2

§/§

RERIREFBM2Z

FRES

RERIBEFEYZ

FHHEE

The notes on pages 28 to 124 form part of the financial statements.

DIEIRE28EF124B 2 MIERETHFRE 2 —

2pin °

Note Consolidated #& University K&

Bt 2018 2017 2018 2017
(334,812) (568,763) (302,564) (537,461)
- - (700) (150)
(940) (1,240) (940) (1,240)

5,820 3,490 5,820 3,490

1,321 - - -

(28,066) 236,787 (29,591) 235,816

401,701 434,868 401,701 434,868

90,178 83,501 76,036 70,950

- (182,324) - (182,324)

148,417 (121,084) 149,438 (121,687)

283,619 (114,765) 299,200 (97,738)

220,467 262,960 202,647 256,878

940 1,240 940 1,240

(5,820) (3,490) (5,820) (3,490)

(291,400) (47,250) (291,400) (47,250)
(44,141) (44,140) (44,141) (44,140)

(6,441) (7,149) (6,441) (7,149)

(126,395) 162,171 (144,215) 156,089

457,701 (24,421) 404,978 (27,182)

(2,351) (942) (2,351) (942)

557,899 583,262 436,574 464,698

25 1,013,249 557,899 839,201 436,574
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B PSRk R M 5E

1.

Significant Accounting Policies
EESFTIER

1.1

1.1

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements also comply with the Statement of Recommended Practice
for the UGC-funded Institutions (“SORP”) issued by the University Grants Committee (“UGC”) in Hong Kong. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Consolidated Entity and the University are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Consolidated Entity. Note 1.3 provides information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Consolidated Entity for the current and prior

accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

SREHR

FPBHREEEEBEENAS( "SEEAS . ) BMMEERN (SBUHRSER) ("UHRSER . ) (LHRBREME
BANENMFHRSHER - (SBSSHER) ("S5ERL ) RERE - REBADSHRU)MURABHUBENESS( "HE
2. )RMHNHESEERNEZZEERINREMRE - RESEREIRNEZSSIBERMZEIIWT

SEHEABERMSERGCREN ST HESRENATHIER RN B RSERREIEE - MisE1.3IHRERE
FRELERMELNSSTHRESEN  SLBHERMERSEERNRUESSTHBNHFHREP -
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67 1.2

67 1.2

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 comprise the University and its subsidiaries (together referred

to as the “Consolidated Entity”) and the Consolidated Entity’s interests in associates and joint ventures on the basis set out in note 1.5.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise stated in the
accounting policies set out below. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenditure. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets

and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources

of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 37.

UHRERNRBEESE

REUBRIBEAREMEWBADI (BB "R568. ) MU2018F6H308REEDNHHREBIRBHIZE1.55RBNR SRS
BENIYREENT ZERMIREH

BFRTIXZEHNERARBRABI  FUBRREBZELMAERRBEELE - REZSVCYLTRSEANY T REFEZEIEREF
LE ~ BETRERE - MZEHE » Gt RBREFEERNERARMPRNVEE » BE - WARFAZNEER 32551 REH
RBRRDORBBEERRSEHRCEEHBER NESENSBEEMARMIEL @ MSHRMASESIEBAREMREMLERIRRSHE
EERBERBEMFEAENER - SKRERASBRIRZFEET °

FE BT RIBRIRR SHERET - WEEHESTHE
RERHE - BIERIESTERE MK LR HR R

08

FEFHZFEINAE - RIBREIRNSRZAERSD ; WXEEH

IR
o

BREIEBERAU B RSER S LR AU B RREEAZEN ARG ERNEERNR ZEZRIR - RHFFE37PET5H °
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67 The University has a total of 7 directly held principal subsidiaries which can be broadly classified into four types according to their principal activities as follows:

FREEFBECEHEENMEBAT @ SLMBATREREHAND KW FOE:

Principal Activity Subsidiaries
EEER MWEBAT
(i) Education College of Professional and Continuing Education Limited
L2 SXRFEHEERBRAT
Hong Kong Community College
BSBE L2

(i) Research

i

(iii) Intra-group support
frefemalE

(iv) Others
Hits

PolyU Research Limited
BARARAT

Campus Facilities Management Company Limited

REREEIEERAT

Hotel ICON Limited
KEBEBIRAT

PolyU Technology and Consultancy Co. Limited
BARNKRBERRAT

PolyU Enterprise Plus Limited
MEAEEBRAT

For the preparation of consolidated financial statements, the income and expenditure of subsidiaries with principal activities as education, research and intra-
group support are consolidated to the respective income and expenditure lines following the University’s accounting practice. For other subsidiaries under (iv)
above which are auxiliary operations to the University, their income is consolidated to Other Income, whereas expenditure is consolidated to the corresponding
lines (mainly Management and General, Premises and Related Expenses and Other Activities) under Institutional Support. Expenditure relating to cost of operation
of the subsidiaries concerned is classified under Other Activities.

Total income and expenditure of the subsidiaries for the year are $1,595.6 million (2017: $1,431.3 million) and $1,530.9 million (2017: $1,453.7 million) respectively.

RIWHIFEHBRE DHE  TRGS BN ESATEEFNMBAINRARMZSIZASNE S H VR FRESIAMBREPOBATIFERIRE U L&
BR(VNEMMBAT  BREEBR/ARSBNMANES  HIWA RS SIRESIARMRAMRRSZE FTHRZIRE(EZREER—RIRE  RERBHEESZ RS
) - SLHMBATNEEFHET SRR N EMSEN0FZIAE

FFE MBAIEHRBIANARFEZDBIR15.956/875(2017:14.313f8870) 5K15.3098870(2017:14.53 78 7T) ©
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1.3

Changes in Accounting Policies

BEEE OB

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of the Consolidated Entity
and the University.

None of these impact on the accounting policies of the Consolidated Entity and the University. However, additional disclosure has
been included in note 25 to satisfy the new disclosure requirements introduced by the amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash
flows: Disclosure initiative, which require entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in

liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

The Consolidated Entity and the University has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

SEEIABERHZBERGSERSREN ST HIBEBEREMNYFIRSHEINSET

SUEEBFIASHIRERRARNSHAPERBHE - AWM » MzE25EBFERIMEEER  UREEBEFERIER  BEREXR -
REESTEISSTSINBUFTIREEROK » REESTEI KR EBRBIRMIRE (YU HRXEASEDNONETHEE Z2EEES - BER
BREEEFIFIREEE -

fRERRR AR AR FWETRE S FEERDREPZHSTERNZEE -
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1.4

1.4

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Consolidated Entity. The Consolidated Entity controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. When assessing whether the Consolidated Entity has power, only substantive rights (held by the Consolidated Entity

and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

When the Consolidated Entity loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in Income and Expenditure Statement. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 1.6) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or joint venture

(see note 1.5).

In the University’s Statement of Financial Position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note
1.9.2), unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

BT

WEATBIEFREREHN 28 - 5RoR2SH

FERNESEMESNERSEHYEOR @ WERHNZERNRNITEHF
O3k - ARTEZERZRSE/ES - £ EREER

SERON  REERGFECRRAEMSISMTENESHRED -

FERBREATNIES LRI BEEGREBARL  DEREUBRRPIREEHE - ‘E?/—\ EAESEREVERER  XHRIRE
M8 MRRIGERAERZMELENREIRNET » PEREGRESYHRRIG RN - 75“%? AEBA2 S P E £ VR BIR RSB0V
HEDARARBIRNZERE - EEHBLUREBBBETRERERR °

BRERES—WEAINZEHIRE - FULEREREZMBL TN » WK RIBEDRIQUNZNIBE RS H A
BRIEHIEEBMRBNETERR MDA AEEER  MZBRRRATREENBEDNAAEE(RME.6)50 - WEE » #
RBIIBEBIRER —HENINEE LT OIRA (RHIEET.5) o

EFRNUBRRED - RREABIELE NESREREABIFHENLEER)N - WBAD2EER MNANRHEmnEE
DIRE (RMIEE1.9.2) o
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1.5

1.5

Associates and Joint Ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Consolidated Entity or the University has significant influence, but not control or joint control,

over its management, including participation in the financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Consolidated Entity or the University and other parties contractually agree to share

control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Consolidated Entity’s share of the acquisition-date fair
values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post
acquisition change in the Consolidated Entity’s share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment
(see note 1.9). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Consolidated Entity’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the Consolidated Income and Expenditure Statement, whereas
the Consolidated Entity’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investee’s other comprehensive income is recognised in
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

YN

»
al
X
D>

il

S=EN
HENIRBHRESBIPINIUKEEEFHEEARNENER  RESRAEMBFRIEEWRIRE @ BIAEH NS EHEIERE -

GERTY LRI BIRGRAANREMSSESHEAED ZHEZERIE 0 REBZIBLRIHFEEZRER -

Duu

MENTNEELNTZREEGRECUBRXEREREHENE @ RN ERAARKFEE AIBERERARFEENLERR)
o IRIBIEIEEHE » RESGUMANE @ RiGSEEIGRRESENEBYBFEEANEBEMBLERENA (WH)NEERF
L - FERNGSERRBGRIRES FEERENBRNVES R BB EBEFLEREE (R 9) o {LYTEINEE BB M A
BNE2  FARSEBEBIGRIEESHINBRRFREFEUREWHEGEDRIFE B RIEAES - MiRERFBSRIEESH
EEHEENIBERRFREBIEE DRESEBRERAMES -



34

PolyU Financial Report 2017/18

1.5

1.5

Associates and Joint Ventures (Cont’d)

When the Consolidated Entity’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate or the joint venture, the Consolidated Entity’s
interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Consolidated Entity has
incurred legal or constructive obligation or made payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Consolidated Entity’s
interest is the carrying amount of the investment under the equity method together with the Consolidated Entity’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Consolidated Entity’s net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Consolidated Entity and its associates and joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Consolidated Entity’s interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in the Income and Expenditure Statement.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or vice versa, retained investment is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases, when the Consolidated Entity
ceases to have significant influence over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date when significant influence or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and

this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 1.6).

In the University’s Statement of Financial Position, investments in associates and joint ventures are stated at cost less impairment

losses (see note 1.9.2), unless classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

BErIREERT(1B)

SREREMEQNTNCENINERIGHEEBBEFEGES @ ROBNERANBES - RIFHFERARRIRIGESREEEN
HESENRR/NER > SAARSE—FEDEE - filtms %T/D\"% FTGHRIREE N - DIRBED LS ENREREE ' MR
ERBNGRERREZMENTNCELNT 2RISR  MAFREZ—ED -

REBREBENTREEADETRIMELNREIRBLE @ DIZFERRTGIRIISE SRR LRIEH ; BHEREIRGERT
EERSELIRAE  SLABIRBEISRRERZIRIBAE

WRHMEBNINRENREELENRE(RZIR) » RENRERS NS EHE - RESGUBIZBRISHENER - EIEH
RIERT @ BRCEAEBHMEAIFEAYENANEHBEFSENIR  REEERKRIREEN LRSI - BIHEEN
BHEAEWZRIEANES - FRAEZEAZENNHE LGRS B REBRNRISE SRS MAEEREST - MZBRERR DR
BENIBEBOANBE(RMEET.6)

EARNIHBIRREP  FRERFBFLE HEESREFLERFFLENDERR)I  MERIRESERTZREBLUMAIF
EBERIMR(BHEET.9.2)
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7r 1.6

77 1.6

Other Investments in Debt and Equity Securities

The Consolidated Entity’s and the University’s policies for investments in debt and equity securities, other than investments in

subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is determined
that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an
active market for an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets. Cost
includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below. These investments are subsequently accounted

for as follows, depending on their classification:

@ Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are recognised in
the Income and Expenditure Statement as incurred. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement.

(b) Dated debt securities that the Consolidated Entity and/or the University have the positive ability and intention to hold to
maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated at amortised cost less impairment

losses (see note 1.9.1).

(© Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted market price in an active market for an identical instrument and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1.9.1).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Consolidated Entity commits to purchase/sell the investments or they

expire.

HWEBRRABSRE

FRITEAT ~ MEAIRSELAIREI  REBNEHBRKRABSFREBRUT :

BEBRRAZBFRENIBRANERE @ BIZEHRZERIE - [RIFERERF ZANBEERSERAE  MANEBEREEEE
FNEERTEHSPHRENEAIFEDBIBNSERMNEE - FRIEUTBLI - MABEBERZME - HRILFREIR
BRFERBRRIME » IZATS VIR :

@) RIFEENESRE  SRERMBDEE » MIETHEBRZMFIIRIGIIRBAES - AABERSIKEEEEHE 0 M
RIS ERIIRIE IRIBATESS

(b) RelRR/AFREEARGEFTZINEBNERHEHESRE  SRERFHEIMES - FEEIHESSRBBEME
ORI ERIB AR (R MIEE1.9.1) »

(©) REMBEBHRNEEMIZHBNRAESRINE » SHEISFIEELABIE @ BRI RZR AL N A 055 B 5 B8 (
SHIEE1.9.1) o
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1.7 Fixed Assets
Fixed assets, other than construction in progress, are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1.9.2).
The cost of a fixed asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after fixed assets have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the Income and Expenditure Statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to
be obtained from the use of the fixed asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

1.7 BEEE
RER TN BEBEDILMAIDBREITE RBERBEYR(BEHIEET.9.2)
BEMABEENEBREQEEEFEEENRTRIBIEUBEANEEER - EAEEECRNEER - HRSZWHEBERIIE
BEFEINZRIBIOR - W02 R RN UBNIZEEEERRARNICBENE » ZRZRERCRBERIBMA -

77 Investments in dated debt securities due within one year and securities held for trading are classified as Current Financial Assets (note 22) while dated debt securities

with maturity over one year are classified as Non-current Financial Assets (note 21) in the Statement of Financial Position.

EMBIRRERN  R—EANZBNBREBESRENFIFEBENBZSFLERERANDETNEE (iI:22)  MBE—FREBNEHREFESRENRERIFRDE
B E (PfUEE21) ©
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1.7

1.7

Fixed Assets (Cont’d)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of fixed asset are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement on the date

of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight

line method over the following estimated useful lives:

- Buildings

Building Structures situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 40 years after the date of completion.

Building Services and Equipment are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 20 years after the date of completion where the assets are situated.

- Furniture, Equipment & Fittings 3 - 20 Years

- Library Collections 5 - 10 Years

BEEE(18)

BESILESTEEMEENERREEMSFREEENRBEZENERETE @ WRKEESN L EE B R RIEAES °
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1.7

8r 1.8

1.7

8 1.8

Fixed Assets (Cont’d)
Leasehold land granted by the Governments of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”) and the People’s

Republic of China (“PRC”) for usage by the Consolidated Entity is recorded at a nominal amount.

Where parts of a fixed asset item have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the

parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress represents buildings and other equipment under construction and is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see note 1.9.2), and is not depreciated. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of fixed assets

when completed and ready for use.

Leased Assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Consolidated Entity determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a
series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

BEEE(TE)

BEBRBTHEIARPEARANE( "6 ) EMEEMMHIFESEERNESTMS YA BEEIE -
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87 The University owns two campus buildings and a teaching hotel which are leased to Hong Kong Community College and Hotel ICON Limited, subsidiaries of the
University, respectively. These leases are classified as operating leases while the buildings are classified as leased assets.
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1.8

1.8

Leased Assets (Cont’d)

(@) Classification of assets leased to the Consolidated Entity

Assets that are held by the Consolidated Entity under leases which transfer to the Consolidated Entity substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially

all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Consolidated Entity are classified as operating leases.

(b) Assets Held for Use in Operating Leases

Where the Consolidated Entity leases out assets under operating leases, the assets are included in the Statement of Financial
Position according to their nature and, where applicable, are depreciated in accordance with the Consolidated Entity’s
depreciation policies. Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
1.9.2. Revenue arising from operating leases is recognised in accordance with the revenue recognition policies as set out
in note 1.18.7.

() Operating Lease Charges

Where the Consolidated Entity has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to the Income and Expenditure Statement in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to the Income and Expenditure Statement in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.
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1.9 Impairment of Assets
1.9.1  Impairment of Investments in Debt and Equity Securities and Other Receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other current and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Consolidated Entity about

one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument

below its cost.
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and recognised as follows:

() For investments in associates and joint ventures accounted for under the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements (see note 1.5), the impairment loss is measured by comparing the recoverable amount of
the investment with its carrying amount in accordance with note 1.9.2. The impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount in accordance with
note 1.9.2.
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1.g

1.9

Impairment of Assets (Cont’d)

1.9.1
(b)
()
BEREBEGE)
1.9.1

Impairment of Investments in Debt and Equity Securities and Other Receivables (Cont'd)

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset where the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses for

equity securities carried at cost are not reversed.

For accounts receivable and other financial assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due status, and
have not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics

similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through the Income and Expenditure Statement. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised

in prior years.
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1.9

Impairment of Assets (Cont’d)

1.9.2

Impairment of Other Assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

(@)  Fixed Assets; and

(b)  Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures in the University’s Statement of Financial Position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

An impairment loss is recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment loss recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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1.9

1.9

Impairment of Assets (Cont’d)

1.9.2 Impairment of Other Assets (Cont’d)
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined had

no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the Income and
Expenditure Statement in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in

the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal

occurs.
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1.11 Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1.9.1), except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

1.12 Interest-bearing Borrowings
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

1.13 Accounts Payable
Accounts payable are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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1.14

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee Benefits

1.15.1 Short Term Employee Benefits and Contributions to Defined Contribution Retirement Schemes

Salaries, annual bonuses, staff leave entitlements, contract gratuity, contributions to defined contribution retirement
schemes and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

1.15.2 Defined Benefit Retirement Scheme Obligations

The Consolidated Entity’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement schemes is calculated separately for
each scheme by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the present value and the fair value of any scheme
assets is deducted. The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the
calculation results in a benefit to the Consolidated Entity, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the scheme or reductions in future contributions to the scheme.
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1.15 Employee Benefits (Cont’d)

1.15.2

Defined Benefit Retirement Scheme Obligations (Cont’d)

Service cost and net interest expense/income on the net defined benefit liability/asset are recognised in the
Income and Expenditure Statement. Current service cost is measured as the increase in the present value
of the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the current period. When the benefits of a
scheme are changed, or when a scheme is curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related to past service
by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised as an expense in the Income and Expenditure
Statement at the earlier of when the scheme amendment or curtailment occurs and when related restructuring
costs or termination benefits are recognised. Net interest expense/income for the period is determined by applying
the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the reporting period to the
net defined benefit liability/asset. The discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on high quality
corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Consolidated Entity’s obligations. Since
there are limited issues of high quality corporate bonds in Hong Kong Dollar, the yields of Exchange Fund Notes

and Government Bonds denominated in Hong Kong Dollar are used as a reference to set the discount rate.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement schemes are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. Remeasurements comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on scheme assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset) and any change in the effect of the asset ceiling

(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset).
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1.15

Employee Benefits (Cont’d)
1.15.3 Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Consolidated Entity can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income Tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax which is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Consolidated Entity or the University has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also

disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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1.18 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Consolidated Entity and the revenue and cost, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement as follows:

9r 1.18.1

Government Subventions

Matching grants are recognised as income when the grants have been received or are receivable from the University
Grants Committee (“UGC"). Other government subventions are initially recognised as Deferred Income when they are

received.

Recurrent grants other than earmarked grants for specific purposes are recognised as income to the extent of the related
expenditure incurred plus any such grants, which are received in excess of the related expenditure incurred but are
required to be transferred to General and Development Reserve Fund and Research Reserve in the reporting period in

accordance with prevailing UGC guidelines.

Earmarked grants for specific purposes are recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditure incurred during

the reporting period.

Recurrent grants and earmarked grants for specific purpose spent on capital expenditure are initially recorded as Deferred
Capital Funds and recognised as income over the useful lives of the related assets when the assets are put into use, to

the extent of the related depreciation expenses incurred for that period.

Government grants in the form of leasehold land are recognised as income at a nominal amount.
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97 Apart from following the HKFRSs, the University is also required to observe UGC Notes on Procedures governing the use of respective grants and treatment for any
excess/shortfall of grants over expenditure. In accordance with such prevailing guidelines, surplus Block Grants and Supplementary Grants/Adjustments received from
UGC and not yet spent at the year end date are transferred to the General and Development Reserve Fund (included in UGC Funds (note 11)). Any surplus of Earmarked
Grants for Specific Purposes can only be carried forward after approval is received from UGC.
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1.18

Revenue Recognition (Cont’d)
1.18.2 Tuition and Other Fees

Tuition and other fees are recognised on an accrual basis over the duration of the courses. Unearned tuition fees are
treated as Receipts in Advance.

1.18.3 Interest Income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

1.18.4 Dividend Income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

1.18.5 Donations

Donations in cash and cash equivalents or other investment instruments for general purposes are recognised as income

when it is probable that they will be received.

Donations in cash and cash equivalents or other investment instruments for specific purposes are initially recognised
as Deferred Income when received. They are recognised as income to the extent of the related expenditure incurred

during the reporting period.
Donations of fixed assets are recognised as income in the period when the depreciation of related fixed assets is charged
to the Income and Expenditure Statement.

1.18.6 Service Income

Service income including income from hotel operations is recognised at the time when the relevant services are rendered.
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1.18

10r

1.20

1.20

Revenue Recognition (Cont’d)
1.18.7 Rental Income from Operating Leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in the Income

and Expenditure Statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
1.18.8 Sales Income

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered to the customers which is taken to be the point in time when the
customers have accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards of ownership. Unearned revenue is treated as

Receipts in Advance.

Research Expenditure

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and

understanding, is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement.
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107 Rental income is mainly derived from the two campus buildings and a teaching hotel (note 1.8) which are leased to Hong Kong Community College and Hotel ICON
Limited respectively.

FREZZBDBILAIRKEE 82 RBEBFRADBETEBR LBRAEBEERAIUEEZUWA




HR# RS 2017/18 51

1.20 Translation of Foreign Currencies (Cont’d)

1.21

1.20

1.21

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that

are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. The assets and liabilities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

and accumulated in Fund Balances.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognised in Fund Balances which
relate to that foreign operation is reclassified from Fund Balances to the Income and Expenditure Statement when profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing

costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are
in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

INEBIRE (H8)

DIMERENIZBE LM ASTENIEEREERERE @ DIRRSBHNERRS - DINERSBMIZAABEIIRNFEEEERS
& AR RBEEEEBNERRE -

EBBIINESERENEEIBORZBNEXRERBE - HEERSBERIZGEEBNERRERBE - MELNEREHRE
BUNHRPEDRAEELERRRE °

SLETBIRINEERER  EECHRBERBNEHEIBERERRERD LSRR THECRRENEREWZIRIR -

BEMA
EERWE  BEiSTER O UE2HRERASNILESEMEENEENTERER LN » HEEMSIREE LR
IRZH -

BREEREBEME —ONBENFTEEEEERS  BEMFEENEEERNRERENY LEMMBRENLERTIFETH
BRI E AL o & A”QW S ERNRERZNIHEMBANBAREDERTIEPLENTME - EERAEZEFENFLEES
1g °
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1.22

1.22

Related Parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Consolidated Entity if that person:
(i) has control or joint control of the Consolidated Entity;
(i) has significant influence over the Consolidated Entity; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Consolidated Entity or the Consolidated Entity’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Consolidated Entity if any of the following conditions applies:
(i) The entity and the Consolidated Entity are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary

and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group

of which the other entity is a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Consolidated Entity or an

entity related to the Consolidated Entity.
(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services to the
Consolidated Entity or to the Consolidated Entity’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that

person in their dealings with the entity.

BEATLT
@ FZBALIHESUTEREE  ZRATIELRREMERIFERDBRE
(i) HiRSIREEEHI B S IEHIRE
(i) HWIRCREEEAREND ; X
(i) RIFCHRUGCRELAIZEIEEEEBAS -
(b) BEENSSUTNEUGRE @ LGRS B2
(i) FBERGESER/R—EEME ' I8 T  MEATRERMBATSBRILIEERDE
(i) X-EBRAZBRZMENINGENLT  ARZ—ELMEEENEZHELTHSEN

(=3VAN

QII

(il  MREEBIEIRE-—F=H2E5ENT -

ivy, E-BRAE=DZ6ENT MR—EBRRZE=TTZHERT -

(v  ZEERFCENRIRSERRERE ZEEBNMRNE BB S -

Vi) ZEESZ LS ()IEAMREZ A LTRGBS o

(i)  ElE@)()BEAMREZATHERECEANENARERAZBRINT ZEEEIEEBAS -
(vii)  ZBEENZEEMBEBNNETMERFESENIRCEBEAIRUEREEASHRE -
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2.

Income and Expenditure by Segment
DEBWAN R 2 H

Disclosures regarding segment reporting are included as a requirement of the SORP and are not designed to fully comply with

the requirements of HKFRS 8, Operating segments.

ﬁ?ﬂ? DRSS KBHNEN EREHNESERROVERERIOVREMINNANGER @ MFTEHESBUFRSERESR - &
EDEPOIRE o

In accordance with SORP, the University discloses an analysis of income and expenditure recognised by its reported segments
that are defined by source of funding, namely UGC-funded Activities and Non-UGC-funded Activities.
REBEHESERRMROVEZRER 0 ABARBRSUESHIRMEIDND LU > BIAESENTHRIFNESENSEHINZ
A

(@)  UGC-funded Activities
HEZEMTEE

UGC-funded Activities include programmes and research projects supported by UGC grants. UGC grants represent the

major funding source of the University and the core roles of the University are to support the UGC-funded activities.

HESEMTHREHESEPNRERNTNED) - HESNHERRARFIBZEETRE ' MASZNTIZABEIRHRER
EEI]/%@J°

(b)  Non-UGC-funded Activities
ERELEHED

Non-UGC-funded Activities represent other activities funded by sources other than UGC, including self-financed funding,
donations and grants from government agencies other than UGC. Some of these Non-UGC-funded Activities are UGC
fundable, e.g. research projects which can complement teaching and learning and student activities for the benefit of UGC-

funded students. Some of them are non-UGC fundable e.g. self-financed programmes.

FUESEMTHNRAESENLUIINNEMTS)  HESKRBEERRBEST « BRABURMES NI TS
B Hp— WSS EMTHITRAUESES ' HINHAESEN2ENNS  BBRBLFHERORINEE -
FIN-LIHESEMER AT EERUETEE - HINBERE °
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Income and Expenditure by Segment (Cont’d)

DEBUIAN e 32 H (#8)

(b)

Non-UGC-funded Activities (Cont’d)
EREEMEH(E)

The University has guidelines and policies governing the operation of Non-UGC-funded Activities to avoid cross-
subsidisation of UGC resources to Non-UGC-funded Activities as stipulated in the UGC Notes on Procedures. Income and
expenditure of these activities are accounted for by sources of funding with direct costs identified and supported by the

related funding sources.

ABEFESIRNREEIFNESENTEH > MEREIRAESEFEEMINEHESNERBRBIOIFNESENTH
BB o SLEBNINZ IDIZHEE RN » EEEMAEDREBREZRR °

Teaching and research expenses for Non-UGC-funded activities includes teaching staff cost allocated according to the
standard rates of academic staff for self-financed programmes and research staff cost incurred for each research project.

SFFHNESEMTENH RN HZ BEEEREPUREL A ENBMBETFH - MREERTTIRE BROTFEE
SF -

Overhead expenses incurred by central administrative departments and supporting units, including Library, Central
Computing Facilities, Other Academic Services, Management and General, and Student and General Educational Services,
are allocated according to staff functions and any related cost incurred for relevant Non-UGC-funded Activities.

PITHEFIR ZES(I(BRIEEEMR - PREKRE - HHBRE  SIER—RBEERBER —BABERE)NEEERR
IRIZEZ S NS R R E @SN EEMBRINE R -

Premises and Related Expenses (i.e. overhead cost of accommodation) is based on pre-determined percentage of the
income or project expenditures of Non-UGC-funded Activities, with reference to market rental and the related facility

management expenses.

WEREEAZEIRSHENEEER) ZRBIFNESENEHNNNNIRERAZOFELRMEE @ SEMISHERE
HEEER -

The University may waive the overhead expenses for these non-UGC-funded activities that bring academic value and

enhance the development of the University.

AETHBRIWMESMEETEDEASERNIFNESETDNEEER °
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2. Income and Expenditure by Segment (Cont’d)

DEBUIN R 32 H (#8)

2.1 Consolidated Income and Expenditure by Segment

fm & B2 D 8BS

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
Income
Government Subventions
Tuition and Other Fees
Interest and Investment Gain
Donations and Benefactions
Other Income

Expenditure

Teaching, Learning and Research
Teaching and Research
Library
Central Computing Facilities
Other Academic Services

Institutional Support
Management and General

Premises and
Related Expenses

Student and General
Educational Services

Other Activities

Finance Costs

(Deficit)/Surplus from Operations
Share of Loss of an Associate

Share of Losses of Joint Ventures
(Deficit)/Surplus before Taxation
Income Tax

(Deficit)/Surplus for the Year

Other Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Attributable to:
Transfer from Restricted Funds
Transfer from UGC Funds

Transfer to Other Funds
Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

(AT ETTst)
WA

K
BERHNE
M RAREIZS
BRBRIER
HAbIIA

Fis2

HE  BF KA
HER B
BE8E

chIREFERIE
HAZNEIRES

HETE

EIER—IAS

RER
BEIREs2
BER—ME
HBRE

HithiE2)

MHER
BB (18 RER

[EIEBE A TRESE
EIEEERTE

PRARRI(ESIE)/BRER

F{SR

AEE(BB)/BER
FERA

Hith @IS

FER
iRz BN

SRR

BEEE
HEBEE
HinEE

FER
BEEUES

2018
Non-UGC-Funded Activities
IFHESEENEE
UGC- Self-
Funded financing  Research Donation Other
Activities Activities  Activities Activities Activities Sub-total Total
HES BaRE B FrSER Hith
EaYEE) JBED JGED JGE) JGED &t 5t
3,424,951 15,315 174,584 - 29,466 219,365 3,644,316
836,259 1,524,250 . . - 1,524,250 2,360,509
88,915 149,010 1,292 24,161 95 174,558 263,473
- 1,518 34,704 174,369 - 210,591 210,591
31,617 765,614 76,178 1,947 41 843,780 875,397
4,381,742 2,455,707 286,758 200,477 29,602 2,972,544 7,354,286
2,596,629 923,310 326,215 50,833 3,654 1,304,012 3,900,641
137,058 43,878 - 280 - 44,158 181,216
167,752 58,460 . . . 58,460 226,212
286,413 77,300 14,060 6,045 4,300 101,705 388,118
254,005 131,190 8,609 3,616 - 143,415 397420
890,566 304,701 22,800 25,164 140 352,805 1,243,371
187,637 106,999 - 25,931 21,629 154,559 342,196
5424 346,629 1,531 - - 348,160 353,584
4,525,484 1,992,467 373,215 111,869 29,723 2,507,274 7,032,758
- 6,441 - - - 6,441 6,441
4,525,484 1,998,908 373,215 111,869 29,723 2,513,715 7,039,199
(143,742) 456,799 (86,457) 88,608 (121) 458,829 315,087
- (47) - - - (47) 47)
- (2,411) - - - 2,411) (2,411)
(143,742) 454341  (86,457) 88,608 (121) 456,371 312,629
- (3,136) - - - (3,136) (3,136)
(143,742) 451,205  (86,457) 88,608 (121) 453,235 309,493
9,121 1,153 3,114 - - 4,267 13,388
(134,621) 452,358 (83,343) 88,608 (121) 457,502 322,881
- (18,017)  (96,219) (36,235) (121)  (150,592)  (150,592)
(134,621) . . . . - (134,621)
- 470,375 12,876 124,843 - 608,094 608,094
(134,621) 452,358 (83,343) 88,608 (121) 457,502 322,881
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2. Income and Expenditure by Segment (Cont’d)

DI 32 H (18)

2.1 Consolidated Income and Expenditure by Segment (Cont’d)

i & 880 BBLZ (18)

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
Income
Government Subventions
Tuition and Other Fees
Interest and Investment Gain
Donations and Benefactions

Other Income

Expenditure

Teaching, Learning and Research
Teaching and Research
Library
Central Computing Facilities
Other Academic Services

Institutional Support
Management and General
Premises and

Related Expenses

Student and General
Educational Services

Other Activities

Finance Costs

Surplus/(Deficit) from Operations =
Share of Loss of an Associate

Share of Losses of Joint Ventures
Surplus/(Deficit) before Taxation
Income Tax

Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year

Other Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Attributable to:
Transfer from Restricted Funds
Transfer to UGC Funds

Transfer to Other Funds

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

(MUFB7Tst)
BN

IFTER
BEREfINE
FBAIRBEIS
BRRIER
HABIN

sz

HE  BBRAR
HEB KR
B
hREAELTE
H{hZNEBIRTS

HETIE
EIER—RIAS
KSR
BRI
BER—MR
HBIR
HibiEE)

UHER

FRApEIER
PSR
REEREN/(E1E)
FEA
Hih 2 Eizs

FEA
BEEUES

m

B5/(B518)

BB
WEES
yEeES
sipEs

FEA
Bz EEs

2017
Non-UGC-Funded Activities
SFHEEEMEH
UGC- Self-
Funded financing Research  Donation Other
Activities Activities Activities  Activities Activities  Syb-total Total
nES BEERE B PISER Hit

BNEH) BE) BE) )] JBEN NSt st
3,207,719 10,542 199,749 - 28,288 238,579 3,446,298
856,210 1,425,065 - - - 1,425,065 2,281,275
214,124 156,519 1,535 26,909 179 185,142 399,266

- 1,591 31,697 106,278 - 139,566 139,566

31,001 738,376 69,121 2,127 41 809,665 840,666
4,309,054 2,332,093 302,102 135,314 28,508 2,798,017 7,107,071
2,484,646 906,122 358,372 43,136 4,946 1,312,576 3,797,222
133,895 41,733 - 194 - 41,927 175,822
166,404 64,766 - - - 64,766 231,170
254,546 83,250 6,319 2,942 4,163 96,674 351,220
252,521 130,051 12,502 1,680 - 144,233 396,754
743,167 307,370 16,272 20,719 76 344,437 1,087,604
185,654 88,851 - 36,502 21,607 146,960 332,614
5,507 336,486 2,155 - - 338,641 344,148
4,226,340 1,958,629 395,620 105173 30,792 2,490,214 6,716,554
- 7,149 - - - 7,149 7,149
4,226,340 1,965,778 395,620 105,173 30,792 2,497,363 6,723,703
82,714 366,315  (93,518) 30,141  (2,284) 300,654 383,368
- (772) - - - (772) (772)
- (1,455) = - = (1,455) (1,455)

82,714 364,088  (93,518) 30,141  (2,284) 298,427 381,141
- (4,250) - - - (4,250) (4,250)

82,714 359,838  (93,518) 30,141  (2,284) 294,177 376,891
899 (628) (1,557) - - (2,185) (1,286)
83,613 359,210 (95,075) 30,141 (2,284) 291,992 375,605
- (12,333) (107,995) (60,773) (2,284)  (183,385)  (183,385)

83,613 - 83,613

- 371,543 12,920 90,914 - 475,377 475,377

83,613 359,210  (95,075) 30,141  (2,284) 291,992 375,605
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2. Income and Expenditure by Segment (Cont’d)

DEBUIN R 2 H (#8)

2.2 University Income and Expenditure by Segment

ARBD B2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAT#8755t)

Income

Government Subventions
Tuition and Other Fees
Interest and Investment Gain
Donations and Benefactions

Other Income

Expenditure

Teaching, Learning and Research
Teaching and Research
Library
Central Computing Facilities
Other Academic Services

Institutional Support
Management and General
Premises and

Related Expenses

Student and General
Educational Services

Other Activities

Finance Costs

(Deficit)/Surplus before Taxation
Income Tax
(Deficit)/Surplus for the Year

Other Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Attributable to:
Transfer from Restricted Funds
Transfer from UGC Funds

Transfer to Other Funds

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

WA
TR
BERHEMNE
MBARE2E
BRRIER
HABIIA

s
HE  BBRAG
HERFT
BEE
PREFENE
HAhZEBIRES
HETIE
EER—KIEE
RS
BEIBASZ
BER—MR
B
HihiE2)

PHER

PRARRI(E18)/BER
TS
AFE (BIB)/BER
FER

HibZ Bz
FEA

BEEUEES

BB
BEES
yEeE:
BipES

EER

Rz EEs

2018
Non-UGC-Funded Activities
SR ESER)EED
UGC- Self-
Funded financing ~ Research  Donation Other
Activities Activities  Activities  Activities Activities  Syb-total Total
e BaRE Bt FTSER Hith

EEUEE) L) L) JEEN BE) &t st
3,424,951 - 174,290 - 29,466 203,756 3,628,707
836,259 729,555 - - - 729,555 1,565,814
88,915 133,820 805 24,161 95 158,881 247,796

- - 34,704 284,369 - 319,073 319,073

31,617 402,404 68,483 1,947 41 472,875 504,492
4,381,742 1,265,779 278,282 310,477 29,602 1,884,140 6,265,882
2,596,629 613,594 334,704 50,833 3,654 1,002,785 3,599,414
137,058 19,582 - 280 - 19,862 156,920
167,752 18,777 - - - 18,777 186,529
286,413 27,137 14,060 6,045 4,300 51,542 337,955
254,005 68,969 434 3,616 - 73,019 327,024
890,566 187,807 13,889 25,164 140 227,000 1,117,566
187,637 41,471 - 25,931 21,629 89,031 276,668
5,424 (37) 1,468 - - 1,431 6,855
4,525,484 977,300 364,555 111,869 29,723 1,483,447 6,008,931
- 6,441 - - - 6,441 6,441
4,525,484 983,741 364,555 111,869 29,723 1,489,888 6,015,372
(143,742) 282,038  (86,273) 198,608 (121) 394,252 250,510
- (2,964) - - - (2,964) (2,964)
(143,742) 279,074  (86,273) 198,608 (121) 391,288 247,546
9,121 - - - - - 9,121
(134,621) 279,074  (86,273) 198,608 (121) 391,288 256,667
- (18,017)  (96,219)  (36,235) (121)  (150,592)  (150,592)
(134,621) - - - - - (134,621)
- 297,091 9,946 234,843 - 541,880 541,880
(134,621) 279,074  (86,273) 198,608 (121) 391,288 256,667
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2. Income and Expenditure by Segment (Cont’d)

DEBUIN K 32 B (#8)

2.2 University Income and Expenditure by Segment (Cont’d)

REBDEBUNZ (¥8)

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
Income
Government Subventions
Tuition and Other Fees
Interest and Investment Gain
Donations and Benefactions
Other Income

Expenditure

Teaching, Learning and Research
Teaching and Research
Library
Central Computing Facilities
Other Academic Services

Institutional Support
Management and General

Premises and
Related Expenses

Student and General
Educational Services

Other Activities

Finance Costs

Surplus/(Deficit) before Taxation
Income Tax
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year

Other Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

Attributable to:
Transfer from Restricted Funds
Transfer to UGC Funds

Transfer to Other Funds

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Year

(UFETst)
W
IUFRERR
BERHMNE
MEFIRBE S
BRRIBR
HABIIA

sz
HE  BZRAIR
HERBT
S
hREAELIE
H{hZNEBIRTS
HETIE
BER—MIAE
RER
BREIBISZ
BER—MR
B
HithjEE)

WHER

PRAgRIERER/ (B518)
F{Si
REEREN(E18)
FEA
Hih2Eas

FEA
BEEUELS

BB
HEES
HESES
HibEE

R

BE B

2017
Non-UGC-Funded Activities
EHESEREE)
UGC- Self-
Funded financing  Research Donation Other
Activities Activities  Activities Activities Activities  Syb-total Total
HE"Z BaRE R FISIBM Hib

EENEH) Dt 52D 5D B2 /NET iRt
3,207,719 - 198,511 - 28,288 226,799 3,434,518
856,210 753,559 - - - 753,559 1,609,769
214,124 143,527 1,073 26,909 179 171,688 385,812

- - 31,697 206,278 - 237,975 237,975

31,001 396,497 57,798 2,127 41 456,463 487,464
4,309,054 1,293,583 289,079 235314 28,508 1,846,484 6,155,538
2,484,646 621,567 361,934 43,136 4,946 1,031,583 3,516,229
133,895 21,162 - 194 - 21,356 155,251
166,404 21,427 - - - 21,427 187,831
254,546 31,867 6,321 2,942 4,163 45,293 299,839
252,521 68,842 4,996 1,680 - 75,518 328,039
743167 198,034 7736 20,719 76 226,565 969,732
185,654 35,371 - 36,502 21,607 93,480 279,134
5,507 1,219 2,786 - - 4,005 9,512
4,226,340 999,489 383,773 105,173 30,792 1,519,227 5,745,567
- 7,149 - - - 7,149 7,149
4,226,340 1,006,638 383,773 105,173 30,792 1,526,376 5,752,716
82,714 286,945 (94,694) 130,141 (2,284) 320,108 402,822
- (4,250) - - - (4,250) (4,250)

82,714 282,695 (94,694) 130,141 (2,284) 315,858 398,572
899 - - - - - 899
83,613 282,695 (94,694) 130,141 (2,284) 315,858 399,471
- (12,333) (107,995) (60,773) (2,284) (183,385) (183,385)

83,613 - - - - - 83,613

- 295,028 13,301 190,914 - 499,243 499,243

83,613 282,695 (94,694) 130,141 (2,284) 315,858 399,471
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3. Government Subventions

BT BERR
Consolidated #z& University A&
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MATETst) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Subventions from UGC HES
117 Block Grants ?%’%@EDE
Grants Received EusmEE 2,859,230 2,829,572 2,859,230 2,829,572
Less: Provisional Virement-out for b BEEEZEHTENSTE
Home Financing Scheme (“HFS*) RERETERGTEIIMND
& Housing-related Expenses EEARFASNEE
other than HFS FR&HHENE (73,140) (77,417) (73,140) (77,417)
Additions of Fixed Assets BEBEEILZE (152,032) (225,432) (152,032) (225,432)
127 Transfer from Deferred Capital Funds EERE
in respect of Depreciation Charge EEEAEEH)
for the year TEEINE 206,503 142,944 206,503 142,944
2,840,561 2,669,667 2,840,561 2,669,667
137 Net Supplementary Grants PIBMEE 200,032 123,321 200,032 123,321
3,040,593 2,792,988 3,040,593 2,792,988
Earmarked Grants 1EERIFMmEIE
University Grants Committee nES
HFS [EFT&RNETEl 1,901 2,315 1,901 2,315
Housing-related Expenses PREPMERNSTBIINESFSE
other than HFS BRIk 4,537 5,509 4,537 5,509
Knowledge Transfer FE B SEmAIE 8,974 9,188 8,974 9,188
Additional Clinical Placement for the SHERRRER
Allied Health Programmes HENE 11,803 9,237 11,803 9,237
Allocation of Additional Funding to PEFITREY
Institutions ZRIMBENE 7,504 7,592 7,504 7,592
Funding Scheme for Teaching and 2012% 201558
Learning Related Initiatives in HEFZ
2012-2015 Triennium fEIE 3,558 2,584 3,558 2,584
Funding Scheme for Teaching and 20162201924
Learning Related Initiatives in B
2016-2019 Triennium HENE 4,762 - 4,762 -
Special Grant to Enhance the Support SESLEITN
for Students with Special Education HBEFEN
Needs RIEE 88 2,084 88 2,084
Special Grant for Handling the Staffing RIERZT A
Consequences of Phasing-out of the REHHEE 0
Sub-degree Programmes FRIMEE 134 1,011 134 1,011
Funding Support for the BiTHE=
Implementation of UGC Cost [pES: 5 _\Teé\ﬂﬁ
Allocation Guidelines HENE 9,438 6,829 9,438 6,829
Others Hits 246 3,580 246 3,580
52,945 49,929 52,945 49,929
Research Grants Council WREHD
General Research Fund BicthRE 87,957 82,544 87,957 82,544
Early Career Scheme Fund BREEFEEsE 16,872 17,267 16,872 17,267
Collaborative Research Fund RERRE 3,603 25,720 3,603 25,720
Theme-based Research Scheme FEMRETE 8,518 5,366 8,518 5,366
Others Hith 7,683 6,262 7,683 6,262
124,633 137,159 124,633 137,159
147 Rates and Government Rent Refund SRIEZR R BUTHIE 59,634 57,639 59,634 57,639
Capital Grants and Alterations, ERae Kol
Additions, Repairs, and Improvements D0 ~ HEIZERONETZ
(“AA&I") Block Allocations LBBIIR 147145 170,004 147,145 170,004
3,424,950 3,207,719 3,424,950 3,207,719
157 Grants from Government Agencies AT RE R 219,366 238,579 203,757 226,799

3,644,316 3,446,298 3,628,707 3,434,518
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4. Tuition and Other Fees
BERHEMINE
Consolidated #7& University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ATFB7TET) 2018 2017 2018 2017
UGC-funded Programmes HESEHRE
Tuition Fees EFUN 824,717 844,601 824,717 844,601
Other Fees Hibli& 11,542 11,609 11,542 11,609
836,259 856,210 836,259 856,210
Non-UGC-funded Programmes IFHESEERE
Tuition Fees BEIA 1,495,227 1,390,185 708,428 727,942
Other Fees Hisli& 29,023 34,880 21,127 25,617
1,524,250 1,425,065 729,555 753,559
2,360,509 2,281,275 1,565,814 1,609,769
5. Interest and Investment Gain
MBMNZEWER
Consolidated #3786 University A&
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAF#B7Tst) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Interest Income FIRIIA 89,541 81,041 75,389 68,558
Net Realised and Unrealised BRRARERN
Gain on Investment Portfolio BEREFIE 173,932 318,225 172,407 317,254
263,473 399,266 247,796 385,812

117 Block Grants are resources allocated to the University for basic infrastructure, teaching and research activities for a funding period, usually a triennium, without
precise requirements attached in support of subvented activities.

EIEHNEROTARRERBESR=EMH)FEREZR  LEARNAAZNER) - NESWRIERIRNEME » EEEHDNSVDEARRYESTENEHHE -

127 Government grants received during the year which have been spent on fixed assets are not immediately recognised as income but are transferred to Deferred Capital
Funds. An amount equivalent to the depreciation charge of the related assets is recognised as income during the period in which the depreciation incurs.
BIFEEEEEENKRAERTSERZIRBFAGERBANN MEBESRLEEAES  TEHAHEEEENEXLRHRBERITENSREDAIIA -

137 In accordance with the prevailing UGC guidelines, Supplementary Grants and/or Supplementary Adjustments will be provided on top of Block Grants for changes
in salary level with reference to civil service pay revisions. Supplementary Grants reflect an upward revision when the Government revises civil service pay upward
while Supplementary Adjustments reflect a downward revision. Net Supplementary Grants is the excess of Supplementary Grants over Supplementary Adjustments.
RBHESNIES| - ABSIRAEESFHMBREME LS THME SR EBMENTUINESIBHMENEA/NIBHFE - BRF LRABEFHY » KESIESIBMHAED
T ERFE TRAFEFHM - HESHRNSELSITHAE - FILAHDT2IEHRDESSRIZHAENESE -

147 Rates and Government Rent paid for buildings and properties occupied by the University for education purpose (note 8.2 under Premises and Related Expenses) are
fully refunded by the Government.

FRBARABRENERHNARBT RYEMBT OVEE0REUTIHRE (HIEE8. 2R E R BRIMAR) DB RA2EIRE °

157 Grants from Government Agencies include grants received from Hong Kong and Chinese mainland government agencies.

RIS R R B IS S B B A U MBS UL R B0 53R -
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167 6. Donations and Benefactions
BRR B
Consolidated #2& University A2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF3BTst) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Donations for Research Activities RehEEnigan 34,704 31,697 34,704 31,697
Scholarship, Bursaries, Prizes and Loan RBEF BT BREREE 25,107 21,778 23,631 20,244
Capital Projects HiZIRE 19,927 11,099 19,927 11,099
Others Hith 130,853 74,992 240,811 174,935

210,591 139,566 319,073 237,975
Donations received from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust and The Hong Kong Jockey Club were $14.9 million (2017: $18.8
million) and RMB 2.4 million (2017: RMB 3.5 million) respectively for the year ended 30 June 2018.
HZE2018F6F308ILFE  SBEFSEEETETNSBEETSRBORIRT 4908E1(2017:1,8808851)M2408 AK#E(2017:350
BARE) -

7. Other Income
HABUIA
Consolidated #2& University K&
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAF38Tst) 2018 2017 2018 2017
177 Service Income BRFBLIA 650,240 633,975 189,424 185,586

Student Hostels BEES 81,768 76,893 81,783 76,893
Contract Research RASH 65,165 55,622 65,165 55,700
Rental Income GEEAIYUN 16,630 18,272 121,277 119,076
Rental Contributions from Staff HEEEEEE 3,504 4,064 3,504 4,064
Others Hit 58,090 51,840 43,339 46,145

875,397 840,666 504,492 487,464

167 Donations with specific purpose follow the accounting treatment for government grants. They are recognised as income when the related expenditure has been

incurred. Including sponsorship income and donations without designated purposes recognised as income upon their receipt, a total sum of $210.6 million (2017:
$139.6 million) and $319.1 million (2017: $238.0 million) are recognised as donation income at the Consolidated and University level respectively in 2017/18 as shown
in the above note 6. Donations received on cash basis for the Consolidated Entity and the University during the year were $282.9 million (2017: $221.1 million) and
$281.3 million (2017: $219.6 million) respectively.

BRERRNBBREFFERNSSRIENE  EERREREERZBRZ@BRUN - 0 EHIEE6MT @ BEREBBRESEIBRNNANRZE A RNIBBRE
BEMZRNBE  REBRAZR2017/18FEHRBAKNAIBIRDBIR2.106658575(2017:1.3968 ) R3.191{8%E5(2017:2.380{F8 ) * REBRABREE
EIREINIRE R8O B /A2.829885T(2017:2.211{HE5T)F02.813%855(2017:2.196{8 7T) °

Service income of the University mainly represents income from self-financed centres/clinics and sub-contracting service income received from subsidiaries.
Consolidated service income mainly includes income from consultancy and hotel operation.

FROBRBUNAEZREEEEEPL/BH VAR IIEMBATZEHORBIN  RERBIVAETZBEBRRBEEEWA -
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8. Expenditure

sz

8.1 Analysis of Expenditure
EERRaY i

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Teaching, Learning and Research
Teaching and Research
Library
Central Computing Facilities

Other Academic Services

Institutional Support
Management and General
Premises and Related Expenses
Student and General Educational Services
Other Activities

Total Expenditure excluding
Finance Costs and Income Tax

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Teaching, Learning and Research
Teaching and Research
Library
Central Computing Facilities

Other Academic Services

Institutional Support
Management and General
Premises and Related Expenses
Student and General Educational Services
Other Activities

Total Expenditure excluding
Finance Costs and Income Tax

(BAFETst)

2 BB R
HERFH
BEE
PREFLRNE
HAZEBIRES

HETE
BIER IS
RERBRIFR
BER —RABRY
HithiEE)

WHER KSR
DIINBRESZ

(BAFEITat)

2 BBERBT
HERFH
BEE
PREEFLRE
HAZEBIRES

WETE
BER—IAE
WERBEIFRER
BLER—RBBRS
HithjE3)

BHERRMSH
DIINBRES

Consolidated #25

2018
Operating
Staff Costs Expenses
and Benefits (note 8.2)  Depreciation Total
B/ BRI
RiEH (Pfd5t8.2) e st
3,063,855 716,666 120,120 3,900,641
86,689 80,878 13,649 181,216
132,509 64,581 29,122 226,212
287,454 96,827 3,837 388,118
3,570,507 958,952 166,728 4,696,187
304,900 90,019 2,501 397,420
206,352 725,791 311,228 1,243,371
116,679 224,181 1,336 342,196
149,874 197,009 6,701 353,584
777,805 1,237,000 321,766 2,336,571
4,348,312 2,195,952 488,494 7,032,758
Consolidated #7&
2017
Operating
Staff Costs Expenses
and Benefits (note 8.2)  Depreciation Total
M= EiER2
ey (Bfg5E8.2) wE 83
2,976,029 711,798 109,395 3,797,222
82,380 77,496 15,946 175,822
126,436 72,131 32,603 231,170
260,442 87,004 3,774 351,220
3,445,287 948,429 161,718 4,555,434
288,118 106,737 1,899 396,754
198,142 593,286 296,176 1,087,604
112,820 218,461 1,333 332,614
140,717 195,798 7,633 344,148
739,797 1,114,282 307,041 2,161,120
4,185,084 2,062,711 468,759 6,716,554
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8. Expenditure (Cont’d)
FsZ (18)
8.1 Analysis of Expenditure (Cont’d)
RS2 DT (FE)
University K&
2018
Operating
Staff Costs Expenses
and Benefits (note 8.2)  Depreciation Total
ENHI= 1R =StE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFE7TEt) Rl (Ffi5E8.2) HTEE i@t
Teaching, Learning and Research A2 BERRIH
187 Teaching and Research HBREIF 2,760,659 719,532 119,223 3,599,414
Library BEeE 77155 70,123 9,642 156,920
Central Computing Facilities PREFSEIE 112,566 54,993 18,970 186,529
197 Other Academic Services H B EARH5 255,752 79,611 2,592 337,955
3,206,132 924,259 150,427 4,280,818
Institutional Support HELE
Management and General BIER—MKIAE 253,583 72,880 561 327,024
Premises and Related Expenses RERBRIFS 160,401 659,478 297,687 1,117,566
Student and General Educational Services BER—WRBBRE 104,254 171,181 1,233 276,668
Other Activities HibEE) 29 6,826 - 6,855
518,267 910,365 299,481 1,728,113
Total Expenditure excluding I ER RPTER
Finance Costs and Income Tax BLINREESZ 3,724,399 1,834,624 449,908 6,008,931
University K&
2017
Operating
Staff Costs Expenses
and Benefits (note 8.2)  Depreciation Total
EA=EEE e
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFEB7cst) Rigkl (H5E8.2) TE st
Teaching, Learning and Research HE - BBRAGT
Teaching and Research HEBREIRF 2,693,470 714,322 108,437 3,516,229
Library BEE 73,541 70,462 11,248 155,251
Central Computing Facilities PREFEE 107,216 62,085 18,530 187,831
Other Academic Services HH 2R 228,841 69,282 1,716 299,839
3,103,068 916,151 139,931 4,159,150
Institutional Support HELE
Management and General BER—MRIAS 239,940 87,892 207 328,039
Premises and Related Expenses RERBRIFS 154,843 530,621 284,268 969,732
Student and General Educational Services SR —RBBRE 101,935 175,935 1,264 279,134
Other Activities HiEH) 30 9,482 - 9,512
496,748 803,930 285,739 1,586,417
Total Expenditure excluding IFER RIS
Finance Costs and Income Tax BAIMNREESZ 3,599,816 1,720,081 425,670 5,745,567
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8.

Expenditure (Cont’d)
FsZ (18)

8.2 Analysis of Operating Expenses
SEFEZ N

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Teaching, Learning and Research

Teaching and Research
Office and Equipment Expenses
Research Activities
Research Studentships

Staff Development, Conferences
and Duty Visit

Library
Office and Equipment Expenses

20”7 Magazine and Electronic Materials

Central Computing Facilities
Office and Equipment Expenses

Computer Equipment Maintenance
and IT Infrastructure

Other Academic Services
Office and Equipment Expenses

Others

Total

(UFBTsh)
HE - BBERRWR

HERFT
BBPIRER1REsZ
BHmE#
MftREE

BERAR

BEEE
BPPIR SRR
HIREBSER

PREJLRNE
BRPIR SRR

BIRRBRER
ERHLERIE

HAbZEBIRES
BRPIR SRR
Hith

Consolidated 28

University K&

2018 2017 2018 2017
253,342 260,847 247000 258,834
225,014 223,244 234222 227781
205,892 198,138 205,892 198,138
32,418 29,569 32,418 29,569
716,666 711,798 719,532 714,322
10,479 10,929 9,496 9,946
70,399 66,567 60,627 60,516
80,878 77,496 70,123 70,462
9,936 11,195 9,573 10,913
54,645 60,936 45,420 51,172
64,581 72,131 54,993 62,085
79,582 71,286 62,366 53,564
17,245 15,718 17,245 15,718
96,827 87,004 79,611 69,282
958,952 948,429 924259 916,151

207

expenses supported by both government grants and external funding are also included.

HERNREABHBRANHEHNERERES: - T2REAMERLREF @ M BIBHEFERRINIERENNRIFAFRES

187 Teaching and Research represents expenditure on teaching and research related activities of the University with major spending on academic staffing costs. Research

Other Academic Services includes expenditure of academic support units, such as Academic Secretariat, International Affairs Office, Education Development Centre,

Research Office, Industrial Centre, etc.

Hit N BRZBBEHBEZEHPINMS - WHFHE  BRSHRE - HBEHERPDL

CFRBHBEMNIEPLE -

Books and periodicals which can be used over a number of years are capitalised as fixed assets — library collections. Magazines and Electronic Materials represent the
direct expense of other books and periodicals which are not capitalised.

TRBFENEENPT2ERERCREENMAEEEE - BEERS - VIREFTERRRBEEAMREREXMLNEBRATINEZER -
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8. Expenditure (Cont’d)

Fs2 (18)
8.2  Analysis of Operating Expenses (Cont’d)
BEFAZDI(1E)
Consolidated #r& University AZ2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF3B7T5t) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Institutional Support HELIE
217 Management and General BER—KIEE
Office and Equipment Expenses BOPIR RS 29,251 41,743 20,530 32,421
Publicity and Recruitment Expenses SERBEE 29,029 32,049 25,006 26,984
Audit, Legal and Professional Fees & IEERBFER 5,353 5,565 3,618 3,525
General Insurance —MRER 6,687 6,171 4,638 4,102
Others Hith 19,699 21,209 19,088 20,860
90,019 106,737 72,880 87,892
Premises and Related Expenses RERBRRS
Office and Equipment Expenses BPPIR SRR 36,659 31,046 31,144 25,648
Utilities *&E 156,863 147,654 122,563 115,049
Rental of Leased Premises HEMEREE 25,836 20,966 24,582 19,727
Repairs and Maintenance HBRE 148,524 147,154 119,227 119,393
Building Alterations and Works RSER T2 215,684 116,957 215,684 116,957
Rates and Government Rent AR ITHIE 59,634 57,639 59,634 57,639
227 Cleaning and Security Services BRRRERGE 72,688 60,007 85,955 72,315
Others Hith 9,903 11,863 689 3,893
725,791 593,286 659,478 530,621
Student and General Educational Services BER—MRBBERS
Office and Equipment Expenses BPIRERIRRTsT 11,071 15,498 10,790 15,244
Scholarships and Financial Aids REPRBLEBUERD 118,789 118,290 92,237 95,551
Student Development B BRIGE 79,453 72,954 53,829 53,696
Sports Facilities IBENRIE 1,712 9,414 11,712 9,415
Others Hith 3,156 2,305 2,613 2,029
224,181 218,461 171,181 175,935
237 Other Activities Hi)E#)
Consultancy BREE 66,343 65,957 166 470
Service Cost and Others BR#5E R E fth 130,666 129,841 6,660 9,012
197,009 195,798 6,826 9,482

Total it 1,237,000 1,114,282 910,365 803,930
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8. Expenditure (Cont’d)
FEs2 (18)

8.3 Remuneration of Higher Paid Staff
SHIEE 20
The number of University staff members, whose equivalent remuneration* for the past year exceeded $1.8 million irrespective of
the funding sources, fell within the bands stated below:

TIRFHFEZR180BETHISRETZ VOB ESHE R

2018 2017
$1,800,001 - $1,950,000 76 64
$1,950,001 - $2,100,000 52 43
$2,100,001 - $2,250,000 30 34
$2,250,001 - $2,400,000 30 24
$2,400,001 - $2,550,000 18 16
$2,550,001 - $2,700,000 18 12
$2,700,001 - $2,850,000 5 12
$2,850,001 - $3,000,000 6 6
$3,000,001 - $3,150,000 6 4
$3,150,001 - $3,300,000 4 3
$3,300,001 - $3,450,000 6 4
$3,450,001 - $3,600,000 - 3
$3,600,001 - $3,750,000 4 4
$3,750,001 - $3,900,000 6 3
$4,050,001 - $4,200,000 2 -
$4,650,001 - $4,800,000 - 1
$4,800,001 - $4,950,000 1 -
$7,200,001 - $7,350,000 1 1

265 234

* Equivalent remuneration includes salaries, allowances, contributions to retirement schemes, gratuities, housing benefits and other
benefits. For staff who are provided with staff quarters owned by the University, their housing benefits are calculated by reference to
the rateable values assessed by the Rating and Valuation Department.

* HWSEREHE R RASSIEINMHR » ORiE - BEBANREMER - BEARREMEBEES 2HHE » HEERFIME
MYEBEESTEHES ZBRE=MBESE -

217 Management and General includes expenditure of administrative support units, such as Human Resources Office, Finance Office and Communications and Public
Affairs Office, etc.

BER—RIEE BETHREIPINAESR WADERE - WBENEBENARAHKBHRS -

22

A

Cleaning and Security Services of the University are partly contracted out to a wholly-owned subsidiary. The sub-contracting fee paid to the subsidiary for the cleaning
and security services is eliminated on consolidation. The major expense incurred by the subsidiary is staff costs for the performance of services which is included under
Premises and Related Expenses — Staff Costs and Benefits.

FRFGEDBRRRERBINAT —MEENBAT - EEHEBEL BANBAINBERRRELRBESHKIEHE - MIZMMBAINEZMNARMERZ » BLRE
ERBERSRERMS - WHESRZKRIEH -

237 Other Activities includes expenditure for non-core operations of the University i.e. other than teaching and research related activities. These operations include mainly
provision of consultancy service and hotel operation, which are carried out through the University’s subsidiaries.

HihZEBBIEABNIFERER BB BRMTTZEUINER) N - ELEXHERBEINBAIMRHNBRRRBIBEERE
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9. Taxation
R18

Income Tax in the Income and Expenditure Statement of the Consolidated Entity and the University represents:

W2 ERIBAFRES IR ARBMERA

Consolidated #2& University K&
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)  (IAF385t5T) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBRER 172 - - -
China Corporate Income Tax PEIERASHR 2,964 4,250 2,964 4,250
3,136 4,250 2,964 4,250

The University and four of its subsidiaries, College of Professional and Continuing Education Limited, PolyU Technology and
Consultancy Co. Limited, Hong Kong Community College and Hotel ICON Limited, are exempted from payment of Hong Kong
Profits Tax by virtue of Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Other subsidiaries of the University in Hong Kong are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax. The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits of
a subsidiary for the year. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for other subsidiaries has been made in the consolidated financial
statements as these subsidiaries either have no assessable profits for the year or have cumulative tax losses brought forward from
prior years that exceed the assessable profits for the year. Taxation for Chinese mainland operations is charged at the appropriate

prevailing rates of taxation in Chinese mainland.

KESBRBIEOIER » ARROEWENS: FERFEHAEERBRAT  EARRKRBEERAT » EBF LBRRIEE
BERAICBREBIIER

FRESBHEMMBAIRHMNSBRIGR - 2018FESBRNERDREBZMBRIFAGSTELRFBIZRET6.5%518 °
BREMHBATIRBREIRFE  NEHBEFENRFGEEIRAFENEIRIE - RERIRKEMSLMBAIELS
BRISIREEE - BIREFHRIBER UBAIRTEREREGE
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10.

Restricted Funds
REES

10.1 Fund Balances

B EH5ER
Consolidated #2&
24 25
Scholarship
and Student Specific
Capital Research  Development Donation  Endowment
Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
REER
(In thousands of BA RIEF B4R LSt =l BARIBEE
Hong Kong dollars) (AFETat) H2E 2E 2E S 2E 15t
Balance at 1 July 2016 20165781 Bi5eR 743,439 638,222 141,380 584,224 267,158 2,374,423
Total Comprehensive Income FEA
for the year BEEUS - (92,600) (48,959) (70,609) 28,783 (183,385)
Inter-fund transfer BRI 277,764 72,572 43,039 139,519 12,723 545,617
Balance at 30 June 2017 2017%683081#58% 1,021,203 618,194 135,460 653,134 308,664 2,736,655
Total Comprehensive Income FEA
for the year BEEULZ - (84,094) (47,102) (65,907) 46,511 (150,592)
Inter-fund transfers B 246,232 95,193 54,515 124,813 20,034 540,787
Balance at 30 June 2018 20185 683081#58% 1,267,435 629,293 142,873 712,040 375,209 3,126,850

247

As the duration of research projects is normally 2 to 3 years, funding for research projects supported by UGC Block/Matching Grants are set aside under Research Funds.
Apart from UGC Block/Matching Grants, research projects supported by external funding or other non-UGC income are also set aside under the Research Funds.

—RAASTBISEME=FATN - BEERTNRESER/RHFEDNSHERSRIORIRNNTES - FRESEE/MRE/BNTERIN - BDEIFRITTRZEIINLEIRA
FHESWUABEDREIRIFESE -

All donations are channelled and accounted for under the PolyU Foundation. The donations with designated purposes according to the wishes of donors and the
University’s decision are transferred to the accounts designated for such purposes. As at 30 June 2018, the balances of General Donation Funds and Endowment Funds
were $520.6 million (2017: $481.6 million) and $375.2 million (2017: $308.7 million) respectively.

FEREEEIEAEEIR - BRBEREARKBERZINEEEREBBENERMEAREREMKE EHTEMEOIRIA - R2018F68308 » —RBEVEEREE
BIBEEHF5ERD B A 5.206/8855(2017:4.816623875) R 3.752(8/#875(2017:3.087F387T) °
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10. Restricted Funds (Cont'd)
BFEEE(IE)

10.1 Fund Balances (Cont’d)

EEHEER(1E)
University A2
24 25
g Scholarship
and Student Specific
Capital Research  Development Donation ~ Endowment
Funds Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
RBER
(In thousands of B84 Bt BLEER RKERE BAIRHE
Hong Kong dollars) (UTF85T5H E® S S S 2 mst
Balance at 1 July 2016 2016572181587 559,932 638,222 141,380 584,224 267,158 2,190,916
Total Comprehensive Income FEA
for the year BEEUS - (92,600) (48,959)  (70,609) 28,783 (183,385)
Inter-fund transfers ETER 290,941 72,572 43,039 139,519 12,723 558,794
Balance at 30 June 2017 2017%68308%E8% 850,873 618,194 135,460 653,134 308,664 2,566,325
Total Comprehensive Income FEA
for the year BEEUWS - (84,094) (47102)  (65,907) 46,511 (150,592)
Inter-fund transfers B 251,207 95,193 54,515 124,813 20,034 545,762

Balance at 30 June 2018 201856H308#58% 1,102,080 629,293 142,873 712,040 375209 2,961,495
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10.

Restricted Funds (Cont'd)
BEEE(B)

10.2 Nature and Purpose of Restricted Funds
REESNMERR&E

(@)

Capital Funds
Capital Funds represent the balance of net book value of the Fixed Assets which are financed by non-deferred

funds.

EAETERAMIBRENESIZENEEEENKREFE °

Research Funds
B E=E
Research Funds represent funds earmarked for the development of research, including those from the HKSAR

Government, government related organisations and external private organisations.

MTEEEREEBRANERSERNANES @ BIERESBHITHERN BN EREEBRENUAKBNES -

Scholarship and Student Development Funds
Scholarship and Student Development Funds represent the funds which are reserved for scholarship payment and

earmarked for supporting student activities in order to enhance the all-rounded development of students.

RETRBLHREATERBARSINEBERENBLEFTHNMBEABESHERRNEE -

Specific Donation Funds
BERBES
Specific Donation Funds represent funds, including donations, earmarked for specific activities, programmes or

projects of the University.

BERBEEEFARNBELEBRRBEEE  RENRENEE -

Endowment Funds
BABREE
Endowment Funds represent the funds which the University would, according to the wishes of the donors, keep the

principal intact and only use income generated from the fund to support University activities of designed purposes.

BLBBETEIRNRBRBBENERREFTAPURIMAEENWASZHEEIRBEESENEE
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11. UGC Funds
HNEZES

11.1 Fund Balances

EEIE8R
Consolidated and University =& & A
General &
Development Matching
Reserve Grant
Fund Funds Total
—MR
BE (i3]
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFB75ET) HiEsEs e i@zt
Balance at 1 July 2016 2016578184585 1,652,161 311,295 1,963,456
Total Comprehensive Income for the year —~ FEEAREEUES 124,959 (41,346) 83,613
Inter-fund transfers B 3,371 1,198 4,569
Balance at 30 June 2017 2017568308 45E% 1,780,491 271,147 2,051,638
Total Comprehensive Income for the year —~ FEEAREEUES (91,550) (43,071) (134,621)
Inter-fund transfers ERE (31,574) (129) (31,703)
Balance at 30 June 2018 2018&6%305%%8/\ 1,657,367 227,947 1,885,314

11.2 Nature and Purpose of UGC Funds
HESESTHHEERAE

(@)

General and Development Reserve Fund

— M RERERES

The General and Development Reserve Fund (“GDRF”) represents the unspent UGC funds (i.e. the recurrent grants
other than earmarked grants for specified purpose) of the University. The balance of the GDRF at the end of funding
period (usually a triennium) that can be carried over to the next funding period is limited to a maximum of 20% of the
University’s approved recurrent grants other than the earmarked grants for specific purposes for that funding period.
Should the balance of the GDRF at the end of the funding period exceed the ceiling allowed, the excess amount is
refundable to the UGC.

—BRBERBRETRIRARDBZAEGES AR IEHEERNISEREHETINVIEBHENE) » KRB
(BER=FH)BREYRER T —EERAN KR ERBRESGERUSRIERAE ZIEB B E (BRARE
RREEBRNIEERSMEEIRING20% /IR o (85— R FRFERESRERPIGRIG ZGERBB BRI
HELR  BHIDAEEETHES -

Matching Grant Funds

Fo¥ENE

Matching Grant Funds are funds granted by the HKSAR Government on a matching basis for qualified private donations
raised by the University. The matching grants can be used for supporting activities within the ambit of UGC-recurrent

grants.

EHHEDEEREBHFRTHRERFERARMESMERBOLAIRBIZEHRAMIELMENERER - ZEHHE
TIRARPFEHESEERPEERLENLNEE) -
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12.

Other Funds
HhEE

12.1  Fund Balances
BEEiEER

(In thousands of
Hong Kong dollars)
Balance at 1 July 2016
Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Inter-fund transfer
Balance at 30 June 2017
Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Inter-fund transfers

Balance at 30 June 2018

(AFB5)
201657 31 B#5ER
FEAREELE
B
2017563308565
FEAREERE
Eeas i
2018683081585

Consolidated #25

25

Self- 4

financing General

Activity Donation
Funds Funds Total

—h

BEEE B
IREER HE a5t
1,310,548 481,110 1,791,658
267,678 207,699 475,377
(342,996) (207,190) (550,186)
1,235,230 481,619 1,716,849
355,396 252,698 608,094
(295,405) (213,679) (509,084)
1,295,221 520,638 1,815,859
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12. Other Funds (Cont'd)
HitbEE (1)

12.1 Fund Balances (Cont’d)
HEEH5ER(B)

(In thousands of

Hong Kong dollars)

Balance at 1 July 2016

Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Inter-fund transfer

Balance at 30 June 2017

Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Inter-fund transfers

Balance at 30 June 2018

12.2 Nature and Purpose of Other Funds

HihESHOMER AR

(@)  Self-financing Activity Funds

BESEEEES

Self-financing Activity Funds represent the reserves generated from self-financed programmes and activities.

BEEEREEERFTRBEESENREZRISE PSR

(b)  General Donation Funds

—RBREE

(AFBTst)
20165781 B8R
FENREEIES
Bk
201756330 B#5E%
FENREEIES
B
2018F6H30B#58R

University A2
25
Self- v
financing General
Activity Donation
Funds Funds Total
—
BEEE 158
BEER HE st
685,109 481,110 1,166,219
291,544 207,699 499,243
(356,173)  (207,190)  (563,363)
620,480 481,619 1,102,099
289,182 252,698 541,880
(300,380)  (213,679) (514,059)
609,282 520,638 1,129,920

General Donation Funds represent donations without designated purposes which can be used at the

discretion of the University’s Management for its future development.

—RIBBEESRIBIREEBBTREARKKER @ WERSERSHIBIBEETR -
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267 13. Matching Grants and Matched Donations
BB K BB R IR

Consolidated and University

mERAZ
2018 2017
Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations
(%3 BE Boy BE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BAFBITst) #HEhE e HHEhE [REE L]
Balance at 1 July 781 BiseR 271,147 691,384 311,295 724,083
Income A
Grants/Donations BENS /e - - - -
Interest and Investment Gain TSR BN 3,171 11,024 2,983 17,776
3,171 11,024 2,983 17,776
Expenditure Fsz
Teaching and Research Enhancement BB KRB 15,083 2,507 13,892 10,730
Scholarships and Prizes REFRBE 30,834 3,244 29,749 4,900
Bursaries BEE - 725 - 435
Internationalisation and BRI R
Student Exchange Activities BERREE 325 892 680 1,497
Student Development LSRG ED - 1,555 8 2,276
Capital and Related Expenditure B2 RARIMRR - 36,763 - 30,517
Others Hts - 158 - 120
46,242 45,844 44,329 50,475
277 Transfer (to)/from Restricted Funds HIRE)/BREES (129) = 1,198 -
Balance at 30 June 683081587 227,947 656,564 271,147 691,384

All expenditures were incurred on degree and above level of study.

B IaRS TR M 2R/ -

267 Matching Grant Schemes were introduced by the government in 2003 to assist universities in strengthening their fund-raising capacities. The government provides
matching grants to match private donations in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Schemes. The matching grants and the matched donations should only
be used for supporting activities within the ambits of UGC recurrent grants and in accordance with the rules set out under the Schemes.

RIBARBNESEED » BHBAESTBIR2003FMII - BT RBSBIFERHADESNIABBRHAREHEE - REGNEREERNBBERBMEESE
REEREANESERMLEREEARNEE -

277 Similar to research projects supported by Block Grants, unspent Matching Grants allocated for research projects are transferred to Research Funds (included in
Restricted Funds (note 10)). In order to show a full picture of funding and related expenditure under Matching Grants, the corresponding amount is transferred back
from Research Funds to Matching Grants when the research expenditure are incurred and recorded in Teaching and Research Enhancement in this note.

IR D EIERIFAENEEMET K - RANRIRFRNTAZNEHMDTSEIRNAES(BREERERES(FI5E10)) - A I ERRREH MO RERIFA
% AR EaRFESEE R RS R IR M EZNRABSRBTA -
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287 14. Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary Students

FE R B4R ISHRST S

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
Balance at 1 July
Receipts

Grants/Donations

Interest and Investment Gain

Payments
Programme Costs
Service Related Programmes
Cultural Related Programmes

Career Related Programmes

Balance at 30 June

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Balance at 1 July
Receipts
Grants/Donations

Interest and Investment Gain

Payments
Programme Costs
Service Related Programmes
Cultural Related Programmes

Career Related Programmes

Balance at 30 June

(BAFBTat)
781 B8k
LR
EhE /B
A BFIZB IS

INEA
IEIS]EER
AR#5HEREIEE
X{vEREIEE
EZEFACIE!

68308#58%

(TR

781 B85

KGR
HhEhE/ABR
BB B U

INEN
IEIE]EER2
AR#518RA1EE
XAv1EREIEE
EZE IS

6830858k

Consolidated #25

2018 2017
Matching Matched ~ Matching Matched
Grants  Donations Grants Donations
Boy B Bokt B
HEp=E AoHyiRhe e [eE gk
4,659 3,805 4,395 2,294
- - 1,463 2,926
61 76 66 90
61 76 1,529 3,016
313 357 461 613
207 139 341 594
627 300 463 298
1,147 796 1,265 1,505
3,573 3,085 4,659 3,805

University A&

2018 2017
Matching Matched ~ Matching Matched
Grants  Donations Grants Donations
Boy B Boy B
(liIES [EERE )] (liIES [RERE ]
3,491 3,324 3,523 2,995
- - 729 1,458
44 65 41 78
44 65 770 1,536
313 357 461 613
207 139 341 594
90 180 - -
610 676 802 1,207
2,925 2,713 3,491 3,324
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287 15. Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students

F 24BN RERE S

Consolidated {58 University A &2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFBTEt) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Balance at 1 July 781858 1,934 21,411 1,156 16,562
Receipts SR
Grants BEE 6,412 - 3,545 -
Interest and Investment Gain FRAILE U 52 189 19 130
6,464 189 3,564 130
Payments (NEN
Subsidy to Students B4EE) 3,444 3,850 3,074 3,090
Unspent Grants returned to Government R& TR {ERHENE (1,620) (15,816) (1,140)  (12,446)
Balance at 30 June 683081585 3,334 1,934 506 1,156

287 The Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme, Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange and Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange to "Belt and Road" Regions are three

funding schemes for our post-secondary students launched and supported by the Education Bureau ("EDB") of HKSAR. In compliance with the Schemes’
requirements, details of the related grants, matched donations and expenditure are separately disclosed in notes 14 to 16. The matched donations for
the related grants of the Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme as shown in note 14 were received during the period from 1 October 2015 to 30 June 2016
which was the last round of application for matching grant.

Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange and Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange to "Belt and Road" Regions subsidise students of full-time locally-accredited
undergraduate and sub-degree programmes to participate in exchange activities. According to the EDB's Operating Guide, only students in receipt of
means-tested student financial assistance from Student Finance Office of the Working Family and Student Financial Assistance Agency or whose families
in receipt of the Comprehensive Social Security Assistance are eligible. Since the actual number of eligible students was less than that covered in the
allocated grants, the unspent grants from Deferred Income received for the period from September 2016 to August 2017 and January 2015 to August
2016 were returned to the Government during the year ended 30 June 2018 and 2017 respectively.

Since the grants under the three Schemes are designated for specific purposes with refund condition for any unspent grants, the accounting treatment
of these grants follows HKAS 20 - Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance. Grant income recognised during the
year, equivalent to the amount spent, has been included under Grants from Government Agencies in note 3, with the unspent portion being presented
under Deferred Income in note 29. Same treatment is also adopted for the matched donations of the Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme.

FEE LBERNMERETE  FEBERIIIAEFENE LBL —F - BihERRENSEINPEDEBRITHERERRIAZFNE LBLEEMEE - RTE
STRIZK - ERIMEE « BERHBEMURAZNFEDRMIEE14E 16125 - WHIFE14F7T S8 E EBEAERTEIPHEERHBRER2015F108182
2016568308 HMAINE - ZIRBABRHBANZHNREZ —WPH

FEBEFIIRRENSBIRE LBE - —BihERXREESTBIE BB TS BHARNERBMURENBESRGINIREY) - REVBSSNEEES 0 &
ERBENAFNNOBERRERBEENEHERE NBEEMEMBMNNASEEENNEREENRIGSTEEREED - BRERSERBEAHDRAZEDE
MENEPMMEN AR - EEN20165F98E20175F88K2015518%201658FHMEINIROVMENE PIAREROVELDEDBIIR2017/1852016/17 FRFRIEIA
PEY - WREFEUT

BR=EBNHBNEERFERERHERERNBBMERRIES - LHENECIZBSBSSTERIFE205: - FERNEFEDNREFLEENSSRIE - £F
EiEROMMEUN - BISEMNEER - BRIGEH A2 MOVBAHBERA » MiERERNBIR2MEME296DRLENAR - £EF EBERMBRSTEINE
ERHRRIINRRKRNEST HEERIE °
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287 16. Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange to "Belt and Road" Regions for Post-secondary Students

F B4 —F—BihBRIREANETE

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Balance at 1 July

Receipts

Grants

Interest and Investment Gain

Payments

Subsidy to Students

Unspent Grants returned to Government

Balance at 30 June

(LT 5T81)
78187585
SR
FHEh=E
FBABEU S

(NN
B488)

BB P RAFIIR{ERNHEIE
633084585

Consolidated #3& University K&
2018 2017 2018 2017
5,264 5,323 4,187 4,138
1,204 - 200 -
49 74 32 49
1,253 74 232 49
291 133 153 -
(5,256) = (4,197) -
970 5,264 69 4,187
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17. Fixed Assets

BEEE

(In thousands of

Hong Kong dollars)

Cost
Balance at 1 July 2016
Additions during the Year
Transfers
Disposals
Exchange Difference
Balance at 30 June 2017
Additions during the Year
Transfers
Disposals
Exchange Difference

Balance at 30 June 2018

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at 1 July 2016
Charge for the Year
Written Back on Disposals
Exchange Difference
Balance at 30 June 2017
Charge for the Year
Written Back on Disposals
Exchange Difference

Balance at 30 June 2018
Net Book Value
at 30 June 2017

Net Book Value
at 30 June 2018

(AFBITE
PSS
R2016FE7818
REEILE
=
e
FERELR
1R20175F 68308
REEIRS
iR
e
(ERZEER
R20185F 68308

RIEITE
R2016F7818
REEIE
HEZ s
=%
1R2017868308
REEITE
e
ER=%
R20185F68308

2017568308
REFE

201868308
REFE

Consolidated #2&

Construction Furniture,
in  Equipment & Library
Buildings Progress Fittings Collections Total
1 ~ 3R E8E

BF FERIR REE BE 5T
8,260,125 201,634 1,791,621 628,509 10,881,889
29,214 394,287 188,962 7977 620,440
452,684 (452,684) - = -
- - (76,774) (6,068) (82,842)
(1,422) - (303) - (1,725)
8,740,601 143,237 1,903,506 630,418 11,417,762
33,566 112,779 124,248 7,960 278,553
81,487 (81,487) - = -
= = (53,796) (2,729) (56,525)

2,234 - 607 - 2,841
8,857,888 174,529 1,974,565 635,649 11,642,631
3,584,850 = 1,257,647 588,886 5,431,383
280,402 = 173,826 14,531 468,759
- - (76,372) (6,016) (82,388)
(270) - (232) = (502)
3,864,982 - 1,354,869 597,401 5,817,252
293,522 - 182,528 12,444 488,494
= = (52,981) (2,568) (55,549)

606 = 586 = 1,192
4,159,110 - 1,485,002 607,277 6,251,389
4,875,619 143,237 548,637 33,017 5,600,510
4,698,778 174,529 489,563 28,372 5,391,242

Leasehold land is granted by the Governments of the HKSAR and the PRC for usage by the Consolidated Entity at a nominal amount.
EBRRITHEINRPERFAERCRERNEE M HNEEIER
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17. Fixed Assets (Cont'd)
EBE(K8)
University A&
Construction Furniture,
in  Equipment & Library
Buildings Progress Fittings Collections Total
(In thousands of B ~ 5206 BE:
Hong Kong dollars) (AFBTst) B T2 SES P it
Cost %S
Balance at 1 July 2016 R2016E7818 8,154,771 201,634 1,454,269 586,884 10,397,558
Additions during the Year KEEIRE 29,214 394,287 159,643 5,994 589,138
Transfers AR 452,684 (452,684) . ; _
Disposals e = = (72,984) (6,014) (78,998)
Balance at 30 June 2017 R2017568308 8,636,669 143,237 1,540,928 586,864 10,907,698
Additions during the Year REEIRE 33,566 112,779 94,647 5,313 246,305
Transfers Bk 81,487 (81,487) - - -
Disposals e - = (48,481) (234) (48,715)
Balance at 30 June 2018 1R20185F6H308 8,751,722 174,529 1,587,094 591,943 11,105,288
Accumulated Depreciation RIETE
Balance at 1 July 2016 R201657818 3,562,882 - 1,009,121 558,556 5,130,559
Charge for the Year AEETE 277,229 = 138,311 10,130 425,670
Written Back on Disposals HHEE 2 i = = (72,710) (6,001) (78,711)
Balance at 30 June 2017 R2017568308 3,840,111 - 1,074,722 562,685 5,477,518
Charge for the Year REEIFE 290,306 - 150,918 8,684 449,908
Written Back on Disposals HEZ N - - (47,840) (185) (48,025)
Balance at 30 June 2018 R20185%6H308 4,130,417 - 1,177,800 571,184 5,879,401
Net Book Value 2017868308
at 30 June 2017 REFE 4,796,558 143,237 466,206 24,179 5,430,180
Net Book Value 201868308
at 30 June 2018 REFE 4,621,305 174,529 409,294 20,759 5,225,887

Leasehold land is granted by the Government of the HKSAR for usage by the University at a nominal amount.

EBEFTHRINEAREANEE L MMSHNEEIR
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18. Investments in Subsidiaries

B AT ZIRE

University K&
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAF38Tsh) 2018 2017
Unlisted Shares, at Cost JE LMD REMA 232,650 231,950
Less: Impairment Loss B RERSTE (93,743) (96,440)

138,907 135,510

297 An impairment test was performed by comparing the carrying amount with the recoverable amount of the subsidiaries as at 30 June
2018. The recoverable amount of the subsidiaries is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. When the
recoverable amount of the subsidiaries exceeds the carrying amount, the impairment loss is reversed up to the amount that has been
recognised in prior years. Following the result of this exercise, a reversal of impairment loss of $2.7 million (2017: impairment loss of
$0.8 million) was recognised in the Income and Expenditure Statement for the year. Out of the $93.7 million (2017: $96.4 million)
in accumulated impairment loss as at 30 June 2018, approximately $79.2 million (2017: $81.9 million) was attributable to research

activities conducted through the relevant subsidiaries.

207 ARSTEMLEEHBATR2018F68308 2REERJWNEHEE 2 FHERD - MEBAT 2 NOZEBIZERAAEBEIDEHLE
RANEREBEMSPHNRSERE - ENELAT 2T WOEBLEKEE - HEBER Y RO BEFEATHED ZBESE
RIR - IKBAHRBR - 2FE2RAENZIRIB N EGERDR2708B5T(2017:5{EEIES0EET) - H22018F68308 » R
STRIERERY,3708B5T(2017:9,640&85T) * E9#97,9208855(2017:8,19088 1) REREEH B A TETORITIES) -

297 PolyU Research Limited and its subsidiaries (PearL Modern TCM Research Limited, 32 KZE B &t (EYI) BIRA S and LEBRMRILEIEE(FYI)BERAT) are set up to
conduct research and development activities in the Chinese mainland. Funding to cover the research, development and operational expenditures is provided to these
subsidiaries in the form of capital injection. Impairment loss reflects the net expenditure arising from such activities of these subsidiaries for each year.

BARNABRATRAMBAI(ZARAPHAEAERAT - BXESHE (R BRATREBRVRZEE ORI BRAT)VMILER 3 EAMETHT R
BREROEY - HESDBARNIESH BN BRINVERAERREEESER - BEBERIR I ZFEEF 2P
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MBS ZIRE (1)

18. Investments in Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

The following list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. All of these are

subsidiaries as defined under note 1.4 and have been consolidated into the financial statements of the Consolidated Entity.

TIRERBMEBAT - FRAEBERBIN » AFHRFTIIZEER - 2

®p o

0

Proportion of Ownership Interest

NI EEMET ARFEZHMBAT @ WIRRIZEHHR

FEREREsS R
Place of
Incorporation/ Particulars of ~ Consolidated
Establishment Issued and Entity’s
and Paid Up Effective Held by Held by Principal
Name of Subsidiary Operation Capital Interest University Subsidiary Activity
BT
SEf/AILR 2 met WEEAT
WEASBE SRS BeAFHIE SR ABFH 8 EBEH
Campus Facilities Hong Kong 100,000 100% 100% - Facility
Management Shares Management
Company Limited Services
REREETE B 100,0008% REEIE
BRAT
College of Hong Kong Limited by 100% 100% - Education
Professional and Guarantee
Continuing
Education Limited
BERFGEHE BB HELS ]
BirERAT BRAT
Hong Kong Hong Kong Limited by 100% 100% - Post-
Community College Guarantee secondary
Education
EBE L2 E BR BEHE
BRAT
Hotel ICON Limited Hong Kong Limited by 100% 100% - Operation of
Guarantee Teaching and
Research Hotel
EBEEBERAT B HELS HEB R BT
BRAT BIEEE
PolyU Enterprise Plus Hong Kong 20,700,000 100% 100% - Investment
Limited Shares Holding
HEXEEERAT &5 20,700,0008% B
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18. Investments in Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

B AT ZIRE (18)

Proportion of Ownership Interest

FrERERE s tEaR
Place of

Incorporation/ Particulars of ~ Consolidated

Establishment Issued and Entity’s
and Paid Up Effective Held by Held by Principal
Name of Subsidiary Operation Capital Interest University ~ Subsidiary Activity

BT
SEM/ARIL R KRR et HIEBAT
MIBAT 2B EEEMES AT =y ABHH S EREH
PolyU Research Hong Kong 190,950,000 Shares 100% 100% - Investment
Limited (note a) (2017: Holding
190,250,000 Shares)

BARNGTERAT (Mi5ta) &8 190,950,0008% B
(2017:
190,250,000(%)

PolyU Technology and Hong Kong Limited by 100% 100% - Consultancy
Consultancy Co. Limited Guarantee Services

IBAR R R S HES AR
BRAT BRAT

PearL Modern TCM Hong Kong 65,350,000 Shares 100% - 100% Research and
Research Limited (note b) (2017: Development

64,650,000 Shares)

IBARIRR PR E 65,350,0008% R R B

tHIEPIBEIRAT (Fiistb) (2017:
64,650,0004%)

Pearl Western Hong Kong 15,020,000 100% = 100% Investment
Development Shares Holding
Company Limited

BRI B 15,020,000% REER

BRAT

* PearL-DigiPower British Virgin 1 share of 100% - 100% Investment
(Offshore) Company Islands US$1 Holding
Limited

REBEL 182 B
BS BEEZT

PearL Technology Hong Kong 100,000 Shares 100% - 100% Investment

Partnership Limited Holding
B 100,0008% EER
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18. Investments in Subsidiaries (Cont'd)
MEBA AT ZIZE(18)

Proportion of Ownership Interest

PTEREREAR LR
Place of
Incorporation/ Particulars of Consolidated
Establishment Issued and Entity’s
and Paid Up Effective Held by Held by Principal
Name of Subsidiary Operation Capital Interest University  Subsidiary Activity
S Zn)
SEM/ANILR: R#I2 mete MBS
SN e PEAEHIE B ABHE Ba E2EH
* The Hong Kong Hong Kong 20,000,000 100% 100% = Dormant
CyberU Limited Shares
(note c)
BB L2 BB 20,000,0008% NEEAT
BRAT
(Mt5EC)
¥ EERYRIREEEE PRC $47,850,000 100% - 100% Research and
CRINBRAT Development
PED 47,850,000 R SdEE
BT
# IBRESIHEM PRC $112,150,000 100% - 100% Research and
FRINBRAT Development
Support
PE) 112,150,000 ST R R SR
BIT
¥ IBARIEERS PRC RMB500,000 100% - 100% Consultancy
FRINBRAT Services
PE) 500,000 A EH#E EARIARS

* These companies are not audited by KPMG. The financial statements of the subsidiaries not audited by KPMG reflect total net assets and total
income constituting approximately 0.1% and 0.0% respectively of the related consolidated totals.

* RERSSNSHMIELSHEATEEZEED - MtFHMEAINREEFERBINADBNRIBEIRSRIENO.1%kK0.0% °

# These companies are audited by KPMG Huazhen LLP for the year ended 31 December 2017.
# BERRERSNBHFAALENBATEZE2017F12831B2FEEEXHEM °

(a)  During the year ended 30 June 2018, the University subscribed for additional 700,000 shares of PolyU Research Limited.
HZE2018F 65308 LLEFE » ARERINGRIEIE ARG BPR/A T 700,0005% Z58A% ©

(b)  During the year ended 30 June 2018, PolyU Research Limited subscribed for additional 700,000 shares of PearL. Modern TCM Research Limited.
HZE2018F6H308LLEFE @ BARFERAILBINDEIRAIRN PR IS AR S700,0000% 5584

(c) The Hong Kong CyberU Limited had commenced dormancy on 16 May 2012.
BBRLBRBRATER2012E5816BMRNEEAT °

(d) BBIRITKERYIFFITER is set up as a business unit in Shenzhen under the jurisdiction of the PRC to conduct training, research and development
activities.
SRETIASRIIFERRRE CRIEERESESMUSDERRM) RPFEARKNERYIHMILZEREN - #1583 BTRE
EEE ©
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19. Interests in Associates
TG
Consolidated 54 University AZ3
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (875t 2018 2017 2018 2017
Share of Net Assets BIEZFEE - 1,368 =
The following list contains the particulars of associates as defined under note 1.5, all of which are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted
market price are not available, and are considered not individually material. All of these associates are accounted for using equity method in
the consolidated financial statements.
NIRMIEET.SAREZARNBENT - KFHERTHERRMIZRENIELHEEER  WEERKRBULIEEKX < SLBENTE
SERAERIERFS Y H MR ©
Proportion of Ownership Interest
PTEMERERS LR
Place of Particulars of Consolidated
Incorporation Issued and Entity’s Effectively
and Paid Up Effective Held by Principal
Name of Associate Operation Capital Interest Subsidiary Activity
BT
SR R#2 et HIEBAT
i NSTEE EEIMRS PEAEHIE BiFER BiFEA E2EH
DigiPower Holdings Samoa 10,000,000 30% 30% Investment
Limited Shares (note a) Holding
of $1 each
EUT= e edicd PEEESS 10,000,0008% (HMizta) B
BRAT EkEE
BT
DigiPower Hong Kong 10,000 30% 30% Inactive
Technology Limited Shares (note a)
BB 10,000% (PsEa) HEMF
The above companies are not audited by KPMG.
EFESSTENBHMIEL EBENT00EEXBIED -
(@)  PearL-DigiPower (Offshore) Company Limited, a subsidiary of the University, holds 30% of DigiPower Holdings Limited, which wholly
owns DigiPower Technology Limited.
A 2B /A S PearL-DigiPower (Offshore) Company  Limitedi58 2B IERBRNAT30% 00 BUFEELRERATIUWEEHES
DigiPower Technology Limited o
(b)  During the year ended 30 June 2018, PolyU Enterprise Plus Limited disposed of all 40% equity interests in L.K. Precision

Machinery Company Limited.

HZE2018F6F308ILFER » FEREEERAFLE 3 NIPEBEMEIRAIOIEZE40%HE
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19.

20.

Interests in Associates (Cont'd)

BEN TR (8)

The following is summarised financial information for the Consolidated Entity’s interest in associates, based on the amounts reported in the

consolidated financial statements:

TIRGEBREENINER Y BHERME » WERRRBAGFCHUHRRMIBSHIRIR :

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (DATF3B7T5T) 2018 2017
Carrying Amount of /NS

Interests in Associates ERREE _ 1,368
Consolidated Entity's Share of IREBREG

Loss from Operation and Other EEERZICEBE

Comprehensive Income REMMEZEIE 47) (772)
Interests in Joint Ventures
B8N TR

Consolidated #7& University A&

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ATF7E7c5t) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Share of Net Assets [BIE2IFEE 35,400 36,658 - -

The following list contains the particulars of joint ventures as defined under note 1.5, all of which are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted
market price are not available, and are considered not individually material. All of these joint ventures are accounted for using equity method

in the consolidated financial statements.

NIRMEEISAREZARNEENT @ LFEENTHRRAMIBREHNIFLHEEER  MEBRIRBUIFEX - ELEEATE
PRABEDERIRE P HFRERN

Proportion of Ownership Interest

FTEHERE RS LR

Place of Particulars of Consolidated Effectively
Name of Establishment Issued and Paid Entity’s Effective Held by Principal
Joint Venture and Operation Up Capital Interest Subsidiary Activity

BRI EHTRME =Y i nE=UNS|
SERTEHE EEMES BRAEFIE BiFtea BRIEE EE )
Xi‘an Tongli PRC RMB 50% 50% Education and
Technology 30,000,000 (note a) Technology
Enterprise Ltd Development
BLBIERIL PE 30,000,000 (PfeEa) HER
EEZERERAT PN R
BEBIREAIRRS PRC RMB 50% 50% Education

153120 3,000,000 (note a)
el 3,000,000 (BizEa) B

ARHEE

The above entities are not audited by KPMG.

EEESSTEIBHAIEU LSERTONEELBIEN

PearL Western Development Company Limited, a subsidiary of the University, holds 50% of Xi’an Tongli Technology Enterprise Ltd, which
wholly owns 78 %8BI BB RSB 2653

ARMBATIEABLEREBEAIFEBLRENREFRRERAT50%00E @ BLRBIENREEFIRBRATUNEEHEBL
BIR R RSB 5IZ o
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20. Interests in Joint Ventures (Cont'd)
BERTRK(IE)
307 The following is summarised financial information for the Consolidated Entity’s interest in joint ventures, based on the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements:
TNIBFRSEREELTNER U FERME - WERERBAGRSUBRIMBSIRIE :
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BAFETat) 2018 2017
Carrying Amount of B5ENTH
Interests in Joint Ventures IEAEREE 35,400 36,658
Consolidated Entity's Share of Losses i ]
from Operation and Other BEEHFISERE
Comprehensive Income REMEZERZS (2,411) (1,455)
21. Non-current Financial Assets
FERBETRNEE
Consolidated and University
RERARE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ATF85Tat) 2018 2017
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities HFAZREIBRERES 718,325 900,456
Investments in Institutional Entities and RIEEBIE R HAAS A 5B
other Equity Securities HInsE 1 1
718,326 900,457
The carrying value of non-current held-to-maturity debt securities as at 30 June 2018 was $718.3 million (2017: $900.5 million)
and stated at amortised cost less impairment loss. The held-to-maturity debt securities are not past due or impaired.
Investments in Institutional Entities and other Equity Securities are classified as available-for-sale financial assets, measured at cost
in accordance with HKFRSs.
FERB 2T B EEEBEHESR2018F633080REER7.183855(2017:9.005F 8 7t) » IIZ R A IDREIRER B IR °
BRI BEHES U ERSRE
RUEBMBREMKRABSNREZREBYBRSEIBGR LI HLEENTREE - LNAIIEE -
307 Financial information of Joint Ventures include the operating results of the two joint ventures, whose principal activities are education and technology development in

the Chinese mainland. The surplus or deficit for the year is dependent on their activity level.

BHEEATINYHFERN BERBEEABMBEERBRBHEATEXFNORE 2 EZFRR - ABFREFNBEDEVRREEIMBEZTENELRRR
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21.

Non-current Financial Assets (Cont'd)
IERBEREE ()

The following list contains the particulars of institutional entities and other equity securities as defined under note 1.6(c)
which are unlisted corporate entities.

NIRMIEET.6(OFTREZIBRIBR B AES » WENTHRIELHEFER -

Place of Particulars of
Name of Institutional Incorporation Issued and
Entities and other Equity and Paid Up Held by Held by Principal
Securities Operation Capital ~ University Subsidiary Activity
WEBHB R E R A ES SR BEITRAE MEBAT
=L} B BRAFE  ABHH "A EE2EH
Joint Universities Computer Hong Kong 8 Shares 12.5% - Information Technology Services
Centre Limited
ABHSEEPLOBRAT &8 8 B 1S B HMIARES
Joint University Programmes Hong Kong Limited by 12.5% - Coordination and
Admissions System Guarantee control of the Joint
Admissions System
AREMESBER &5 HES RRREIEABHE
BRAT BEYE
JULAC Joint Universities Hong Kong Limited by 12.5% - Functional storage facility for
Research Archive Limited Guarantee research and archival purposes
AEHE HRENSE s R RS2 MEE
BRAT BRAT
The Hong Kong Research Hong Kong Limited by (note b) - Research, development and
Institute of Textiles and Guarantee technology transfer in fashion
Apparel Limited and textiles technologies
BRI E P Bt R (Pit5Eb) b S R AL BRI B R
BRAT BRAT RAMTER
Avalon Polytom (HK) Limited Hong Kong 10,450 Shares - 3% Product
development
&8 10,450 f% EHE
Volant Railway Technologies Hong Kong 200 Shares - 10% Development and service for
Limited railway monitoring system
(note ¢)
(f5EC) &5 200 A% HIBEET=RGR
% SR HESE

Joint Quality Review Committee Limited was dissolved by deregistration in December 2017.

Joint Quality Review Committee Limited ;R2017412 B#EHEM -
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21. Non-current Financial Assets (Cont'd)
IERENEMEE (18)

(b) The Hong Kong Research Institute of Textiles and Apparel Limited (“HKRITA”) is a company limited by guarantee with the University as
the sole member for hosting and operating a leading centre of excellence in research, development and technology transfer in fashion
and textile technologies, supported by the Innovation and Technology Fund. The membership of its Board of Directors comprises
representatives from the University, the HKSAR Government, textiles and clothing-related industries, trade associations and public
bodies, etc. Without the right to variable returns from its involvement with HKRITA and the ability to affect those returns through its
power over HKRITA, the interest in HKRITA has been accounted for as a financial asset, instead of a subsidiary, and included in the

Investments in Institutional Entities.

SBIMHRMKRTEPOE—RARERERAT  ARAHEE—NE ' MFEIHREE—(EBHFRFRRESZH TURTIEE - FER
TR RIS BT REPDL - ZPONESSMERHAR  SBFRTHEBIE  MHBRMKEEIE ESHERATERE
BUNERAER © BRERABRSEEBH/RMNXITE P OOEEMESNERSEHIE DR REFERNTEZFOR » ER
RIEPOEIESTIENHBAT) - MEUAEREETIER @ I BIEERTEBHEBNREZA °

(c) The shareholders of Volant Railway Technologies Limited resolved on 3 September 2018 to wind up the company.

X

Volant Railway Technologies Limited §9f35/R2018F9 833 BiREF %A S5

o

B

22. Current Financial Assets
METREE

Consolidated and University

IRERARE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFETat) 2018 2017
31 7 Trading Securities B55ES
Equities = 1,757,350 1,535,748
Fixed Income Securities BIEUWNZES 1,400,975 1,393,677
Alternative Investments SHNE . 1,140

3,158,325 2,930,565
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities B ERRIMERESS 178,694 400,747

3,337,019 3,331,312

317 Apart from held-to-maturity debt securities with maturity date within one year, other securities held by external investment managers of the University for trading
purpose are also classified as current financial assets presented in note 22.

I3 —FEARHBNSERIREFRESIN  FRBEBIIREIEFENFHFEEERSMRBARME22P2RORBDEMEE -
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23.

Staff Loans and Bank Loan for On-lending to Staff
HHEERREE TR S 2 RITER

On 27 July 1992, the University entered into an agreement with Hang Seng Bank Limited (the “Bank”) for the granting of loans to the
University for on-lending to qualified staff members. The limit of the facility currently stands at $120 million. The loans are payable

within 12 months and are renewable annually subject to the Bank’s consent.

To be qualified for the loan, a staff member must be over 21 years of age and has been a member of The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University Superannuation Fund - Part A (“SF (Part A)”) for at least 4 years. The maximum amount of loan to a staff member is the
lower of $1.8 million or 60% of the individual’s superannuation minimum entitlement at the date of the loan application. If the
staff member defaults in repayment, the University can exercise its right to retain an amount equal to such indebtedness out of
any benefits payable to such staff member under the SF (Part A). The repayment terms of staff loans are in agreement with those

applicable to the bank loans.

BRI RBEEBEERITHRAT( "R1TL)R1992F7H2785IIEREHN » YEZRITER ' BEETFSTFHEHEZHBESE -
REYHERZEER/1 2B - SRZERBR12E A - WEZRTEE - SEHDITEN -

SFERPFERZHBEDRTM2155 > BRESNEBIEIAZERRE(PR)( TRAE(PR). ) BVIE - BUSERBER
AR BRERBERIBOBETHEPAERFEZRARRIKEEIEZ60% @ MBREKIEERYE - WEABITERRGS  IREEREER
R (PHR)RIATBF PIOFRATRFRIA » BB E B ERIEREIRITERIERIBE o
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24.

Accounts and Other Receivables

FEUSERIE
Consolidated 558 University A2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFBcsth) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Investment Proceeds Receivable WEEURIE 132,082 195,398 132,082 195,398
Accounts Receivable FEUSBRERR 105,523 122,022 97,838 111,310
Interest Receivable RIS 37,436 34,707 37,271 34,552
Amounts due from Subsidiaries FEWFTEASIIRIA - - 77,921 20,415
Amounts due from Joint Ventures RINEERTIRIA 2,091 1,487 2,091 1,487
Amounts due from the UGC [ENHESIRIA
Rates and Government Rent AR HeE 16,239 14,670 16,239 14,670
Capital Grants Receivable fEWE e+ 1,863 4,256 1,863 4,256
Earmarked Grants Receivable RUIEE R EmaE 75,485 73,839 75485 73,839
Supplementary Grants and Others BB E K Eit 28,298 14,959 28,298 14,959
121,885 107724 121,885 107,724
Prepayments, Sundry Deposits and FRNFRIR » MIBIEE
Other Receivables REABEIERIE 147,044 122,411 106,760 89,575

546,061 583,749 575,848 560,461

The majority of Accounts Receivable and Amounts due from the UGC are without fixed terms of repayment and are expected
to be recoverable within one year. Prepayments are expected to be recognised as expenses within one year. All Amounts due

from Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of debtors for whom there was no recent history
of default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent debtors that have a good track
record with the Consolidated Entity. Based on past experience, no impairment allowance is considered necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Consolidated Entity does not hold any collateral over these balances.

ABEDHERERIE R BINHESIRIBIPEBEERE - WRHMYR1FAWNE - BYRBNERIR T FAERBRHFS - BRI
MEBAIREEATZRITIIREIRS  BAE » RIZEBREE -

KRB AR IBHE 2 FEUTRIR TS B AR DT BRI B R R EC 8k 2 R EABRE - ERHEREEZENHIEDEFESEHRATEETRIE
Btk BIUBEAERE - ZRABEIEE  SIEBMEE  dREENRIESAES)  BFFHRADKRRAIEHNG - AitE
AR BRIERRAMF LR ER R RO R ENZSFRBFBELTEES -
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25. Cash and Deposits with Banks

RERIBITER
Consolidated #2& University A2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFBTst) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Cash at Banks and on Hand RERIRITHER 680,255 503,664 522,261 398,176
Short-term Deposits SHATS R 2,956,164 2,825,822 2,916,834 2,787,730
Cash and Deposits with Banks in the BHARREKRAZ
Statement of Financial Position RERBITHER 3,636,419 3,329,486 3,439,095 3,185,906
Less: Short-term Deposits with over o =ER%
Three Months to Maturity EIEA2
when Placed GLEZ (2,623,170)  (2,771,587)  (2,599,894) (2,749,332)
Cash and Cash Equivalents in BEREXAZ
the Statement of Cash Flows RERIREEHEBY 1,013,249 557,899 839,201 436,574

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

B SEEEHNSEHVHR

The table below details changes in the Consolidated Entity and University’s liabilities from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows as cash flows from financing activities.

TRFULFERRARKERE THNEEES) - BERERIFFSEE - METHEENSE - BBSHRKNEDREFSERE
RIREREXRPORAMNEEBEENIRER

Consolidated and University

IRERARE
Bank Loan
Loans and for On-
Borrowings lending to Staff
(note 26) (note 23) Total
BETHHE
ERREE ZIATER
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFBTet) (MizE26) (Bi=E23) @zt
At 1 July 2017 20176781 B1#58% 843,994 24,710 868,704
Changes from financing cash flows: HERDRE 8% :
Bank Loans Drawn Down for On-lending to Staff EEIHEmE ZRITER - 940 940
Repayment of Bank Loans for On-lending to Staff BB EESIHME ZIRITER - (5,820) (5,820)
Repayment of Bank Loans EBEBIRITER (291,400) - (291,400)
Repayment of Government Loans BEHFER (44,141) - (44,141)
Finance costs paid for Loans and Borrowings ENERREE ZMBER (6,441) - (6,441)
Total changes from financing cash flows MERERE 2R 502,012 19,830 521,842
Other changes: E{hg)
Interest expenses FMELZH 6,441 - 6,441

At 30 June 2018 201846830 8#583 508,453 19,830 528,283
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26.

Loans and Borrowings

SREREE
Consolidated and University
IRERARE

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UF8B735t) 2018 2017
Government Loans B ER 508,453 552,594
Bank Loan RITER - 291,400
508,453 843,994

Repayable: B :
Within 1 Year or On Demand —FERAFILERKIEER 44141 100,841
After 1 Year but within 2 Years —FREMFEA 43,081 107,141
After 2 Years but within 5 Years MEBRZERFEA 127,938 304,122
After 5 Years hFR 293,293 331,890

464,312 743,153
508,453 843,994

Government loans were loans from the HKSAR Government to the University for the provision of self-financed
associate degree programmes. The loans are repayable in twenty equal annual instalments over a period of twenty years after the
final drawn down date of each respective loan. The loans for the first ten years are interest-free, and thereafter, will be charged at

a “no-gain-no-loss” interest rate to be determined by the Government. They are unsecured as at 30 June 2018.

The University obtained an unsecured interest-bearing term loan facility of $700 million in 2009 from a bank for the Pak Sui Yuen
Redevelopment Project. The effective interest rate of the loan is 2.7% (2017: 2.3%) per annum. The loan is repayable by 16 semi-
annual instalments (which had commenced in August 2012), with the repayment amount ranging from 0.5% up to 50% of the loan
amount in ascending order. Following the University made early repayments of $100 million in September 2013, $100 million in
September 2015 and $235 million in June 2018, the loan was fully repaid.

HNEFEREHEBFIITHREBRALE @ 6 FFREHEEZEFNBLTBMIRENER - EMAREBRERRRIBIRIIBIU20FF
POMELS - ZIREMNE10FRE » eREAMBUFEIIIN THEER, FRFEN S - FIREMR2018F6F308 M HIKH -

RIBERERIRE  ARR2009F S —IRTRHBIERM SN7EBTERRE - ERNERFRAETF2.7E(2017:2.3
[E) - ERB2012F8FRUHRETR.Z0.5%ZE50% 0 16H15RIE - FF2HUER - ARR2013F9F - 2015F98K2018F68 5!
REERIEET  1BBTR23EBTE  BEBEEER -
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27. Accounts and Other Payables

AT BR R
Consolidated £& University AZ2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UAFBcsth) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Investment Proceeds Payable RERENRIE 286,624 323,295 286,624 323,295
Accounts Payable FERTBRAR 430,503 370,612 350,620 320,279
Funds from Subsidiaries AN NS SE - - 895,830 775,547
Amounts due to the UGC FENHE SRR

Earmarked Grants Refundable [ERIBEREHNE 140,454 137,399 140,454 137,399
Retention Monies and Other Payables REEE R H A ERR 111,857 99,453 89,372 82,132

969,438 930,759 1,762,900 1,638,652

All Accounts Payable and Amounts due to the UGC are expected to be settled within one year. Funds from Subsidiaries amounting
to $895.8 million (2017: $775.5 million) mainly represent the surplus funds of these subsidiaries that are being managed centrally

by the University for generating investment return.

BRI ERRENHEZRFIDFBHIRTIEANITE - 8.958FBB5(2017:7.755BB 1) 2EAHEATRIE  TBRERFA
ROREIRESIR 2 BERES ©
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s2r 28. Provision for Employee Benefits
8 T s F B

28.1  Provision for Employee Benefits
8 ek H

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAF3Bc5t)

Leave Accruals FEST{ERER
Defined Benefit Retirement Schemes ~ FFET@ AR A5 El
(note 28.3) (FyEE28.3)
Contract Gratuities Hmi <=
Salaries eS|
Long Service Payment and Others RUIRH = R EM
Payable: FERT -
Within 1 Year —FA
After 1 Year —F%

28.2 Employee Benefits Assets
SIBMNEE

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAF3Bcst)

Consolidated #& University A&
2018 2017 2018 2017
389,643 386,357 361,477 359,173
130,572 152,158 130,572 152,158
119,808 111,136 119,808 111,136
99,104 81,346 43,542 31,797
19,524 18,176 12,001 10,358
758,651 749,173 667,400 664,622
396,063 363,253 307,340 281,279
362,588 385,920 360,060 383,343
758,651 749,173 667,400 664,622

Defined Benefit Retirement Schemes (note 28.3) SFRET@fIEIR5TEI(Fi5E28.3)

Consolidated and University

RERAE
2018 2017
599 312

notes for the contribution and benefit details of the six schemes as follows:

Defined benefit retirement schemes

REBARIKRFTE
o Mixed Service Pension Scheme (“MSP”)
RERBERIKEETE

e The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme (“ASRG”)
SBETARSHNS TRASEEI( "#MSETRAE. )

Defined contribution retirement schemes

REMRIKRGTE

e The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Superannuation Fund — Part B (“SF (Part B)”)
EBETIRBRARE () "RARE(2%8),)

. The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Provident Fund (“ASPF”)
SRETARSHEHETNEE( "HHETAEE )

e Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”)
AHMENTEEEEI( TREEEEL )

Variable benefit retirement scheme

o #ig AR IRETE

e The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Superannuation Fund — Part A (“SF (Part A)”)
EBRTABRKE(PE)( SRAE(PE).)

RRELRABFHEE T - ZRA/ESTRH I/VERNSTBIMIFHBELTR - BRSRINSTBINSRABHISFS

FSREBMIEWT -

Notes

B 5E

28.3.1

28.3.2

28.4

28.4

327 For provision of retirement benefits to its employees, the University operates and makes relevant contributions to six retirement schemes. Please refer to the respective
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28.

Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)
8 Tie5e(18)

28.3

28.3.1

Defined Benefit Retirement Schemes

FEBFRIASTE]

The University makes contributions to the following two defined benefit retirement schemes, i.e., Mixed Service
Pension Scheme (“MSP”) and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme

(“ASRG”).

ARBIBEHUTRIBFREBFIRAGTBIETHMN - MBS EIRECRFEAREZSIEIRSBIETRBHESE TRIAE

STEI( "THEEIRIREL ) -

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (BAF8oTat)

Mixed Service Pension Scheme BERFBERKRESE

Defined Benefit Liability as at 30 June ReA30BNREBIEE

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University EBIETIRES
Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme HANE TRIAEET 8

Defined Benefit Asset as at 30 June R6B30BHNREBIEE

Mixed Service Pension Scheme
/tbmﬁﬁf%@ﬁiﬁéj

Consolidated and University

FERARE
2018 2017
130,572 152,158
130,572 152,158
599 312
599 312

The MSP operates under Chapter 90 of the Law, Pensions (Special Provisions) (Hong Kong Polytechnic) Ordinance. The

Ordinance was enacted to accommodate the pensionable Civil Servants who were seconded to serve the University

and continued to work in the University after secondments with their pensionable status remained undisturbed. The

scheme benefits are financed entirely by the University and no assets have been set aside to meet the scheme benefits.

Under the scheme, a retired employee is entitled to a monthly pension payment based on a multiple of his final salary

and years of service that he provided.

The scheme exposes the University to interest rate risk, inflation risk and longevity risk.

BERBEBRARESTEIRBEBIEFFEIOE HERAEIFEIRE)(SBIZTEMR)BRAIL (TR, )EF - WIRAISEAETE

FHRAREEBHNAHE » RFFDRREEEFRIIFR  HRIGRAREEBAZHE
IMRBABEELUZ A STEIEA

FISTEIAN - ERNMEE B RESTS RN BRI E TEBNREFHRRF TSRS

LTI S REREN KRR  BEFRERERSEE

o STEIBAZB AN » TR
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28.

28.3.1

Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)
8 TiaFI#HR(8)

Mixed Service Pension Scheme (Cont’d)
EERBRAEETEIE)

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position were as follows:

M BINRKIED 2 BERT :

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ATFBTst)
Present Value of Wholly EPRBEEE
Unfunded Obligations NIRE

Defined Benefit Liability as at 30 June ReA30BNREBIMESE

Consolidated and University
RERAE

2018 2017

130,572 152,158

130,572 152,158

A portion of the above liability was expected to be settled after more than one year. However, it was not practicable to

segregate this amount from the amounts payable in the next twelve months, as future pension payments would also relate to

future changes in actuarial assumptions and market conditions. Therefore, the entire amount was classified as a non-current

liability.

ERESABERBEIFRIBEE  AM » BIRRREGEAENRERFBERZ R HIREENER - (TR BRI BERAERK12

BENENEEPOH - Bit - LHBRESWMAIERBEIE -

Movements in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations were as follows:

REBFNSEIREOVESHUT ¢

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MAFBTst)
As at 1 July R7B18
Remeasurements St E

RBEADBEBREEE)Z

Actuarial Loss arising from

Changes in Demographic Assumptions BEEBE

Actuarial Gain arising from KRB FHRREE) 2
Changes in Financial Assumptions BE R

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising from KBRS
Experience KBS (RER)/E1E

Interest Cost If=y5%N

Benefits Paid AN

As at 30 June R68308

Consolidated and University

RERAE

2018 2017

152,158 166,012

1,550 1,590

(6,918) (5,311)

(3,467) 3,719
(8,835) @)
1,881 1,268

(14,632) (15,120)

130,572 152,158

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at 30 June 2018 was 6.2 years (2017: 6.4 years).

REBFEER2018F63308 0 FIIFEER6.25(2017:6.45F) ©
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28. Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)
8 T e M B (18)

28.3.1 Mixed Service Pension Scheme (Cont’d)
EERBERINESTEI(HE)

() Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income were as follows:

EEEWZEXRPHEBOVEEZRNT -

Consolidated and University

FERAZ
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFEst) 2018 2017
Amounts recognised under TEWZ BRIR P BT
Teaching and Research HER BT
in the Income and Expenditure Statement: FriEsRey£2a:
Net Interest on SERFFREZ
Net Defined Benefit Liability FRE 1,881 1,268
Amounts recognised in TEHEMEEKZEP
the Other Comprehensive Income: BT ENEER
Actuarial Gain BERER (8,835) (2)

Total Defined Benefit (Income)/Cost FRETBA (W) R E AR 58 (6,954) 1,266
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28.

28.3.1

Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)
8 Tia M B (18)

Mixed Service Pension Scheme (Cont’d)
EOIRFBEAEETEIE)

Significant Actuarial Assumptions and Sensitivity Analysis were as follows:

EABEBRABBEIIWT -

Discount Rate IR
Future Pension Increases RIGRIAEZFHIE
Mortality LT

As at
30 June 2018

R2018%F68308

2.1% p.a.
BF2.1%

2.5% p.a.
552.5%

Hong Kong

Life Tables 2016
BB A0%E5HZR2016

As at
30 June 2017

R2017568308

1.3% p.a.
FF1.3%
2.5% p.a.
FE2.5%

Hong Kong
Life Tables 2015
BBAO%a72015

The below analysis shows the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the significant actuarial assumptions:

TIRFERFESELHBRIEERLESOBRE Z0HT

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT Tst)
Change in
Assumption
R &)
Discount Rate IIRR 0.25%
Future Pension Increases RISRIRETHIB 0.25%
Mortality AEICEE D
1

Impact on Defined
Benefit Obligation

HREBNESENTE

Increase in Decrease in
Assumption Assumption
RERIZ 10 (52

2018 2017 2018 2017
(2,036) (2,540) 2,095 2,616

1,944 2,416

(7,115) (8,606)

1,899)  (2,360)

7,195 8,744

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that changes in actuarial assumptions are not correlated and therefore

it does not take into account the correlations between the actuarial assumptions.

ERHRBEDITEERSIRBEEMBREE RGBT - Bt HBESERRZENBREMEIDRE

STEER -
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28.

28.3.2

Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)
8 TisFIB R (18)

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme
SBIETIARBEHEE RSl

The ASRG is administered by an independent trustee with its assets held separately from those of the University. The ASRG
is funded by contributions from the University in accordance with an independent actuary's recommendation based on
periodic actuarial valuations. The latest independent actuarial valuation of the ASRG was at 31 December 2016 and was
prepared using the attained age method. The actuarial valuation indicated that the scheme assets were sufficient to meet the
scheme obligations.

Members of the ASRG are entitled to the scheme benefits upon normal retirement, early retirement, ill-health or death. The
benefits are calculated based on a multiple of their final salary and years of service in the scheme.

The scheme exposes the University to investment risk, interest rate risk and salary risk.

HHE T ERNRENEERRARNEELREE » UHBIISTAEE - HPE TEARESBEIRIRBEIEEMERLES
HEMRE 2 EE RN - BABNBIBEGLEREZR20165F128318  iZEETERERE - ZBEEGERD
STEINEERITHEERR °

STEIRES I RERENR » IR IRIK  RENFHIEESER - BRFTEESERELEBNREFINAGTEIARSFEN T

BBl S KEREIRE R ~ FURE bR DUR Hol b -

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position were as follows:

BN RIET 2 BIERWT -

Consolidated and University

RERAE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UFB s 2018 2017
Present Value of Wholly or Partly Funded Obligations ~ E80%EDEESEIRE 3,803 5,863
Fair Value of Scheme Assets STEIBENAREE (4,402) (6,175)
Defined Benefit Asset as at 30 June R6B30BHFR ERMEE (599) (312)

A portion of the above asset was expected to be recovered after more than one year. However, it was not practicable to
segregate this amount from the amounts recoverable in the next twelve months, as future contributions would also relate to
future services rendered and future changes in actuarial assumptions and market conditions. Therefore, the entire amount
was classified as a non-current asset. In addition, the expected employer contribution by the University to the scheme for
the financial year ending 30 June 2019 is nil.

EuER D BETARE I FRINE » M BRRROHERERIIEHORFEBERRRHIREBNERE - S ERBREHER
EARRI2ELBNENEERPOFH - Fit - EHRESMAIERBEE ° tbIh - FRREZE2019F68308 LM INFE F518
NRAREHERRE °
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28. Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)
8 Tiafl R (18)

28.3.2 The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme (Cont’d)
SBIE T AR2WEN S TiRIRE5TEI(18)

(b) Movements in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations were as follows:

FERFNSERENESHIT

Consolidated and University

REORKE

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UTF8755t) 2018 2017
As at 1 July RrR7B18 5,863 7,317
Remeasurements BHTE

Actuarial Gain arising from REFHREEE 2

Changes in Financial Assumptions BERER (119) (159)

Actuarial Loss/(Gain) arising from REEHZ

Experience EEEE/(RER) 1 (133)

(118) (292)

Current Service Cost SHRFBMN A 4 46
Interest Cost ISV %S 50 43
Benefits Paid TSz (1,996) (1,251)
As at 30 June R6A8308 3,803 5,863

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at 30 June 2018 was 3.1 years (2017: 3.0 years).

SREBAMEER2018F6 83088 NIEFIIFHIR3.15(2017:3.06F) °
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28.

28.3.2
(0
(d)

Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)
8 TiaFBHE(18)

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme (Cont’d)
ERETASHYE TRNEFTEI(1E)

Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme Assets were as follows:
StEIEENARBEESHOT -
Consolidated and University

RERARE

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ATFBITEH 2018 2017
As at 1 July R7818 6,175 6,752
Contributions by Employer fEEHR 3 31

Administrative Expenses ITIER (1) )
Interest Income RN 53 40
Return on Scheme Assets, FOBRAI SIS

excluding Interest Income STEIEEDR 168 605

Benefits Paid TERSZ A (1,996) (1,251)
As at 30 June R68308 4,402 6,175

Scheme Assets consist of the following:

STEIEERG NIIBIA
Consolidated and University
RERARE

2018 2017
% %
Equities ’RE 37 39
Fixed Income Securities BEUWNESS 60 56
Cash R= 3 5
Total #3%a 100 100

As at 30 June 2018, 35% of fixed income securities and 100% of equities had quoted prices in active markets (2017: 32% and

100% respectively). The remainder of the fixed income securities did not have quoted prices in active markets.

[R20185E6 5308 * 35%0IEEUWNESE100% I RRIEENISE T EEENMBTEEB(2017:251/R32%K100%) < BFE
NESHER FEMDIRSRMISIDR BT EBENG B TAEEE -
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28. Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)
8 Tiafl &R (18)

28.3.2 The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme (Cont’d)

SBETASWHEE TIRINESTEI(18)

(e) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income were as follows:

AR PHEBOEERNT :

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Amounts recognised under
Management & General and
Premises & Related Expenses in the
Income and Expenditure Statement:

Current Service Cost

Net Interest on Net Defined
Benefit Asset

Administrative Expenses

Amounts recognised in
the Other Comprehensive Income:

Actuarial Gain

Return on Scheme Assets,
excluding Interest Income

Total Defined Benefit Income

(AT Tst)

W2 ERE P8I
EIER—RIBEH
RERBRRZ
PTEsRE0E2R:

SERBAE
FEBINFEEZ
RS

ITHER

FEHMEBENED
TesBevE2a:

BERER

F0BRF S UIALY
STEIEEOR

FERFIARER

Consolidated and University

IToRARE
2018 2017
4 46
3) 3
1 2
2 51
(118) (292)
(168) (605)
(286) (897)
(284) (846)
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28.

28.3.2

Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)
ST EEGE)

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Retirement Gratuity Scheme (Cont’d)
SBIE T RBWHEN S TiRIRE5TEI(H8)

Significant Actuarial Assumptions and Sensitivity Analysis were as follows:

ERBHBRAGHEDROT :

As at As at
30 June 2018 30 June 2017

R2018%F68308 1R2017868308

. = 2.0% p.a. 1.0% p.a.
FIRE . .
Discount Rate FF2.0% 551.0%
o, K o,
Future Salary Increases E S il 3.50% p.a. 3.50-3.75% p-a.

53.50% &53.50-3.75%

The below analysis shows the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the significant actuarial assumptions:

NIRREBFEEHEREERDEENHRE 20T :

Impact on Defined Benefit

Obligation
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UF8Tet) HRERNEENFE
Change in Increase in Decrease in
Assumption Assumption Assumption
{ReR 1) {ERERIZ 0 [EE

2018 2017 2018 2017

Discount Rate IR 0.25% (28) (43) 29 44
Future Salary Increases REFEFHIS 0.25% 29 43 (28) (42)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that changes in actuarial assumptions are not correlated and
therefore it does not take into account the correlations between the actuarial assumptions.

ERgREDITEERSIREERRESNDREBEME At WEERRZENEEEIRESTEER -
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28.

28.4

Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)
8 TTaF R (18)

Defined Contribution Retirement Schemes
FREHFRRIAGTE]

The University operates two defined contribution retirement schemes, i.e., The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Superannuation
Fund — Part B and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University Ancillary Staff Provident Fund (“ASPF”) under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance. Both schemes are administered by independent trustees. The members of the two schemes
and the University are required to make contributions at fixed percentages of the members’ salaries to the respective schemes.
The University’s contributions to the two schemes vest in accordance with their respective vesting scales as stipulated under the
scheme rules. The University also guarantees the members of the ASPF an interest at a rate of not less than 4% per annum to
members’ fund balances. As at 30 June 2018, the income from the investments under the ASPF was not sufficient to produce
interest at the rate of 4% per annum and so a scheme liability of $0.2 million representing the investment income shortfall was
recognised at year-end. The University’s contributions to these two defined contribution retirement schemes for the financial
year ended 30 June 2018 were $27.5 million (2017: $28.4 million).

The University also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees under the jurisdiction of the Employment Ordinance and not covered by the University’s
other retirement schemes. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered by two independent
trustees and comprises two member classes — Basic and Class A. The mandatory contributions from Basic and Class A members
and the University vest immediately while the University’s voluntary contributions for Class A members to the MPF Scheme
vest in accordance with the vesting scale as stipulated in the participation agreements of the MPF Scheme. The University’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme for the financial year ended 30 June 2018 were $210.8 million (2017: $197.6 million).

£ THSESRSTEIRSIL T 0 ARIBEMBFERFERETE] 0 DRIATEBIEIAERARE(CR)REBEIASHMET NEE
(THEETIREE . ) - MIBSTEIBEIZEAEE - ARRSTEIZMEBDEIMENFEIFEEES D L ZHHREERISTEIA -
B PHEZAREEREIRE - IDIKIBMIAsTEIZIRAIARENERERESTE - ARINHEE TABEMERE  YBEADRENE
EAGERZA%NNES - HE2018F68308 @ WIS T AEENREWARNBI%NES @ Bi208BTRRREWNANBOFTEIGE
ERERMER - 1R2018F6 8308 LHHNFER » AR EMIBSFREHFURIASTEIZ#ER2,7508%5T(2017:2,8408%7T) °

ERHMATEEST BRI - ARAIIBHIMENTEREE( "REEFEL ) REEEERMIEBEINIAEMEAGEIRENE TR
HRIE - BIRESTEIR —FEHFURIASTE]  ILETEICZMERIBERERIK PRREBA - BMIZEIIZTAEIE - SHEINEARRIR
PREBINE - DIRFKPAELEOVEHIEHR - BISBRETNE - FRNERPIRBRINE LB - mBRMEHERZEE
AKIBREESTEI S RIFENREREE - R2018F6 308 I-HIWFE - ARYBEEE2HRR2.108{5875(2017:1.976

=BT) °
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28.

28.5

Provision for Employee Benefits (Cont'd)
8 T s & e (18)

Variable Benefit Retirement Scheme
o] Eig MR ARG 2]

The University also makes contributions to a variable benefit retirement scheme, i.e., The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
Superannuation Fund — Part A (“SF (Part A)”). The SF (Part A), which was restructured on 31 March 1995, becomes “self-
balancing” in that over time liabilities will automatically equal assets, much akin to a defined contribution retirement scheme.
The restructuring has limited the University’s liability to the sum of the Aggregate Guaranteed Amounts (i.e. “normal” leaving
service benefits as at 31 March 1995) and the Aggregate Minimum Amounts (i.e. the sum of each member’s Minimum Amount,
which is an amount equal to 5% x final annual salary x years of fund services following 31 March 1995). No additional cash
injection to the SF (Part A) by the University is required unless the market value of the fund assets is lower than such liability,

the occurrence of which is very unlikely.

The SF (Part A) is funded by contributions from the University and the members at fixed percentages of the members’ salaries.
The University’s contributions to the SF (Part A) for the financial year ended 30 June 2018 were $32.4 million (2017: $35.0
million). The latest independent actuarial valuation as at 31 December 2017 indicated that the fund assets were sufficient to
meet the aggregate vested liability and the regular contributions together with the fund assets were expected to be sufficient to
meet the sum of the Aggregate Guaranteed Amounts and the Aggregate Minimum Amounts throughout the three-year period
after 31 December 2017. As at 30 June 2018, the net assets of the SF (Part A) amounting to $1,377.9 million (2017: $1,424.5
million) were sufficient to meet the Aggregate Guaranteed Amounts and the Aggregate Minimum Amounts of $77.0 million
(2017: $89.4 million) and $243.8 million (2017: $253.4 million) respectively.

FRINBHIEBRRAGTE - BISBIETARRARE (PR SRAE(PR) L FBHER - RES(PH)R1995F383181FH
1£8] » MAREBEIREBEZE S EPNEESEIMHEFRERE @ BREHMTFORASEIBL - ZUSTTEFARNEERRIBR
BHEEA(BIMER1995F 3831 BIERBEEH 2 REEHN) ERREER(BISMEZREHERZMN - HEFRS% x REFH x 1995
FI[3NBRBRREZBRBEE) BN - RIBERREBEEZHHBEERILEE @ SRIFRERRERAE(FR)IEABIINE
£ BRI FE ROV ST T A

BRIRE(PR) DBEIREMEMBRIMENFZIFLEEES DLV - EZ22018F6830BLEHHER » AREIRIRE(FH)
ZHERR3,2408855(2017:3,5008 8 1) - [)R2017F12831B2RAHNBIIEEGLEEL  BREEERMUENHEER
8F  BRFRERRRESEEZRTHEREUEN2017F128318R3FANRBRZLZALEBRELZAZBA - R2018F67
308/ RAE(PR)BEEFERI3.779RB(2017:14.245F8 7t) » BHE7,70087855(2017:8,9408 8 1) (0B R B 2IZR
F22.438{838750(2017:2.534{F 8 70) (U IBRILENER -
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29. Deferred Income

EIEUTA

(In thousands of
Hong Kong dollars)
At 1 July 2016

Subventions/Donations
Received or Receivable

Recognised as Income
for the Year

Transferred to
Deferred Capital Funds

At 30 June 2017

Subventions/Donations
Received or Receivable

Recognised as Income
for the Year

Transferred to
Deferred Capital Funds

At 30 June 2018

To be Recognised

gy

Balance at 30 June 2017
Within 1 Year
After 1 Year

Balance at 30 June 2018
Within 1 Year
After 1 Year

(LLFB3TEh)

120167818

BUEIEI
BERAEES

KEEHESR
N

BiRE

1R201786H308

BUEIELR
BERABHE

FEEHER
N

BiRE

1R201856H308

1R201786H308
—FAR
—F1E

1R2018F64308
—FR
—FE

Consolidated #7&

Capital Grants
Earmarked Other Grants & from
Block Research  Earmarked AA&IBlock Government Donations
Grants Grants Grants  Allocations Agencies and Others Total
Hi2fmEE
JSTAEER
BE Efh 10 - #B B
2Ee A BERE RINEIRE RS B .
= = EIE BESRER B REHfb iRt
- 227,533 60,119 256,920 184,746 35,962 765,280
2,752,155 112,383 94,352 82,091 176,485 66,738 3,284,204
(2,526,723) (137,159) (49,413) (6,795) (237,635) (63,250)  (3,020,975)
(225,432) - (490) (55,867) - (7,577) (289,366)
- 202,757 104,568 276,349 123,596 31,873 739,143
2,786,090 114,379 14,370 59,246 229,415 110,311 3,313,811
(2,634,058) (124,633) (52,760) (7433) (218,762) (82,587) (3,120,233)
(152,032) - (119) (65,941) - (27,976)  (246,068)
- 192,503 66,059 262,221 134,249 31,621 686,653
- 98,911 104,568 276,349 112,435 29,043 621,306
- 103,846 - - 11,161 2,830 117,837
- 202,757 104,568 276,349 123,596 31,873 739,143
- 91,624 66,059 262,221 124,029 26,456 570,389
- 100,879 - - 10,220 5,165 116,264
- 192,503 66,059 262,221 134,249 31,621 686,653
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29. Deferred Income (Cont'd)
JEIELSI (F8)
University X2
Capital Grants
Earmarked Other Grants & from Donations
Block Research Earmarked  AA&IBlock Government and
Grants Grants Grants Allocations Agencies Others Total
Ei2fmehE
JSBEER
BE Hitn 02 ~ S I35
(In thousands of ) e BN BERE  RMEIR e 1B
Hong Kong dollars) (AFE7cst) wmEE fEE HEE BRSRER BER R Efh 5t
At 1 July 2016 R20165E7818 - 227,533 60,119 256,920 171,769 33,914 750,255
Subventions/Donations BEULEEELR
Received or Receivable — BEFR/4ER8 2,752,155 112,383 94,352 82,091 170,402 66,207 3,277,590
Recognised as Income REEHED
for the Year 2N (2,526,723) (137,159) (49,413) (6,795) (226,799) (62,306) (3,009,195)
Transferred to EIRE
Deferred Capital Funds BEBAES (225,432) - (490) (55,867) - (7,577) (289,366)
At 30 June 2017 R2017868308 - 202,757 104,568 276,349 115,372 30,238 729,284
Subventions/Donations BINERELL
Received or Receivable — HEFR/AERE 2,786,090 114,379 14,370 59,246 211,595 110,159 3,295,839
Recognised as Income REERED
for the Year 2N (2,634,058) (124,633)  (52,760) (7,433)  (204,510) (81,812)  (3,105,206)
Transferred to EIRE
Deferred Capital Funds EEBAES (152,032) - (119) (65,941) - (27,976) (246,068)
At 30 June 2018 R20185 68308 - 192,503 66,059 262,221 122,457 30,609 673,849
To be Recognised
e T
Balance at 30 June 2017 1R2017FE68308
Within 1 Year —FA - 98,911 104,568 276349 104,211 27,408 611,447
After 1 Year —F - 103,846 - - 11,161 2,830 117,837
- 202,757 104,568 276,349 115,372 30,238 729,284
Balance at 30 June 2018 1R2018%63308
Within 1 Year —FR - 91,624 66,059 262,221 112,237 25,444 557,585
After 1 Year —F& - 100,879 - - 10,220 5,165 116,264
- 192,503 66,059 262,221 122,457 30,609 673,849




PolyU Financial Report 2017/18

337 30. Deferred Capital Funds

Consolidated and University

RoRARE
Construction Furniture,
in Equipment Library
Buildings Progress & Fittings Collections Total
(In thousands of ZRIAL ~ 580 B3
Hong Kong dollars) (UAFE7Tst) 2= EETRE REE S RSt
Balance at 1 July 2016 R201657 8184567 3,303,262 17,370 426,785 24,266 3,771,683
Additions during the Year AXEEIRE 605 120,273 163,972 4,516 289,366
Transfers EER 65,136 (65,136) - = =
Release to Income and RS
Expenditure Statement 137 BR1B (176,293) - (140,873) (8,570) (325,736)
Balance at 30 June 2017  }R20175E68308 #5863 3,192,710 72,507 449,884 20,212 3,735,313
Additions during the Year AFEIZE 100,429 65,482 75,232 4,925 246,068
Transfers AR 81,510 (81,510) - - -
Release to Income and SERES
Expenditure Statement K2 BEIB (222,272) - (136,264) (7,491) (366,027)
Balance at 30 June 2018 /22018463308 #58% 3,152,377 56,479 388,852 17,646 3,615,354

33 7 Deferred Capital Funds are categorised into four by the nature of fixed assets. It is released to the Income and Expenditure Statement to offset against the depreciation

charge for the related assets.

BEEARFIRETEERRDRORE - BLEEAETSEIRE W IRIBLURHZAEBEENTESL -
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31.

32.

Capital Management
BAEE

The University is a government subvented education institution established under the laws of HKSAR, which objects are to
provide for studies, training and research in technology, science, commerce, arts and other subjects of learning. The University
is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements, except as stated in note 11.2(a) and its activities are mainly funded
by government grants and tuition fees, the spending of which is governed by the UGC Notes on Procedures and other grant
conditions. The University’s activities are also funded by donations and funds generated from self-financing activities.

The various funds represent the unspent balance of such grants, income, donations and other specific purpose funds. These funds
are managed according to the relevant grant and funding conditions, where applicable, and the University’s investment and
financial management guidelines and procedures with the view of meeting the objects of the University.

None of the University’s subsidiaries is subject to any externally imposed capital requirements and their capital management
policies are governed by the University’s financial management guidelines and procedures with the view of safeguarding the
subsidiaries” ability to continue as a going concern.

ARE—MIRBESEBRITHELR  WHIFERMAIINEN  HRERERREHES 183 RAB B2 B 21
A Efn 22 BREETHIT o FRISMIEET1.2()30885) » ARUESIMENBAREMRE - HIFEREBHBHNRPNERBENAE
g MEMASEZRHNESREFEEREMBEEMTBOREESR © 1L > BERBEEEETHMH RO NAERVEENIE
HBEERIR

SBRELZIEREAZMHEE WA~ BERHEMEERAZENES - ARERBEHEMBHERBFRGEHUWER) - RABRERYH
BIEESIRERF  RAREGFARONREMERELES -

ARNMBATUEZIMNENELAREMRE » EEFECIEINREHAIRNYHEIRESIREFAEH @ BRERENELIRHE
HEZBEREN ©

Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
TREREERANEGEE

The Consolidated Entity’s financial risks associated with financial instruments are mainly attributable to financial assets which
include cash and deposits with banks, held-to-maturity debt securities and trading securities managed by external professional
investment managers. The risks on investments are controlled in accordance with the University’s Statement of Investment
Policies and Guidelines (“SIPG”) formulated by the Investment Committee, which is responsible for the governance on investment
management for the University, and approved by the University Council. This is achieved through diversified asset allocation,
rules governing the selection and credit limit of investment counterparties with reference to their credit rating and financial
strength, and investment mandates for each investment manager governing the asset allocation, investment limitations and
performance measurement of the portfolio. On-going monitoring of investment strategies and performance are carried out by the
Investment Committee to ensure that the investment objectives and performance targets are met. Asset allocation of the University
investments is managed by the Investment Committee, taking into consideration the cash flow requirements as well as the strategic
development of the University.

mEREZEMIECHARIRREESRNEE BERERRITEN  FE2HHEHES  REXREKECENESE
5 HRETENRAREHEEREXERECENREZEEMHEIRASERES M ENRERIRIESIEE - AREIEE
BEDPHEERN  2ERVESNESNRNPNENMIIENREREERE  BREERREDENRESEH » MREE
BIEEICIERIRIFLEE - ZREZESHBEEEERERBEXBUBREZRPNREEBRRKRIR - REZSSILABMIR
ERBRRRBERIFEEEIRN
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32. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Cont'd)
TRERSERADBEGE)

(a)

Credit Risk
EERK

The Consolidated Entity’s exposure to credit risk is mainly attributable to cash and deposits with banks, held-to-maturity debt
securities and fixed income securities classified as trading securities. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of these financial assets in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

The majority of all Consolidated Entity’s cash and deposits are placed with local licensed banks. The credit risk on cash
and deposits placed with local licensed bank and held-to-maturity debt securities are limited because the counterparties
are mainly banks and companies with high credit-rating assigned by international credit-rating agencies as specified in the
SIPG. For fixed income securities classified as trading securities that are managed by professional investment managers, the
credit risk control is achieved through investment guidelines set out in investment management agreements, which cover
the selection and credit limit of investment counterparties with reference to their credit rating and financial strength.

The Consolidated Entity has no significant concentration of credit risk, with a diversified exposure over a large number of
counterparties.

HEREZSIRERBITIGR  FTEERIBPEFES  RELRESEESNEENNBHF ZEERARTE - MENRS
EERBAFEEMBINREXASETHEENKBE -

REDIRERNBERTHRIITRAMITRIRT - REREBSIBERSZZS—HEEZRRITREKREEHBEHBTSEN

ROAT - AUZFRERBITERARGEEL2ENEFES 2EERARER - ERBRRESBZF ZEBTEWAES » HE

Baimiﬂ?_?zééﬁﬁ’mdﬂeﬁ& SHEFHRE  EPBESERES —HNEEFRRYFENKEITERERZNHER
EHEERE -

SEARBRZNHIFDRUIRE @ URBREEPHNEERAR -

“-mh

3

e

Foreign Currency Risk
INEE R B

Foreign currency risk arises where assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency different from the functional currency
of the Consolidated Entity, which is the Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD”). For cash and deposits with banks and held-to-maturity
debt securities, there are investment guidelines governing the exposure denominated in foreign currencies. As at 30 June
2018, cash and deposits with banks and held-to-maturity debt securities are not materially exposed to currencies other than
HKD, United States Dollar (“USD”) and Renminbi (“RMB”). As HKD is currently pegged to the USD, the risk of movements
in exchange rates between the two currencies is considered insignificant. Despite the increase in holding of RMB financial
assets during 2017/18, the Consolidated Entity’s and the University’s total income would have decreased/increased by 0.4%
(2017: 0.2%) and 0.3% (2017: 0.2%) respectively if RMB had been depreciated/appreciated against HKD by 10%, with all
other variables being held constant. Therefore, the currency risk of RMB exposure is limited.

INERIRZBRBEIRGERNEEESEE( "B, ) ZEERBERSHEBEMESE - HRBERRITEN > REBEIEH
BEFES  RoRUREESIERIINERSE - R2018F68308 @ IRERIIRPITHER » MIFBERRHREHES  RIBT
ETRAREIN RERIURBAEUEMINESHEZIRE - BRBIEETED » EMESBHNERBH K - BEM
BENAREEMEERE2017/18FEIEN  EHMIBREFTAET @ HEARBEBIT TERHLH10%  REERAROY
FRUIAEZ D BRI 238 100.4%(2017:0.2%) 5.0.3%(2017:0.2%) » FIMAREIRENBRBIR -
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32. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Cont'd)
TRRRESERADBEGE)

(b) Foreign Currency Risk (Cont’d)
HNES LB (#8)

In respect of the trading securities that are mainly managed by professional investment managers, the majority of these
securities are denominated in HKD and USD, and the investment managers are allowed to use currency forward contracts
to manage the foreign currency risk exposure.

As at 30 June 2018, the percentage of financial assets denominated in currencies other than HKD and USD to total financial
assets (which also included cash and deposits with banks, investment proceeds receivable and investment proceeds payable)
of the Consolidated Entity and the University were 3.8% (2017: 2.6%) and 2.6% (2017: 2.1%) respectively. Apart from the
financial assets held by the Consolidated Entity and the University denominated in RMB of 3.6% (2017: 2.3%) and 2.4%
(2017: 1.8%) respectively, the remaining 0.2% (2017: 0.3%) of financial assets denominated in foreign currencies other
than USD were represented by various currencies, with not more than 0.5% in any single currency. Details of financial

assets denominated in foreign currencies are as follows:

ZRODFERERIEMERNEBRES  APDPBERBLRETE X MEERKENYBEBBESHEIRMBEL NI
MR o

[R20185F 68308 @ {RERRABLIFEB TR ETSHENENEE LR ENEE(BBRERBITENR - REBUFERIEER
3RIB) 2 LR BIR3.8%(2017:2.6%) 2.6%(2017:2.1%) © [ 375 8823.6%(2017:2.3%) % AE222.4%(2017:1.8%) AR
EESHENEREE » FER0.2%(2017:0.3%)MIFETTHENEMEE S RSEER - & —RBHNEE0.5% ° MINESHENER

BEFIBUWT :
Consolidated #37& University &2
2018 2017 2018 2017
% % % %
United States Dollars E7T 64.9 74.8 66.6 76.6
Renminbi ARE 3.6 2.3 2.4 1.8
Others Hitd 0.2 0.3 0.2 0.3

(c) Interest Rate Risk
R B B2

The Consolidated Entity has exposure to interest rate risk through the impact of the rate changes on cash and deposits with
banks as well as interest bearing financial assets, including those managed by professional investment managers as well
as interest-bearing borrowings. The Consolidated Entity manages the exposure to interest rate risk through diversification
of investments into a variety of fixed and floating rate instruments with various tenures. Interest rate swaps and other
derivatives, where necessary, are used by professional investment managers as hedging tools to manage the interest rate

risk of their portfolios.

RERNANREARBIRERRITER @ BFENEHNEE  BERBERLERIECENEMNEERSTROER » BFIRE
HMEEL - FORBEEBREBES TR EEAIBREBRZSBABFHNEEISIBHFNERTE EREEMBHEOF KRR
b - MEEREEIENEEFTE2FEBNREHRSHREMITEENEEFIP TENEEREBSHFIRRERE -
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32. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Cont'd)

ERNEREERALEBEGE)

(c)

Interest Rate Risk (Cont’d)
R R (18)

As at 30 June 2018, income arising from cash and deposits with banks as well as interest bearing financial assets represented
around 1.8% (2017: 1.6%) and 1.9% (2017: 1.8%) of the Consolidated Entity’s and the University’s total income respectively.
A general increase or decrease in interest rates will not have substantial impact on the Consolidated Entity’s and the

University’s operating results and fund balances.

As for interest-bearing borrowings, its exposure primarily relates to floating rate bank loans as detailed in note 26 of the

Financial Statements.

R2018%F6H308 > BIRERIFTHEN » Rt BNEMEEMITENBNADBISIRSIERARBUINET.8%(2017:1.6%)A
1.9%(2017:1.8%) » —RGFIZR_ EFASN NREHFERR AR ZEETRRETHERI A DISHMEARNRZ -

sTREMROREREZMERTEROVS ENRIZRIRS - FIERHIEE26 ©

Liquidity Risk
mENE R

The Consolidated Entity monitors current and expected liquidity requirements regularly to ensure that it maintains sufficient

reserves of cash and readily realisable securities to meet its payment obligations.

The maturity profile of loans and borrowings of the Consolidated Entity and the University is disclosed in note 26. As at
30 June 2018, the Consolidated Entity and the University have sufficient liquid assets to cover all current liabilities due to

external parties as follows:

RN —SPRAENERRIFRAMHZABESTTR  BREFEHREFERNBEIRIR2BEES - USZNMEE
(NE/NE

RERBREARNERZESEIHBIIERHIZE26 - R2018568308 & REBRARITE RN NEEELE[ B LI
BUREIREWNT ¢

Consolidated 58 University A2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ATF787Tat) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Cash and Deposits with Banks RERIRTHER 3,636,419 3,329,486 3,439,095 3,185,906
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities —FAREIHN
with Maturity of Less than 1 Year FERIBERHES 178,694 400,747 178,694 400,747
Fixed Income Securities —FEREEN
with Maturity of Less than 1 Year BEWANZES 45,572 66,839 45,572 66,839
3,860,685 3,797,072 3,663,361 3,653,492
Less: Current Liabilities due to B EINEY
External Parties RENEIR 2,302,653 2,326,330 2,026,962 2,093,593

1,558,032 1,470,742 1,636,399 1,559,899
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32. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Cont'd)

ERERSERADEEGE)

(e) Price Risk
B8Rk

Price risk is associated with changes in the value of the securities (other than those arising from interest rate risk or foreign
currency risk), whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all instruments
traded in the market. As at 30 June 2018, the Consolidated Entity’s exposure to alternative investments was nil. Only
0.02% of total financial assets (which also included cash and deposits with banks, investment proceeds receivable and
investment proceeds payable) were invested in alternative investments as at 30 June 2017. Its exposure to price risk however
arises primarily from equities and fixed income securities which are classified as trading securities. Price risk is managed
by professional investment managers, using various risk management and assessment tools and through comprehensive
monitoring systems. The Consolidated Entity controls its exposure to such price risk by diversifying the portfolios, in terms

of concentration limits on asset types and geographical areas.

If the market prices of equities and fixed income securities classified as trading securities at year end had been 10% higher
or lower, with all other variables being held constant, the value of the Consolidated Entity’s net assets would have increased
or decreased by $315.8 million (2017: $292.9 million) for the year.

BEREERZERN SR KRINE R RRINE S BEEEMSINNAR - HREARRBRREBIGE - HBTE - NREMBRM

ZEETENEZRMES - R2018F68308 @ iRSRUERERFRIRE - MR2017F6F308ERERZBRERER

THREE(BBRERRITER » REBWRIRRIREBAFRIF)EY0.02% o ,urm?ﬁﬁﬁ(zﬁﬂaﬂﬂﬁﬂii%ﬁEﬁﬁa%@%?—i%;ﬁ

FUREREBEWAES - BREAREHBEENKERIZZESERERKRER  THTARGSNERRRMEE - RERE
DHIREIRS @ BERHIEPREREEELNIRITE Lxui}”ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ’ﬂ BigRkE -

EEMABEHEHSASNERT  BEREEEFNRERBENAEBSNHEESREL LA TRE0% @ REERZIFE
R AR BB N0 s A #9315 84 E/EEQOW 2.929%8 ) °

Details of the equities and fixed income securities classified as trading securities by markets at year end are as follows:
RERFERAEEERSNEERETEWANAZSZHIBEROFIBFUT :

Consolidated and University

IRERARE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AT Tst) 2018 2017
Equities and Fixed Income Securities KRERBEWAZE
Hong Kong E 23,598 38,178
usS e 1,717,940 1,455,171
Europe BN 802,197 823,045
Others Hith 614,590 613,031

3,158,325 2,929,425
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32. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Cont'd)
THREEERADBEGE)

(f)  Fair Values
NEE

(i)

Financial Instruments Carried at Fair Value

RARBEIRNEMITE

The following table presents the fair value of financial instruments measured at 30 June 2018 on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three levels of the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference to the observability and significance of
the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical financial instruments at the measurement date

- Level 2 valuations: fair values measured using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1,
and not using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not

available

- Level 3 valuations: fair values measured using significant unobservable inputs

TRIIZIEEMEER2018F6830BHESBUHMSERE133R - ARBESTEMFE NZ=BELAREEFTR
b DUAREBESFEZEMIA - ANEBEGIERBRFRZETE - DR TNINEGED ZPERBNAGE ZIHRE
MREZM :

- ERkGE REAE-REASEBSFEEANER  BRFTEBUEEESM I EAERMIBZRIEHRERE

8H
- BIRGE: EREZRBAZBFHEEANEE W RENEE—RZIBEZHABBRAEBEANIEHE
WARR - NYBRBARURDHBEURREREZBARIR

- EB=RGE  MBBAEREXANYBREEBLUGTERNEE
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32. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Cont'd)
ETREBEERANBEGE)

(f)  Fair Values (Cont’d)
NABEGE)

(i) Financial Instruments Carried at Fair Value (Cont’d)

BRARBEIRNERTEHE)

Consolidated and University

RERAE
2018
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UFBcst) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE—iRk ETHR B=HR st
Equities lisE- 1,757,350 - - 1,757,350
Fixed Income Securities BEWANE - 1,400,975 - 1,400,975
1,757,350 1,400,975 - 3,158,325
Consolidated and University
IRERARE
2017
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFETat) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE—iR Eik FE=ik et
Equities = 1,535,748 - - 1,535,748
Fixed Income Securities BEWNES - 1,393,677 - 1,393,677
Alternative Investments ERESEd— 5 - 1,140 1,140
1,535,748 1,393,677 1,140 2,930,565

During the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2017, there were no significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into
or out of Level 3. The Consolidated Entity’s policy is to recognise significant transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at
the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

REFR EFER F—REEZHRIBURBEBAERS AEAEFJELEE =R - FERZBERERBEBEDBANEESFR
2P E 2ERER -

Valuation technique and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements:

E_RANEEFTEMERZHERDEREUE:

The fair value of fixed income securities in Level 2 is mainly determined by price for identical or similar assets in over the counter

market that are not active.

E_RETEWNZSNAABEIZIFERBINRZTISNZEENEREANEEEREE -
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32. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values (Cont'd)
TRRREEERADBEGE)

(f)  Fair Values (Cont’d)
DRBIE(TE)

(i) Financial Instruments Carried at Fair Value (Cont’d)

RARBEIRNEHMTE(HE)

Information about fair value measurements of instruments in Level 3:

EZREMIBZANBESFTENER :

The fair value of investments portfolio in Level 3 is determined by the unobservable input of price of Hedge Fund
Managers Sub-fund quoted by the third party fund managers.
EoZRPEECHNANEBEDSE=SESKIEHIESKEFEEMFEEBZAYBRIBMERE -

The movement during the period in the balance of Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows:
FE=iREM T ERBEREOVESNO T :

Consolidated and University

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF BT RERAE
Balance at 1 July 2016 R20165E7818 2,270
Net Unrealised Loss KEIRFEIE (743)
Proceeds from Sales EENFTERIE (387)
Balance at 30 June 2017 1R20175FE68308 1,140
Net Realised Loss EEIRFEE (16)
Proceeds from Sales EENAMERIE (1,124)
Balance at 30 June 2018 1R2018FE68308 =

(i) Fair Values of Financial Instruments Carried at Other Than Fair Value

SR AREBEEIIREBF TENAREE

All financial instruments were carried at amounts not materially different from their fair values as at 30 June 2018
and 2017.

R20185F6H8308R2017F68308 ' AT ENKBERAAEBEDESADH
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33.

Involvement with Unconsolidated Structured Entities
KIZENROVBEER 22 H

The table below describes the types of structured entities that the Consolidated Entity and the University do not consolidate but

in which it holds an interest.
TRIBMIFESBRABRGENRBEBRENGEER2ES -

Interest Held by the
Consolidated Entity and
the University

Type of Structured Entity Nature and Purpose Rk AE

fetii eyl EENAE BRNER
Investment funds To manage assets on behalf of third party investors Investments in units
BEES and generate fees for the investment manager. issued by the funds.

DRERE=SREEECEEERP/RELIEELEIRNE

These vehicles are financed through the issue of units
to investors.

I TEBRREERITNEUMES

REBETMBITHEN

The table below sets out interest held by the Consolidated Entity and the University in unconsolidated structured entities. The

maximum exposure to loss is the carrying amount of the financial assets held.

TRIITFEESBRASHRIGES N\RNBEBEEMSEORERS - RANEBERARFEEHMEE 2REE °

Consolidated and University

RERKE
Carrying Amount
Included in Current
Number of Financial Asset
(In thousands of Investee Funds Total Net Assets BEEREBTSHEE
Hong Kong dollars) (AFBTEt) REETHE RFEE ZEREE
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Equity Fund BEES 3 3 179,316,713 142,815,027 1,757,350 1,520,539

During the year, the Consolidated Entity and the University did not provide financial support to unconsolidated structured entities

and have no intention of providing financial or other support.

The Consolidated Entity and the University can redeem units in the above investment funds on a specified date.

REFER > FERRABREARGENRNGEEREHERNTT  DIBRHENVIEMZHNTS -

RERRASYRIBEBHELD LR ERE BV -
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34.

Related Party Transactions
FBATRS

Due to the nature of the University’s operations and the composition of the University Council (being drawn from the University,
private and public sector organisations), it is inevitable that transactions will take place with organisations in which a member of
the University Council may have an interest. All transactions relating to the purchase of goods and services and capital projects
involving companies in which members of the University Council, senior management, directors or shareholders of subsidiaries
may have an interest were conducted on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the Consolidated Entity’s procurement
procedures. Donations received from members of the University Council, senior management, directors and shareholders
of subsidiaries or from companies controlled or significantly influenced by them had been approved in accordance with the

University’s regulations.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Consolidated Entity entered into
the following significant related party transactions including commitments:

BRASBRNEELANREREG ZMEMS(IEAZ s MANASHIBHE)  RBHRPFSLERSENEBRAOMBEMRZ
2 MBERABREEGHE - BIESE WEBLAIZESURREBENRNADET 2 RBEHRERTRR  DRBEEEHZE
BRRIGESENRBRETET - ABREGHE  EESE WBRAIZESRERASHERNEAZENATMNEZE
B ERBEBIETASIRFIESHE -

IREMBREXEMMESBRENRZRIGEI) » REREEMBEEA T ZEARS RAENT !

(a)  The University accepted an unsecured interest-bearing loan facility of $700 million from a bank, in which a consultant is a
member of the University Council, for the Pak Sui Yuen Redevelopment Project. The bank loan has been fully repaid as at
30 June 2018. Details of the bank loan can be referred to note 26. The University held deposits of $6.1 million (2017: $5.8
million) with the bank as at 30 June 2018.

AEEST - BaASRESHERTBERNRITABENERBEERHBEBMET SON7RET2EE - ZIBITER
R2018FE6H30BE L2 EER - RITEMRFFIEYSRHMIZE26 » [R2018F 68308 » ARRFZIBITHNFERA/6108E T
(2017:580&387T) ©

(b)  The University accepted annual contribution for a Research Centre from a company and its joint venture, in which the
Executive Director of the company is a member of the University Council. The annual contribution from the company and

its joint venture was $5 million (2017: $5 million) for the year ended 30 June 2018.

ABES T - HHABRESNERENTESNAIRASELATRMEPLNEEMR - HZ22018F653081EFE - It
ARARHEGENINFEHRB5008BIT(2017:5008 B 7T) ©
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34. Related Party Transactions (Cont'd)
FEANTRZZ(1B)

347 (c)  Key Management Personnel Remuneration

FEEBASZHMN
Consolidated &8 University K22
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF85Tah) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Salaries, Allowances and L 2R
Other Benefits Hibigx 65,744 63,373 65,743 63,371
Post-employment Benefits #m BRI TE A 8,110 7,817 8,110 7.817
73,854 71,190 73,853 71,188

Key management personnel include officers of the University and its senior management executives, the elected staff

members of the University at the Council, and the lay and other members of the Council who serve the University without

any remuneration.

TEEENEBGEAREIERSEEEAS  BRRELENASRESHHEANXRREFHFI 2 RIMNEFEMRE -

35. Capital Commitments
EREI5EEE

Capital commitments outstanding at 30 June 2018 not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

R2018F6F308RRUBFRMEABBHOERIRE REWT :

Consolidated #2&

University K&

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (ATF7875t) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Contracted for E8I#9 390,060 505,393 383,650 504,690
Authorised but not Contracted for EREMERETN 63,661 77,195 59,301 77,195

453,721 582,588 442,951 581,885

34 ¥ The Key Management Personnel Remuneration information cover 23 staff members (2017: 23) including all the senior management executives of the University and the

elected staff members of the Council, the majority of which has also been included in the staff count of note 8.3.

EERERBAS2FHFMERRZ23MUHIE (2017:23(1) BEABITEEBAMRBESEENNESHHE MR » MATBALNBIBRHIZES.IN2MZ AL -
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36.

37.

Operating Lease Commitments
KEHERE

As at 30 June 2018, the total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties
were payable as follows:

[R2018F68308 » BEAMENURBMEEEE ZARRREEEMTRIT ¢

Consolidated #7& University &2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (MFB7Tah) 2018 2017 2018 2017
Within 1 Year —FR 18,669 18,388 17,392 17,320
After 1 Year but within 5 Years —ERERAEA 15,892 24,181 15,013 24,153
34,561 42,569 32,405 41,473

Accounting Estimates and Judgements
BEHEETR A

The Consolidated Entity’s fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after
taking into account their estimated residual value. The Consolidated Entity reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values
of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during any reporting period. The
useful lives and residual values are based on management’s experience with similar assets and, where applicable, taking into
account anticipated equipment upgrade and replacement. The depreciation charge for future periods is adjusted if there are

significant changes from previous estimates.

Notes 28 and 32 contain information on the assumptions and risk factors relating to defined benefit retirement obligations and

financial instruments.

FERNEEEENTERREMGLSI Y ERFRIIR G HNGFEBEUEREHE - RORSEFSREEN S ERFHRE
BEEREETOURSFENNERS - YEAFRRMGEEESRECEBHREBHUEENER TS ESMERSE RS
BRI KRB - WRIHNGSIEEANEE - RRPBNITERZSHMFLRE -

fiEE28R32 A BHR TR BRENTIANBRRBBERZEN -
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38. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations Issued but Not Yet Effective for the Year
Ended 30 June 2018
#HE2018F68308 L FES5THABIEBABAREMOIBE]  MILERIRFEAREELENTE

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2018 and which have not been adopted in these financial

statements. These include the following which may be relevant to the Consolidated Entity.
BHEAPBRRMBME - SBSSTNLZRM S —LB5HERNEET  FIBERIRERE - REIZE2018F68308 LEFEDREM
BDREFEMNRAZHRERD - TR YRGS RN BEERIS ST RIS -

Effective for accounting

periods beginning on or after

IRt B e/ 2 ROV E AL

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
SBUBRSEARN - TMTE 201851818
HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
EBUBRSEINFE 155 - RESFPSHEHIA 201851818
HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration 1 January 2018
SR (ERYBRESREEES) - RES22%  INEXZRANHE 2018F 1818
HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
SBUBRSEAR 163 - HE 201961818

The Consolidated Entity is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the Consolidated Entity has identified some aspects of
the new standards which may have a significant impact on the financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts are
discussed below. While the assessment has been substantially completed for HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the actual impacts upon the
initial adoption of the standards may differ as the assessment completed to date is based on the information currently available to
the Consolidated Entity, and further impacts may be identified before the standards are initially applied in the Consolidated Entity’s
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019. The Consolidated Entity may also change its accounting policy elections,

including the transition options, until the standards are initially applied in the financial statements.

IRERBEREGZF ]  MEERRZECESAERYEELENTE - ESiREREHAF I ERNE T aYEEREY
BRF]EMEATE - EHERBTENE—TFBERT R - BEEHESBYFRSEANEINREBUHRSHERFE 1558
ZIUEC AT  EXFRMZFEAREECERYEYRENNE  RAZSEMLZ G DREFRSEIBITUSERUE
B MREREAZFERIFSIEHE2019F60 3308 L FEFHFRAANIESHRIEMLRE - (REIRMNREEHSFIER
BE 0 BIERRER 0 EESAERZEEIRYFRS -
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38.

Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations Issued but Not Yet Effective for the Year
Ended 30 June 2018 (Cont'd)
HZE2018F6H308 It FESHEABERMEREMBEE] ~ MMISERIRZEIEEENTENE)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
EBUHREHERIZEIN - TRITHE

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for financial instruments, HKAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for classification and measurement of financial assets, including
the measurement of impairment for financial assets and hedge accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates the
requirements of the existing HKAS 39 for recognition and derecognition of financial instruments and the classification and

measurement of financial liabilities without substantive changes.

ERUFRSERFIRRMNIBENERNTEBSERIESEHER  SBBHERIE3R - ENITEH : EHBRTE - SBYHFRSHE
BIBIRSINDERFTBEHNEENTRE @ BIEFTESNEERERLPEST - 5—HE » SBUBRSEIEIRNBEIED R
IHEREMTER EHEENRIVRERIBITOS B GSTHERIFE 39X AIFEE)

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 on a retrospective basis.

BB SHERIEIRMR20185F1 51880221500 F EEREMEMN

Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Consolidated Entity’s financial statements are as follows:

HRELHRS RN B RERNAMZEWT
(a) Classification and measurement
HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). The classification is determined
based on the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets and the entity’s business model for managing the

financial assets.

The Consolidated Entity has assessed that its financial assets currently measured at amortised cost will continue with this

classification and measurement upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.
(@) DIERETE

SBUHRSERFIRHE=EEBENEEDLER : (1) DUEHEMASTE ; ) IRARBESTI AR "FVIPL, )FHER Q) AR
BESIAEMLEZEUES( "TFVTOCI, 518 - DRIZZEENSHNIRSREFEREREIETMEENFHENERE

frotasts - HE RN At ENENEERSIRFENS BUHIRSER S IRREEIERZDERTE -
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38. Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations Issued but Not Yet Effective for the Year
Ended 30 June 2018 (Cont'd)
#H2£2018F68308 L FE S5 HABEBMEREMBBE] » FMLERRZEEIEEENTEHE)

(a) Classification and measurement (Cont'd)

With respect to the Consolidated Entity’s financial assets currently classified as “available-for-sale”, these are investments in
equity securities which the Consolidated Entity has the option to irrevocably designate as FVTOCI on transition to HKFRS 9.
Consequently, these investments will be measured at fair value at each reporting date, with movements in fair value recognised

in other comprehensive income and dividend income recognised in profit or loss.

@ DIERETE(IE)

ERDEA TIHEE NEHNEE  FRERRNEEESBYFRSEAFE IR 2 RAEENTREHREDBRIZANEETT AR
L2 ENENEFRE - ZFRERRSHEBIRANBESI BWERAANEENEE R A2 EINE - MR SUARIRIEZARIERN
SR

(b) Impairment

The “expected credit loss” model in HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39. Under the expected credit loss
model, it will no longer be necessary for a loss event to occur before an impairment loss is recognised. Instead, the impairment
loss is required to be recognised and measured either on a 12-month expected credit loss or a lifetime expected credit loss,
depending on the asset and the facts and circumstances. The Consolidated Entity expects that the application of the expected

credit loss model will result in earlier recognition of credit losses.

(b) R

SR HRSEIE RN "RAEEGE. RINSMASEZSIERIE3RN "CEEEHE, B - REBRRPEEGERN » 1
BEREERNEBENEEGES M - Bk BENERRSIERRE2EL/NAREEHEENYEREHRANRREEHE &
RIEE  BERIBER - RORRANBIHERNJEEIIRREREEEHE -

HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

ESBYHRSERFE 155 - RESPESHEOIEA

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering of

services, and HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specifies the accounting for revenue from construction contracts.

SBUHRSHERF15RRERREZS P SHBNGIE S —EZBNER - SBUBHRSERE15RREUCIRITRIINAERIN S 5t
R BIEBESHERIF185E - N\ - ©RERBHESWAIRHRBOINNARSEESERIE 115 - BSEH - HEJRRSEHIIN
HMIVESTERIES % ©
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38.

Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations Issued but Not Yet Effective for the Year
Ended 30 June 2018 (Cont'd)
BHZE2018F68308 LEESTHABIEEMBAREBENZE] » FMIBEBIRZRETREELENS/E (1)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Cont'd)
SBUHFRSEAEI55% - REBZFLESRNIAGE)

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Consolidated Entity has identified the following areas which are expected to be
affected:

Timing of revenue recognition
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer obtains control of the promised good or service in the contract.

Evaluation is made at contract inception on whether the control is transferred to the customer over time and therefore revenue

should be recognised over time — if not, the revenue will be recognised at a single point in time when the control is transferred.
RBEESTMEHS @ FEREHIN TSR ZHE :

IS\ BESR B

RBSBYHRSERNF155R - WARZPESENNRGENE RS 2 EHIEITESE - SURE S ELIHS - BEEhIERE
ISEERE=S - WAINER LRI TR - B8 - IWN\EERE—IEERBERIE RN

HKFRS 16, Leases

EBYHRSERFE 1653 - HE

As disclosed in note 1.8, currently the Consolidated Entity classifies leases into operating leases depending on the classification
of the lease. The Consolidated Entity enters into some leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.

Once HKFRS 16 is adopted, the Consolidated Entity will no longer distinguish between finance leases and operating leases when
it is the lessee under the lease. Instead, subject to practical expedients, the Consolidated Entity will be required to account for

all leases of more than 12 months in a similar way to current finance lease accounting.

The application of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact on

the timing of the expense recognition in the Income and Expenditure Statement over the period of the lease.

Q0REET . BFTIEEE » ARG IR B RISIHEDARIEENRE - RESBUBTEASIIIETHE - HbRERZFFEA °

—E'}‘?ﬁﬂ’\] BYHRSHEAE165% » FERRABRONEEERIEZHEE - Bk EAUTREDENERT @ FRERERIZEIEER
HERALNESRIED ZHMEHER12E 85U EATHENE -

[ERFTESHRINRRRBISIENEEREE © WH SRS IRIAPIESRFRSZ ISRISMRZ
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